
2323 Grand Avenue· Des tloines ·Iowa 50312-5307 
Telephone: 515-725-7900 ·Fax: 515·725-7882 
www.ialottery.com AGENDA 

I. 

II. 

III. 

IV. 

v. 

IOWA LOTTERY BOARD 
April22, 2014 

10:30 a.m. 

Call to Order 
a. Approval of Minutes 

Board Recognition 

Quarterly Reports 
a. Financial 
b. Marketing 
c. Security 
d. Legislative 

Building Update 
a. 13001 University 
b. 2323 Grand 

CLOSED SESSION 

Terry E. Branstad · Governor 
Kim Reynolds · Lt. Governor 

Terry Rich · Chief Executive Officer 

a. DCI Background Presentation 

VI. Contract - Pull Tab Printing 

VII. Contract - Vending Machine Maintenance 

VIII. Contract Extension- Advertising Services 

IX. Contract Extension - Media Services 

X. Contract Extension - Research 

XI. Contract Extension - Game Auditing Services 

XII. Membership Renewals 

XIII. Fiscal Policies 

XIV. Self-Reporting Rule 

XV. CEO Report 
a. National Game Update 
b. 2015 Vision Statement 

XVI. Adjournment 

If you require the assistance of auxiliary aids or services to participate in or attend the meeting because of a disability, please 
call our ADA coordinator at 515-725-7864, or if you are hearing impaired, call Relay TIY at 1-800-735-2942. 



MINUTES 
IOWA LOTTERY BOARD 

January 29, 2014 

The Iowa Lottery Board convened at 11:30 a.m., Board Chairperson Mike Klappholz presiding. 

Board members participating: Mike Klappholz, Mary Junge, Matt McDermott, Deb Burnight, Herman 
Richter and Mike Fitzgerald (Han.). 

Lottery staff present: Terry Rich, CEO; Larry Loss, EVP; Brenda Nye, CFO; Mary Neubauer, Vice 
President External Relations; Teri Wood TeBockhorst, Vice President Marketing; Molly juffernbruch, 
Vice President General Counsel; Steve Bogle, Vice President Security; jack Schroeder, Vice President 
Operations and Systems; Jamie Shae, Sr Project Director/Board Secretary, Dave Van Compernolle, 
Assistant Attorney General, and Tammy Cooper, Procurement. 

Others present: Doug Woodley, Department of Administrative Services; Daniel P. Finney, Des Moines 
Register; Darwin Danielson, Radio Iowa; Ben Brackett, Department of Administrative Services; Marian 
White, Department of Administrative Services. 

Chairperson Klappholz called the meeting to order. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Burnight moved to approve the December Board meeting minutes. McDermott seconded. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

DAS Presentation - Real Estate Agreement 

Larry Loss introduced the team that has been working on the headquarters building project: Ben 
Brackett, Administrator for DAS Lease and Space Services; Marian White, Deputy Administrator; and 
Doug Woodley, Chief Operating Officer for Department of Administrative Services. Loss stated that a 
property located at 13001 University Ave. in Clive is being presented for consideration. 

Ben Brackett stated the project began approximately one year ago when DAS and the Lottery came 
together to discuss the long-term viability of the current lottery headquarters building in Des Moines. 
Based on the threat to continuity found in the professional analysis, a proactive approach was taken. 
Brackett stated that since the lottery generates sales of approximately $1 million per day, loss of 
revenue and disruption of business were some driving factors to finding a solution to the challenges 
with the lottery's headquarters building. Brackett went on to say that the secondary considerations 
were operational efficiencies and gaining value for the State of Iowa. 

Brackett stated that a solicitation was put together in September 2013 that outlined the detailed 
critical business requirements and secondary requirements provided by the lottery. The solicitation 
was distributed to the commercial real estate community and over 20 proposals were received. Those 
proposals were compared to the requirements and other comparable properties. Financial analysis 
and multiple building tours were conducted. 

Brackett stated that the three main options identified were to renovate, lease or purchase. The cost 
difference between renovating, leasing and purchasing showed that renovating would cost 
approximately $8.3 million after moving employees out and then back in. Brackett stated that the 
total occupancy cost after ten years would be $7.1 million. The leasing option would most likely 
include improvement costs and after ten years would be $10.5 million with no value in the property. 
The purchasing option for the Clive building is comparable in annual operating costs to the lottery's 

1 



current building and the total occupancy cost is less. The effective occupancy cost in the proposed 
property after ten years is as low as $2.8 million. In addition, the sale of 2323 Grand Ave. could offset a 
portion of the cost of a new building .. 

Mike Fitzgerald asked who owned the current lottery building and Brackett responded that the Iowa 
Lottery Authority owns it. 

Brackett went on to describe some of the features of the proposed building noting the close proximity 
to 1-235, 1-35 and 1-80. Brackett concluded by stating that the purchase of the proposed building is a 
great value, meets critical business requirements and came in under the budget. The building was 
originally listed at $7.9 million, was reduced to $7 million then $6.2 million. The final negotiated price 
is $5.35 million. Brackett stated that earnest money would be approximately $100,000 which would 
be a part of the closing cost if the lottery were to pay $3 million for the property, with closing 
scheduled on or aboutApril1, 2014. The balance of$2.35 million would be financed for a short time. 

Loss then addressed the Board, stating that this property is the best value for the lottery and for the 
State of Iowa, appears to minimize the risk associated with a disruption in lottery sales, would be 
under budget and is move-in ready. Loss, on behalf of lottery senior management, requested that the 
Board accept the recommendation by the Department of Administrative Services- General Services 
Enterprise Real Estate Team and approve the Offer to Purchase Real Estate of property located at and 
known as 13001 University Avenue in Clive, Iowa, for the price of$5,350,000 including the short-term 
financing of $2,350,000, with interest thereon, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the 
offer. 

Klappholz asked for a motion to approve the Offer to Purchase Real Estate. 
Richter moved. McDermott seconded. 

McDermott asked if there was anything different in this process than those with location services for 
other state agencies. Brackett stated that the amount of transparency was different from private 
entities, and that DAS often handles lease arrangements rather than the purchase of properties. Junge 
asked if the square footage of the Clive location is what the lottery was seeking. Ben responded that 
the lottery had a range for square footage and other properties with less square footage would have 
required more improvements. Junge asked about the I.T. costs for the Clive location when a "fully 
loaded" LT. area was mentioned. Brackett responded that an ICN connection is required, along with 
some upgrades. jack Schroeder pointed out that the slide of the presentation showing a T.l. cost 
(Tenant Improvements) which includes security, wiring, generator, etc. 

Burnight asked how long the building has been vacant and Brackett stated it has been unoccupied 
since late 2012. Burnight then asked why it hadn't been purchased already. Brackett stated that the 
building is midsized and unique, with many built-out offices that originally were for investment 
managers. It's also owned by six different banks. The lottery's ability to pay cash and move quickly 
made it an ideal solution. 

McDermott asked if there were any concerns about the building. Brackett stated that he had no 
concerns and that the due diligence period would reveal any concerns. 

Klappholz commented that he was impressed with the quality and newness of the features the lottery 
would need to function at the location. He stated that the Clive property appears to be a perfect fit and 
a turnkey solution so it seems appropriate. Klappholz stated he appreciated all the efforts from DAS. 

Richter commented on the easy accessibility to the building from the nearby interstates and that some 
signage would be helpful. Fitzgerald asked if the legislators had been notified and Rich stated that the 

2 



Government Oversight Committees were briefed about the project last week and that upon Board 
approval, the proposalwould then require approval from the Executive Council because it involves an 
agreement for the purchase of real estate. Upon Executive Council approval, the lottery will provide 
official notification to the Government Oversight Committees. Rich stated that the lottery can fund 
this purchase and still meet its budgeted proceeds to the state. Neubauer stated that information has 
been shared with the House and Senate Oversight Committees as well as staffers for those committees 
and the Legislative Services Agency. 

McDermott inquired as to the undeveloped real estate next to the proposed property and Brackett 
stated development of those areas would be dictated by the City of Clive and covenants governing the 
property. 

Klappholz asked for a vote on the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 

Loss stated the next step is to approve the Resolution Approving the Offer to Purchase Real Estate 
which will be used for the lottery's presentation to the Executive Council. He stated that since the 
Board has approved the Offer to Purchase Real Estate, it is the recommendation of senior management 
that the Board adopt the Resolution Approving Offer to Purchase Real Estate. 

McDermott moved to approve, Junge seconded. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Loss then requested that the Board approve a motion for the lottery staff to work with the DAS-GSE 
Real Estate Team to sell the 2323 Grand Ave. property. 

Burnight moved. Richter seconded. 

Klappholz asked ifDAS would be handling the sale and Loss stated that the Real Estate team would 
follow state guidelines for selling property. Rich added that DAS would work to get the best price for 
the state and with the best interests of the Ingersoll and Grand projects in mind. Loss stated that if an 
offer is forthcoming, it would be brought to the Board. Rich added that any monies generated by the 
sale of 2323 Grand Ave. would go directly to the lottery, as the lottery owns the building, and would 
have a positive impact on the lottery's bottom line for the state. 

Klappholz asked for a vote from the Board on the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

Klappholz stated his appreciation of the amount of transparency and communication during this 
process. Fitzgerald agreed as did Richter, Burnight and Junge. 

NCLGS Membership 
Neubauer stated that the lottery closely follows gaming regulations on the state and federal levels and 
there have been three main organizations that represent state officials and have advocated for states' 
rights regarding gaming regulation: National Governor's Association (NGA), National Conference of 
State Legislators (NCSL), and the National Conference ofLegislators from Gaming States (NCLGS). 
NCLGS represents all states but the states within its membership are either 'Contributing' or 'General' 
members and 'Contributing' members get several enhanced benefits including full access to the NCLGS 
website, emails, alerts on breaking issues and the ability to contribute to NCLGS discussions. The 
lottery feels it would be advantageous for Iowa to be a Contributing Member of the NCLGS. The 
expense is $3,000 annually. Neubauer asked the Board to approve a motion to pay the annual dues of 
$3,000 for Iowa to have membership in NCLGS for one year. 

3 



Junge asked if contributing members get more information and Neubauer confirmed, adding that 
Contributing members also get to take part in the group's conversations. Neubauer stated that it's 
important for Iowa to have a voice. 

Burnight asked the monetary difference between a Contributing member and a General member. 
Neubauer stated that there is no cost for general members. 

McDermott moved to approve paying the annual due of $3,000. Richter seconded. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Pull-tab Printing 
Steve Bogle stated that the current contract for Pull tab printing expired at the end of the last calendar 
year and therefore an RFP was issued. Bogle stated that a correction on the background information 
should say Pull-tab Ticket Sales versus Instant Ticket Sales. The lottery has at least 20 pull-tab games 
for sale at any one time and has about 825 retailers that sell pull-tabs. 

Bogle said that three notices of Intent to Bid were received from American Games, International 
Gam co and Aero International. Only one proposal was received- from American Games, which has 
been the lottery's pull-tab vendor for 21 years. Bogle said that no site visit was conducted because 
visits are done regularly with this vendor. Because only one proposal was received, the scoring was 
done on a Pass/Fail basis. American Games received a pass on every category and Nye reviewed the 
cost sheet and confirmed it was consistent with the previous contract. 

Bogle stated that the RFP review committee recommended that the Iowa Lottery issue a notice of 
Intent to Award subject successful of completion of a DC! investigation of American Games, Inc. (a 
Pollard Banknote company) located in Council Bluffs, Iowa. He said the committee also recommended 
that the CEO working with the VP of Security authorize the completion of the background 
investigations of American Games, allowing the lottery to conduct negotiations with American Games. 

McDermott asked why the other two companies didn't bid. Rich speculated that some companies 
simply want information about a particular RFP but have no intention of bidding. Loss added that 
there was no communication with either company during the process. 

Fitzgerald asked how $15 million in revenues translates to profit. Rich responded that those sales 
generate about $3 million in proceeds to the state and added that pull-tab sales have been decreasing 
each year for some time now, an issue that the lottery continues to study. 

Junge moved to approve the intent to award. Burnight seconded. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Lotto Game Update 
Rich stated the latest change with lotto games was the replacement of iowa's $100,000 Cash Game 
with the new All or Nothing game, which generated $28,000 in sales on its first day. Rich said the 
"Make My" series ofinstant games also is doing well, as is the Pro Football Hall of Fame promotion. 
Rich stated he's proud of the senior staff and their strategic planning. Rich added that the lottery had 
budgeted proceeds at $62 million, but surpassed $80 million last year and anticipates achieving 
proceeds of around $70 million this year. 

Richter complimented the promotions and work of the lottery staff. 

4 



Richter then asked about the security in the new building. Bogle stated that an evaluation will be 
conducted as part of the due diligence process, adding that the security team would evaluate the needs 
and would not cut corners on the level of security necessary. 

McDermott moved to adjourn and Junge seconded. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Meeting adjourned at !2:22pm 

5 



IOWA LOTTERY 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

FY 2014 
I JUL 

I Month I 
I AUG I SEP I OCT I NOV I DEC I JAN I FEB I I I MAR I APR I MAY I JUN I 

Gross Sales Budget'14 21,480,287 23,387,161 21,894,427 22,749,084 25,139,749 24,001 ,852 24,352,692 25,533,435 29,111,897 25,298,981 27,014,412 23,036,023 
5-yearav. 20,836.440 22.686.157 21.238.166 22,067.206 24.386.214 23.282.424 23.622.747 24,768,100 28.239.301 24.540,673 26.204.685 22.345,545 
Actual '14 26,045,310 27,668,618 26,044,760 24,595,516 24,637,797 29.248,436 24,695,558 28,545,036 

Prize Expense 8udget'14 12,600.256 13,718,820 12,843,188 13,344,527 14,746,882 14,079,396 14,285,197 14,977,817 58.66% 1) 17,076,929 14,840,287 15,846,552 13,512,846 
5-year av. 12,342,598 12,972,723 12,388.357 12.786,810 13,663,667 14,175,858 14,229,622 15,011,692 60.61% 2) 16,099,572 14,422,795 15,136,m 12,986,412 
Ac;tual '14 15,942,444 15,944,936 15,424,112 14,558,510 14,087,386 17,158,018 16.390,859 16,222,739 56.83% 3) 

Operating Expenses Budget'14 580,184 1,046,345 1,046,345 1,489,947 924,193 1,046,345 1,046,345 1,046,345 1,046,345 1,489,947 924,193 1,816,860 
5-yearav. 551,107 795.468 903,895 942,875 980,401 929.762 836,710 892,337 872,587 947,155 1,028.017 1,661.842 
Ac:tua1 '14 510,053 946,787 1,032,424 1,338.916 811 ,525 947,361 962.016 1,053.506 

Proceeds to General Fund Budget'14 4,771,655 4,780,594 4,408,678 4,178,015 5,339,406 4,933,745 5,021,157 5,315,341 6,206,919 4,813,324 5,806,480 3,922,593 
5-yearav. 4,870,293 5,458.740 4,796,504 5.415,740 6,703,588 4,845,621 5.409.546 5.431,812 7.325.740 6.017.791 6.500.545 4.561.737 
Actua1'14 5,818,399 6,789.813 6,463,986 6,149,653 6,563,816 7,431,424 3,907,599 7,715,155 

Proceeds to Veterans Trust Budget '14 133,453 482,971 301,434 166,950 140,083 142,482 227,620 354,551 368,677 206,227 154,877 120,675 
5-yearav. 127,700 462.152 288.440 159,754 134,044 136.340 217.808 339,267 352.785 197.338 148.201 115.474 
Actua1'14 163,182 422,439 83,623 47,564 61.355 70,877 227,566 435,807 

Total Proceeds Budget'14 4,905,108 5,263,565 4,710,112 4,344,965 5,479,489 5,076.227 5,248,m 5,669,892 6,575,596 5,019,551 5,961,357 4,043,268 
5-year av. 4,997,993 5,920,892 5,084,944 5,575.494 6,837,632 4,981 ,961 5,627.354 5,771 ,079 7,678,525 6,215.129 6,648,746 4 ,677,211 
Actual '14 5,981 ,581 7.212,252 6,547,609 6,197.217 6.625,171 7,502,301 4,135,165 8.150,962 

I YEAR TO DATE I 
Gross Sales Budget '14 21,480,287 44,867,448 66,761,875 89,510,959 114,650,708 138,652,560 163,005,252 188,538,687 217,650,584 242,949,565 269,963,977 293,000,000 

5-yearav. 20.836.440 43.522,597 64,760,763 86.827.969 111.214,183 134.496,607 158,119,354 182,887.454 15.63%4) 211,126.755 235,667,428 261 ,872.113 284.217.658 
Actual '14 26,045,310 53,713,928 79,758,688 104,354,204 128,992,001 158,240,437 182.935.995 211 ,481,031 12.17% 5) 

Prize Expense Budgot'14 12,600,256 26,319,076 39,162,264 52,506,791 67,253,673 81,333,069 95,618,266 110,596,083 58.66% 1) 127,673,012 142,513,299 158,359,851 171,872,697 
5-yearav. 12,342.598 25,315,321 37.703,678 50,490,488 64,154,155 78.330.013 92.559.635 107,571 .327 58.82%2) 123,670.899 138.093.694 153,230,471 166,216.883 
Actual'14 15,942.444 31.887.380 47,311.492 61,870.002 75.957.388 93,115,406 109,506.265 125.729,004 59.45% 3) 

Operating Expenses Budget '14 580,184 1,626,529 2,672,874 4,162,821 5,087,014 6,133,359 7,179,704 8,226,049 9,272,394 10,762,341 11,686,534 13,503,394 
5-yearav. 551,107 1.346,575 2.250.470 3,193,345 4,173,746 5,103,508 5,940.218 6,832,555 7,705,142 8,652.297 9,680,314 11 ,238,670 
Actual'14 510,053 1,456,840 2,489.264 3.828.180 4.639.705 5.587.066 6.549.082 7,602.588 

Proceeds to General Fund Budget'14 4,771,655 9,552,249 13,960,927 18,138,942 23,478,348 28,412,093 33,433,250 38,748,591 44,955,510 49,768,834 55,575,314 59,497,907 
5-yearav. 4,870,293 10.329,033 15.125,537 20,541,277 27,244,865 32,090.486 37,500,032 42,931,844 50.257.584 56.275.375 62.775.920 67,352,481 
Actual '14 5.818.399 12.608,212 19,072,198 25.221.851 31.785.667 39.217.091 43,124.690 50,839.845 

Proceeds to Veterans Trust Budget '14 133,453 616,424 917,858 1,084,808 1,224,891 1,367,373 1,594,993 1,949,544 2,318,221 2,524,448 2,679,325 2,800,000 
5-yearav. 127.700 589.852 878,292 1,038,046 1,172,090 1.308.430 1.526.238 1,865,505 2,218,290 2.415.628 2,563.829 2,679,303 
Actual '14 163,182 585,621 669,244 716.808 778,163 849.040 1,076,606 1,512,413 

Total Proceeds Budget '14 4,905,108 10,168,673 14,878,785 19,223,750 24,703,239 29,779,466 35,028,243 40,698,135 47,273,731 52,293,282 58,254,639 62,297,907 
5-yearav. 4 ,997.993 10.918.885 16,003,829 21.579.323 28.416.955 33.398.916 39,026,270 44,797,349 16.86% 4) 52,475.874 58,691 ,003 65.339.749 70.031.784 
Actu31 '14 5,981 .581 13,193.833 19,741 ,442 25,938,659 32,563,830 40,066,131 44,201,296 52,352,258 28.64% 5) 

1) Budget FY14 Prize Payout 
2) Actual 5-year average Prize Payout 
3) Actual FY14 Prize Payout 
4) Actual FY14 compared to Actual 5-year average 
5) Actual FY14 compared to Budget FY14 



2323 Grand Avenue· Des ~loines ·Iowa 50312-5307 
Telephone: SIS-725-7900 ·Fax: 515-725-7882 
www.ialottery.com 

DATE: December 13, 2013 

TO: Board Members of the Iowa Lottery Authority 

FROM: Brenda Nye, Chief Financial Officer ~--{\( 

Terry E. Brans tad · Governor 
Kim Reynolds · Lt. Governor 

Terry Rich · Chief Executive OHicer 

Attached are the financial statements for November 2013. During 
November, we had revenue of $24,638,577. This sales level resulted in 
$6,563,816 of proceeds payable to the State General Fund and $61,355 
of proceeds payable to the Veterans Trust Fund. 

Attachments 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF ECONOMIC BENEFITS 

November 30, 2013 

Proceeds to Iowa Plan 

Proceeds to CLEAN fund 

Proceeds to Special Appropriations 

Proceeds to Gambler's Treatment Program 

Proceeds to the State General Fund: 
Prior to Fiscal Year 20 14 
Fiscal Year 2014 

Transferred 
Payable 

Proceeds to the Veterans Trust Fund: 

Total 

Prior to Fiscal Year 2014 
Fiscal Year 2014 

Transferred 
Payable 

$1,231,172,262 

19,072,199 
12,713,469 

$13,396,520 

669,244 
108,919 

$170,318,439 

$35,894,355 

$13,773,572 

15,732,208 

1,262,957,930 

14,174,683 

$1,512,851,187 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2013 

l\Ionth ended l\Ionth ended Year-to-date Year-to-dnte 
November 30, 2013 November 30, 2012 November 30, 2013 November 30,2012 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Instant-scratch ticket sales $15,218,348 $16,050,047 $75,232,166 $75,777,561 
Pick 3 sales 581,738 547,537 2,851,811 2,789,656 
Powerball sales 4,092,603 15,272,394 30,307,319 37,965,135 
Mega Millions sales 1,918,177 1,070,365 6,376,933 5,789,104 
Hot Lotto sales 750,497 975,595 4,222,632 4,516,028 
Raffle sales 242,960 0 242,960 0 
Pick4 sales 275,330 251,446 1,317,921 1,230,129 
$100,000 Cash Game sales 364,353 378,558 1,857,615 1,869,427 
Pull-tab sales 1,193,791 1,334,735 6,582,643 6,993,682 
Application fees 325 950 1,450 2,875 
Other revenue 455 2,313 5,581 8,727 

Total operating revenues 24,638,577 35,883,940 128,999,031 136,942,324 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Scratch ticket prize expense 9,374,351 10,014,961 48,057,012 47,313,803 
Pick 3 prize expense 345,093 325,833 1,678,909 1,651,554 
Powerball prize expense 1,820,530 7,569,013 14,640,579 18,642,164 
Mega Millions prize expense 966,007 542,536 3,185,770 2,929,520 
Hot Lotto prize expense 360,792 475,703 2,031,979 2,151, 723 
Raffle prize expense 101,536 0 101,536 0 
Pick 4 prize expense 163,698 142,748 772,902 718,687 
$100,000 Cash Game prize expense 194,999 202,481 993,666 999,929 
Pull-tab prize expense 749,428 832,849 4,132,117 4,376,122 
VIP Club prize expense 0 160,274 245,000 817,398 
Promotional prize expense 10,952 34,152 117,915 75,528 
Advertising/publicity 560,453 480,626 2,971,317 2,501,943 
Retailer compensation expense 1,550,632 2,286,783 8,202,957 8,722,106 
Ticket expense 272,922 334,466 1,365,386 1,290,542 
Vendor compensation expense 476,223 761,375 2,606,242 2,786,642 
Salary and benefits 695,885 728,500 3,930,087 3,884,778 
Travel 32,978 30,885 176,412 172,252 
Supplies 6,512 4,156 53,124 45,543 
Printing 4,158 183 10,150 1,262 
Postage 322 1,307 1,501 2,641 
Communications 13,630 13,515 80,612 60,333 
Rentals 25,775 24,705 127,150 124,486 
Utilities 11,411 8,065 40,662 35,329 
Professional fees 6,698 3,039 34,115 31,956 
Vending machine maintenance 46,957 44,661 235,101 223,492 
Outside services and repairs 50,886 17,889 184,873 119,996 
Data processing 7,041 4,574 37,999 22,827 
Equipment 10,446 80,519 89,488 159,615 
Reimbursement to other 

state agencies 29,068 34,235 184,562 171,616 
Depreciation 23,965 20,283 121,093 101,414 
Other 3,770 19,058 40,199 40,162 
MUSL administrative expense 4,434 3,088 22,168 15,438 

Total operating expenses 17,921,552 25,202,462 96,472,583 100,190,801 

Operating income 6,717,025 10,681,478 32,526,448 36,751,523 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES 1N NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2013 

Month ended 1\fonth ended Year-to-date 
November 30, 2013 November 30, 2012 November 30, 2013 

Non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Proceeds deposited to: 
State General Fund (6,563,816) (10,310,506) (31, 785,668) 
Veterans Trust Fund (61,355) (69,101) (778,163) 

Interest income 3,984 8,443 18,333 
Interest expense 0 (3,010) 0 

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) (6,621,187) (10,374,174) (32,545,498) 

Change in net position 95,838 307,304 (19,050) 

Net position, beginning 
of period 6,169,291 5,257,603 6,284,179 

Net position, end 
of [leriod $6,265,129 $5,564,907 $6,265,129 

Year-to-date 
November 30, 2012 

(35,469, 758) 
(959,006) 

61,240 
(15,052) 

(36,382,576) 

368,947 

5,195,960 

$5,564,907 



2323 Grand Avenue· Des Moines · Iowa 5031 2-5307 
Telephone: 515-725-7900 · fax: 515-725-7882 
www.ialottery.com 

DATE: January 17, 2014 

TO: Board Members of the Iowa Lottery Authority 

FROM: Brenda Nye, Chief Financial Officer b~ 

Terry E. Branstad · Governor 
Kim Reynolds · Lt. Governor 

Terry Rich · Chief Executive Officer 

Attached are the financial statements for December 2013. During 
December, we had revenue of $29,249,439. This sales level resulted in 
$7,431,424 of proceeds payable to the State General Fund and $70,877 
of proceeds payable to the Veterans Trust Fund. 

Attachments 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF ECONOMIC BENEFITS 

December 31, 2013 

Proceeds to Iowa Plan 

Proceeds to CLEAN fund 

Proceeds to Special Appropriations 

Proceeds to Gambler's Treatment Program 

Proceeds to the State General Fund: 
Prior to Fiscal Year 2014 
Fiscal Year 2014 

Transferred 
Payable 

Proceeds to the Veterans Trust Fund: 

Total 

Prior to Fiscal Year 2014 
Fiscal Year 2014 

Transferred 
Payable 

$1,231,172,262 

19,072,199 
20,144,893 

$13,396,520 

669,244 
179,796 

$170,318,439 

$35,894,355 

$13,773,572 

15,732,208 

1,270,389,354 

14,245,560 

$1,520,353,488 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED DECEMDER 31,2013 

Month ended Month ended Year-to-date Year-to-date 
December 31,2013 December 31,2012 Decembe1· 31,2013 December 31,2012 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Instant-scratch ticket sales $15,998,601 $16,457,660 $91,230,767 $92,235,221 
Pick 3 sales 579,125 580,485 3,430,936 3,370,141 
Powerball sales 3,635,074 4,190,780 33,942,394 42,155,915 
Mega Millions sales 6,308,644 828,994 12,685,577 6,618,098 
Hot Lotto sales 714,626 1,182,068 4,937,258 5,698,096 
Raffiesales 0 0 242,960 0 
Pick 4 sales 270,672 265,262 1,588,593 1,495,391 
$100,000 Cash Game sales 369,849 381,467 2,227,464 2,250,894 
Pull-tab sales 1,371,845 1,307,188 7,954,487 8,300,870 
Application fees 675 375 2,125 3,250 
Other revenue 328 695 5,909 9,422 

Total operating revenues 29,249,439 25,194,974 158,248,470 162,137,298 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Scratch ticket prize expense 10,272,267 11,231,799 58,329,278 58,545,602 
Pick 3 prize expense 344,445 343,131 2,023,354 1,994,685 
Powerball prize expense 1,778,982 1,791,472 16,419,561 20,433,636 
Mega Millions prize expense 3,200,114 404,316 6,385,884 3,333,836 
Hot Lotto prize expense 341,934 578,992 2,373,913 2,730,715 
Raffle prize expense 0 0 101,536 0 
Pick 4 prize expense 161,594 156,782 934,496 875,469 
$100,000 Cash Game prize expense 197,720 204,387 1,191,387 1,204,317 
Pull-tab prize expense 855,217 819,414 4,987,334 5,195,536 
V 1P Club prize expense 0 165,616 245,000 983,014 
Promotional prize expense 5,745 6,296 123,660 81,824 
Advertising/publicity 663,381 565,571 3,634,697 3,067,514 
Retailer compensation expense 1,930,711 1,936,995 10,133,669 10,659,101 
Ticket expense 229,845 241,193 1,595,231 1,531,735 
Vendor compensation expense 612,268 489,839 3,218,510 3,276,481 
Online gam~ expense 0 230,088 0 230,088 
Salary and benefits 797,795 755,075 4,727,882 4,639,853 
Travel 29,444 33,129 205,857 205,381 
Supplies 5,030 832 58,154 46,375 
Printing (3,541) 5,438 6,609 6,700 
Postage 257 377 1,758 3,018 
Communications 13,358 11,195 93,970 71,527 
Rentals 24,723 24,705 151,873 149,191 
Utilities 9,444 13,246 50,106 48,575 
Professional fees 6,858 6,636 40,973 38,592 
Vending machine maintenance 48,269 44,661 283,370 268,153 
Outside services and repairs 23,310 18,733 208,182 138,729 
Data processing 7,096 4,274 45,095 27,100 
Equipment 48,525 25,798 138,013 185,413 
Reimbursement to other 

state agencies 30,064 46,169 214,626 217,785 
Depreciation 23,975 20,283 145,068 121,697 
Other 3,486 6,180 43,685 46,342 
MUSL administrative expense 4,434 3,088 26,602 18,525 

Total operating expeuses 21,666,750 20,185,710 118,139,333 120,376,509 

Operatiug income 7,582,689 5,009,264 40,109,137 41,760,789 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013 

Month ended Mouth ended Year-to-date 
December 31,2013 December 31, 2012 December 31,2013 

Non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Proceeds deposited to: 
State General Fund (7,431,424) (4,651,853) (39,217,092) 
Veterans Trust Fund (70,877) (98,944) (849,040) 

Interest Income 5,713 7,547 24,046 
Interest expense 0 (3,010) 0 

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) (7,496,588) (4,746,260) (40,042,086) 

Cltauge in net position 86,101 263,004 67,051 

Net position, beginning 
of period 6,265,129 5,564,907 6,284,179 

Net position, end 
ofJ1criod $6,351,230 $5,827,911 $6,351,230 

Year-to-date 
December 31,2012 

(40,121,612) 
(1,057,951) 

68,787 
(18,062) 

(41,128,838) 

631,951 

5)95,960 

$5,827,911 



2323 Grand Avenue · Des ~1oines · Iowa 50312-5307 
Telephone: 515-725-7900 · fax: 515-725-7882 
www.ialottery.com 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

February 17, 2014 

Board Members of the Iowa Lottery Aut\ority 

Brenda Nye, Chief Financial Officer ~ 

Terry E. Brans tad ·Governor 
Kim Reynolds· Lt. Governor 

Terry Rich ·Chief Executive Officer 

Attached ar~ the financial statements for January 2014. During January, 
we had revenue of $24,696,330. This sales level resulted in $3,907,599 
of proceeds payable to the State General Fund and $227,566 of proceeds 
payable to the Veterans Trust Fund. 

Attachments 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF ECONOMIC BENEFITS 

January 31, 2014 

Proceeds to Iowa Plan 

Proceeds to CLEAN fund 

Proceeds to Special Appropriations 

Proceeds to Gambler's Treatment Program 

Proceeds to the State General Fund: 
Prior to Fiscal Year 2014 
Fiscal Year 2014 

Transferred 
Payable 

Proceeds to the Veterans Trust Fund: 

Total 

Prior to Fiscal Year 2014 
Fiscal Year2014 

Traosferred 
Payable 

$1,231,172,262 

39,217,092 
3,907,599 

$13,396,520 

849,040 
227,566 

$170,318,439 

$35,894,355 

$13,773,572 

15,732,208 

1,274,296,953 

14,473,126 

$1,524,488,653 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31,2014 

Month ended :Month ended Year-to-date Year-to-date 
January 31, 2014 January 31,2013 Janunry 31,2014 Janunry 31,2013 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Instant-scratch ticket sales $16,074,190 $17,754,450 $107,304,957 $109,989,671 
Pick 3 sales 567,775 559,574 3,998,711 3,929,716 
Powerbatl sales 4,231,121 4,631,296 38,173,515 46,787,211 
Mega Millions sales 1,134,051 1,043,565 13,819,628 7,661,663 
Hot Lotto sales 809,992 951,128 5,747,250 6,649,224 
Raffle sales 0 0 242,960 0 
Pick 4 sales 260,499 249,550 1,849,091 1,744,940 
All or Nothing sales 83,434 0 83,434 0 
$100,000 Cash Gnme sales 303,520 371,105 2,530,984 2,621,999 
Pull-tab sales 1,230,976 1,356,153 9,185,463 9,657,023 
Application fees 350 175 2,475 3,425 
Other revenue 422 316 6,332 9,738 

Total openlting revenues 24,696,330 26,917,312 182,944,800 189,054,610 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Scratch ticket prize expense 11,637,376 11,435,971 69,966,654 69,981,572 
Pick 3 prize expense 335,085 331,364 2,358,439 2,326,049 
Powerball prize expense 2,077,023 2,265,435 18,496,584 22,699,071 
Mega Millions prize expense 567,522 527,737 6,953,405 3,861,573 
Hot Lotto prize expense 394,299 465,769 2,768,212 3,196,484 
Raffie prize expense 0 0 101,536 0 
Pick 4 prize expense 151,844 147,265 1,086,340 1,022,734 
All or Nothing prize expense 250,486 0 250,486 0 
$100,000 Cash.Game prize expense (45,139) 198,387 1,146,248 1,402,703 
Pull-tab prize expense 768,440 849,229 5,755,774 6,044,765 
VIP Club prize expense 243,954 165,617 488,955 1,148,631 
Promotional prize expense 9,969 (17,163) 133,629 64,661 
Advertising/publicity 648,971 426,077 4,283,669 3,493,591 
Retailer compensation expense 1,592,877 1,723,631 11,726,545 12,382,731 
Ticket expense 264,563 288,540 1,859,794 1,820,276 
Vendor compensation expense 506,002 544,170 3,724,513 3,820,651 
Online game expense 0 0 0 230,088 
Salary and benefits 847,328 841,340 5,575,210 5,481,193 
Travel 32,339 32,719 238,196 238,101 
Supplies 5,561 16,644 63,715 63,019 
Printing 1,083 4,411 7,692 11,110 
Postage 695 1,970 2,452 4,989 
Communications 13,696 12,661 107,666 84,189 
Rentals 25,118 29,809 176,991 178,999 
Utilities 14,919 12,613 65,026 61,188 
Professional fees 12,290 17,707 53,264 56,299 
Vending machine maintenance 47,405 44,631 330,775 312,785 
Outside services and repairs 43,893 17,760 252,075 156,489 
Data processing 7,455 4,650 52,549 31,750 
Equipment 34,529 15,742 172,542 201,155 
Reimbursement to other 

state agencies 40,061 37,294 254,688 255,078 
Depreciation 24,399 20,283 169,467 141,980 
Other 6,301 6,702 49,986 53,044 
MUSL administrative expense 4,434 3,087 31,035 21,613 

Total operating expenses 20,564,778 20,472,052 138,704,112 140,848,561 

Operating income 4,131,552 6,445,260 44,240,688 48,206,049 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES 1N NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2014 

1\fonth ended Month ended Year-to-date 
January 31,2014 January 31,2013 Jauuary 31,2014 

Non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Proceeds deposited to: 
State General Fund (3,907,599) (6,409,126) (43,124,691) 
Veterans Tmst Fund (227,566) (253,973) (1,076,606) 

Interest Income 7,335 5,077 31,382 
Interest expense 0 (2,988) 0 

Net non-operating revenues (cXtlenses) (4,127,830) (6,661,010) (44,169,915) 

Change in net position 3,722 (215,750) 70,773 

Net position, beginning 
of period 6,351,230 5,827,911 6,284,179 

Net position, end 
of period $6,354,952 $5,612,161 $6,354,952 

Year-to-date 
January 31, 2013 

(46,530,738) 
(1,311,924) 

73,864 
(21,050) 

(47,789,848) 

416,201 

5,195,960 

$5,612,161 



2323 Grand Avenue · Des Noines · Iowa 50312-5307 
Telephone: 515-725-7900 · Fax: 515-725-7882 
VIWW.ialottery.com 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

March 18, 2014 

Board Members of the Iowa Lottery Auth"oCty 

Brenda Nye, Chief Financial Officer b\'\\ 

Terry E. Branstad · Governor 
Kim Reynolds · Lt. Governor 

Terry Rich ·Chief Executive Officer 

Attached are the financial statements for February 2014. During 
February, we had revenue of $28,545,830. This sales level resulted in 
$7,715,155 of proceeds payable to the State General Fund and $435,807 
of proceeds payable to the Veterans Trust Fund. 

Attachments 



IOWA LOITERY AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF ECONOMIC BENEFITS 

February 28, 2014 

Proceeds to Iowa Plan 

Proceeds to CLEAN fund 

Proceeds to Special Appropriations 

Proceeds to Gambler's Treatment Program 

Proceeds to the State General Fund: 
Prior to Fiscal Year 2014 
Fiscal Year 2014 

Transfened 
Payable 

Proceeds to the Veterans Trust Fund: 

Total 

Prior to Fiscal Year 2014 
Fiscal Year 2014 

Transfened 
Payable 

$1,231,172,262 

39,217,092 
11,622,755 

$13,396,520 

849,040 
663,373 

$170,318,439 

$35,894,355 

$13,773,572 

15,732,208 

1,282,012,109 

14,908,933 

$1,532,639,616 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014 

1\fonth ended Month ended Year-to-date Year-to-date 

February28, 2014 February 28, 2013 FebruAry 28, 2014 February 28, 2013 
OPERATING REVENUES 
Instant-scratch ticket sales $16,200,819 $20,270,257 $123,505,776 $130,259,928 
Pick 3 sales 549,283 547,980 4,547,994 4,477,696 

Powerball sales 7,237,062 4,653,037 45,410,576 51,440,248 

Mega Millions sales 1,581,468 798,806 15,401,096 8,460,469 

Hot Lotto sales 783,445 685,404 6,530,695 7,334,628 

Raft1e sales 0 0 242,960 0 

Pick 4 sales 258,378 251,240 2,107,469 1,996,181 
All or Nothing sHies 681,301 0 764,735 0 
$100,000 Cash Game sales 0 340,510 2,530,984 2,962,509 
Pull-tab sales 1,253,280 1,212,971 10,438,744 10,869,994 

Application fees 300 400 2,775 3,825 

Other revenue 494 205 6,826 9,942 

Total operating revenues 28,545,830 28,760,810 211,490,630 217,815,420 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Scratch ticket prize expense 9,770,743 12,865,460 79,737,397 82,847,032 

Pick 3 prize expense 324,910 322,438 2,683,349 2,648,487 

PowerbaU prize expense 3,576,055 2,253,659 22,072,639 24,952,730 

Mega Millions prize expense 798,084 401,110 7,751,489 4,262,683 

Hot Lotto prize expense 384,671 333,276 3,152,883 3,529,760 

Raffle prize expense 0 0 101,536 0 

Pick 4 prize expense 153,496 149,224 1,239,837 1,171,958 
All or Nothing prize expense 412,257 0 662,743 0 
$100,000 Cash Game prize expense (3,672) 181,985 1,142,576 1,584,688 
Pull-tab prize expeuse 784,119 758,487 6,539,893 6,803,252 

VIP Club prize expense 196 149,589 489,150 1,298,220 

Promotional prize expense 21,880 13,927 155,510 78,587 

Advertising/publicity 555,279 547,377 4,838,949 4,040,968 

Retailer compeusation expense 1,826,927 1,866,255 13,553,472 14,248,986 

Ticket expense 495,454 711,198 2,355,248 2,531,473 

Vendor compensation expense 590,461 591,517 4,314,973 4,412,167 

Online game expense 0 0 0 230,088 

Salary and benefits 730,070 715,998 6,305,280 6,197,192 

Travel 31,366 38,216 269,562 276,316 

Supplies 5,273 7,610 68,988 70,630 

Printing 5,681 814 13,372 11,925 

Postage 2,957 97 5,409 5,086 

Communications 14,323 12,849 121,989 97,038 

Rentals 26,074 24,975 203,066 203,975 

Utilities 10,715 10,538 75,740 71,726 

Professional fees 4,563 8,997 57,827 65,296 

Vending machine maintenance 47,405 76,456 378,179 389,241 

Outside services and repairs 53,330 41,271 305,405 197,761 

Data processing 7,225 4,571 59,775 36,321 

Equipment (44) 30,396 172,498 231,551 

Reimbursement to other 
state agencies 33,615 19,409 288,302 274,487 

Depreciation 24,398 19,833 193,865 161,813 

Other 3,028 6,165 53,013 59,209 

MUSL administrntive expense 8,827 3,087 39,863 24,700 

Totnl operating expenses 20,699,666 22,166,784 159,403,777 163,015,346 

Operating income 7,846,164 6,594,026 52,086,853 54,800,074 



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE MONTH AND YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014 

Month ended I\fonth ended Year-to-date 
February 28, 2014 February 28, 2013 February 28, 2014 

Non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Proceeds deposited to: 
State General Fund (7,715,155) (6,499,139) (50,839,847) 
Veterans Trust Fund (435,807) (423,787) (1,512,413) 

Interest Income 642 9,487 32,024 
Interest expense 0 (3,010) 0 

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) (8,150,320) (6,916,449) (52,320,236) 

Change in net position (304,156) (322,423) . (233,383) 

Net position, beginning 
of period 6,354,952 5,612,161 6,284,179 

Net position, end 
of period $6,050,796 $5,289,738 $6,050,796 

Year-to-date 
February 28, 2013 

(53,029,877) 
(1, 735, 711) 

83,352 
(24,060) 

(54,706,296) 

93,778 

5,195,960 

$5,289,738 



Legislative Report to Lottery Board 
April2014 

Federal Update 

As you know, we've been following developments regarding Internet gaming for at least 
a few years now and have regularly given you updates about happenings around the 
country. 

On the federal level, those involved in Internet gaming discussions essentially fall into 
three groups: Those who would establish federal regulation and taxation of Internet 
gaming; those who support a federal ban of Internet gaming; and those who believe that 
state's rights should prevail when it comes to decisions concerning Internet gaming. 

As we discussed at previous Board meetings, two bills that would establish federal 
regulation of Internet gaming have been introduced in the current session of Congress, 
but they have yet to make a major advancement in the process. One of the bills is from 
U.S. Rep. Peter King, a Republican from New York, who would legalize Internet 
wagering and establish federal licensing and regulation under the U.S. Secretary of 
Treasury. The other bill is sponsored primarily by U.S. Rep. Joe Barton, a Republican 
from Texas, who would legalize Internet poker and establish federal licensing and 
regulation for it under the U.S. Secretary of Commerce. 

In March, U.S. Senator Lindsey Graham, a Republican from South Carolina, and 
Congressman Jason Chaffetz, a Republican from Utah, introduced legislation they call 
the Restoration of America's Wire Act, which they say is designed to restore the long
standing interpretation that the Wire Act bans all forms of Internet gambling. 

In late March, NASPL (the North American Association of State and Provincial Lotteries, 
of which Iowa is a member), wrote to Sen. Graham, expressing concerns that the 
Graham-Chaffetz bill may interfere with or make illegal traditional lottery games. 

Earlier this month, two organizations representing state lawmakers, the National 
Conference of State Legislators (NCSL) and the National Council of Legislators from 
Gaming States (NCLGS), each submitted a letter to Congressional leadership opposing 
the Graham-Chaffetz proposal. 

Copies of all three letters are attached. 

We anticipate that Internet gaming will remain an ongoing topic of discussion in 
Congress, but it is very definitely a complicated situation now. We will continue to 
emphasize that the federal government should not infringe on states' rights to 
implement and regulate Internet gaming within their own borders. And we will monitor 
developments to keep you updated. 



State Update 

Here in Iowa, there has been little discussion of Internet gaming during the current 
legislative session. The lottery has been following several pieces of legislation that deal 
with the general workings of state government, but no proposals specifically dealing 
with lottery issues made serious advancement in the Legislature this year. 

Governor Branstad's two appointees to the Iowa Lottery Board were confirmed April 1 
by the Iowa Senate. The Senate voted 49-0 (with one senator absent) to approve the 
appointments of Mike Klappholz of Cedar Rapids and Ying Sa of Des Moines to the 
Lottery Board. Their terms will begin May 1. Klappholz, our current Board chair, will be 
serving his third term on the Board, while Sa, the founder and Principal Certified Public 
Accountant at Community CPA & Associates Inc. in Des Moines, will begin her first 
term. 

Mike Klappholz Ying Sa 



March 31,2014 

The Honorable Lindsey Graham 
290 Russell Senate Office Building 
Washington, DC 20510 

Dear Senator Graham: 

••• 
~···r.·\ 
~·-.·l· •.\V..~I ••• 

NASPL 
Nonh A~•k.,, As ><>Cia lion 
ol State & PtoYin<lal Lotte~s 

I am writing you today as Executive Director of the North American Association of State and Provincial 
Lotteries (NASPL) regarding your legislation to restore the Wire Act as it relates to using the Internet 
for on-line gambling. We sincerely appreciate you and your staff working with us and thank you for 
your willingness to listen and act on most lottery concerns, and are grateful that your intent is not to 
dismpt lottery games which were in effect prior to the DOJ mling in December 2011. 

Our Association believes, and is on record, that all gaming should be left up to the individual states to 
detetmine the games that are offered, as well as the manner in which they are being delivered to their 
customers. This is, and has always been, a state's right to make these decisions as they relate to gaming 
within its respective boarders. Since lottery products are sold in a competing market, it is important that 
we continue to design and offer secure games that people want to play so that lottery states can continue 
to fund the much-needed programs and/or services for which lottery revenues are earmarked. 

We look foxward to our continuing conversations and we are grateful that you and your staff have been 
open and willing to allow us to participate in discussions to this point and moving foxward. It is our 
intent, and indeed our obligation, to protect our traditional games and to position our industry for 
growth. 

Please feel free to contact me at any time as we move through these critical deliberations. 

Sincerely, 

David B. Gale 
Executive Director 



NATIONAL CONFEK.ENCE of STATE LEGISLATUK.ES 

April 3, 2014 

The Honorable Harry Reid 
Majority Leader 
U.S. Senate 
Washington, D.C. 20510 

The Honorable John Boehner 
Speaker of the House 
U.S. House of Representatives 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Tht Forum for America's Ideas 

The Honorable Mitch McConnell 
Minority Leader 
U.S. Senate 
Washington, D.C. 20510 

The Honorable Nancy Pelosi 
Minority Leader 
U.S. House of Representatives 

\·Vashington, D.C. 20515 

Re: NCSL Opposition to the Restoration of America's Wire Act 

Dear Senators Reid and McConnell, Speaker Boehner and Leader Pelosi: 

Druce W. St o rr 
S t nalor 
Ortt,on 
Pruidtnt, NCSL 

T h o m as \V . W ri g h t 
Chit/ of Staff to Sptoktr 
AlaJk.tl 
Stoff Choir, NCSL 

W illia m T . P o u n d 
ExuNiil't Dirul~r 

On behalf of the National Conference of State Legislatures (NCSL), we write to express our strong 
opposition to the Restoration of America's \Vire Act, and urge you to respect the sovereignty of states to 
decide whether or not to allow gambling, and in particular online gambling. 

Since its inception, NCSL has resisted unwarranted preemptions of state laws and federal legislation that 
threatens state authority and autonomy- especially in areas of successfully demonstrated state stewardship 
like gambling. States have proven that they are effective regulators of the gambling industry and the 
proponents of tlus legislation fail to make a case that we have been negligent in our responsibilities to the 
industry and consumers. This attempt to enact a wholesale prohlbition of online gambling with the 
Restoration of America's \Vire Act is merely a solution seeking a problem. 

Since tl1e 2011 Department of Justice opinion clarifying the scope of the Wire Act, Delaware, Nevada, New 
Jersey and tl1e U.S. Virgin Islands have legalized some form of online gambling witl1in tl1eir state, while Utah 
and Maine have acted to forbid such activity. Many more states are considering bills tl1at would authorize, 
expand or restrict Internet gambling as well. This is the way it should work, each state making the decision 
tl1at is best suited to tl1e desires of its residents and not tl1rough a congressional mandate. 

\Ve appreciate the opportunity to express the views of our colleagues across tl1e country on this topic. We 
respectfully request tl1e state legislative perspective be considered as Congress continues to examine tlUs issue. 
If you have any questions regarding the concerns of state legislatures or would like to discuss tl1e issue 
further, please contact James Ward Games.ward@ncsl.org; 202-624-8683) or Jeff Hurley 
Geff.hurley@ncsl.org; 202-624-7753) in NCSL's WaslUngton, D.C. office. 

Sincerely, 

Senator Bruce Starr 
Oregon Senate 
NCSL President 

Senator Debbie Smith 
Nevada Senate 
NCSL President-Elect 

cc: Members of tl1e United States Senate and House of Representatives 

Denver 
7700 East First Place 
Dwvtr, C olorado 80230 
Pho11e 303.364. 7700 Fax 303. 3 64.7800 

W ashington 
444 North CapitolS /reel, N. W'. Suite 51 5 
lf7ashillgloll, D.C. 20001 
Pho11e 2 02.624.5400 F ax 2 02.737. 1069 

IF'ebsile WJVJV.11csl.org 
E 111ail injo@11CJI. org 



NCLGS 
PRESIDENT 
Representative James W. ''Jim" W11.ldman 
District 96 - 4800 West Copans Road 
Coconut Creek, FL 33063 
1': 954-956-5600 F: 954-956-5602 

April 9, 2014 

The Honorable Patrick Leahy 
Chairman, Committee on the Judiciary 
U.S. Senate 
437 Russell Senate Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20510 

The Honorable Chuck Grassley 
Ranking Member, Committee on the Judiciary 
U.S. Senate 
135 Hart Senate Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20510 

The National Council of Legislators from 
Gaming States 

NATIONAl. OI'FICn 
3!15 Jordan Road 
'I'roy, NY 12180 

(SIR) 6B7-0615l'IIONI! 
(518) 687-0401 FAX 

The Honorable Bob Goodlatte 
Chairman, Committee on the Judiciary 
U.S. House of Representatives 
2309 Rayburn House Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

The Honorable John Conyers 
Ranking Member, Committee on the Judiciary 
U.S. House of Representatives 
2426 Rayburn House Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Senators Leahy and Grassley, and Representatives Goodlatte and Conyers: 

As leaders of the National Council of Legislators from Gaming States (NCLGS) and as fellow elected officials, we 
urge you to oppose recently introduced House Biii4301/Senate Bill 2159, "The Restoration of America's Wire 
Act." This legislation, proposing to amend the Wire Act to prohibit transmission of wagering information for 
all types of gambling activities, including Internet gambling, would effectively preempt the states' historical 
ability to properly regulate gaming. It is our strong conviction, as legislators who chair and are members of 
the legislative committees that work diligently to develop sound public gaming policy, that states are the most 
appropriate entity to decide upon, and oversee, what kind of gaming should exist and what should not within 
their borders. 

States have the expertise, developed over many years of experience, to oversee gaming for the best outcomes 
to the states and their consumers. Recognizing this, Congress in the Interstate Horse Racing Act found that 
"the States should have the primary responsibility for determining what forms of gambling may legally take 
place within their borders," not only terrestrially, but via "electronic media." 

To be clear, NCLGS does not support or oppose legalization of Internet gaming and realizes that technological 
advances in gaming-Internet or otherwise-present multiple social and economic policy issues to be 
considered. NCLGS is currently working on a State Internet Gaming Policy Framework to safeguard both states 
that wish to participate in Internet gaming and those that do not. 

States like Delaware, Nevada, New Jersey, Utah, and Maine have recently passed bills to expand, legalize, or 
prohibit Internet gaming, and many others are currently considering measures. We assert that each state can 
and should determine what will best reflect and serve the needs of its residents. 

Thank you for the consideration of our perspective, which we ask that you bear in mind as Congress 
deliberates upon this issue. 

Sincerely, u "'"' ~-'{--
Rep. Jim Waldman, FL 
NCLGS President 

~11).~ 
Rep. Helene Keeley, DE 
NCLGS Secretary 



cc: The Honorable Harry Reid, Majority Leader, U.S. Senate 
The Honorable Mitch McConnell, Minority Leader, U.S. Senate 
The Honorable John Boehner, Speaker, U.S. House of Representatives 
The Honorable Nancy Pelosi, Minority Leader, U.S. House of Representatives 
The Honorable Kelly Ayotte, U.S. Senate 
The Honorable Emanuel Cleaver, U.S. House of Representatives 
The Honorable Tulsi Gabbard, U.S. House of Representatives 
The Honorable James Lankford, U.S. House of Representatives 
The Honorable Jim Matheson, U.S. House of Representatives 
The Honorable Frank Wolf, U.S. House of Representatives 
U.S. Senate Judiciary Committee Members 
U.S. House of Representatives Judiciary Committee Members 

k:/nclgs/2014/8001037 



OFFER TO BUY AND ACCEPTANCE 

To lA LOTTERY AUTHORITY (herein designated as Sellers), THE UNDERSIGNED (herein 
designated as Buyers) hereby offer to buy the real property situated in Polk County, Iowa, 
located at and briefly described as 2323 Grand Ave. Des Moines. lA 50312 , and legally 
described as W 23F LT 7 & ALL LT 8 OP LT 13 OP SW 1/4 SEC 5-78-24; AND LTS 1 & 5 & -EX E 88F N 
150F- E 
IOOF LT 6 OP LT 14 OP SW 1/4 SEC 5-78-24 (the "Property"), together with any easements and 
servient estates appurtenant thereto and subject to zoning restrictions, restrictive covenants, 
existing leases, easements and mineral reservation, if any, and agree to pay you for such Property 
the sum of$/, bOO • .x;>O • .::Vprovided Buyers, on possession, are permitted to use the Property 

i • 
for general office and educational uses AS FOLLOWS: 

$ {~0 ()0 O.OObe paid as Eames! Money and then held in trust by Hubbell Commercial Brokers, 
· L.C .. d/bta/ CBRE/Hubbell Commercial(hereinafter referred to as Broker) upon acceptance of this 
offer, pending Closing or other disposition as provided herein, and the balance upon delivery of 
warranty deed (or upon execution of a real estate contract as hereinafter provided). 

I. FINANCING PROVISIONS. 

CASH: Buyer will pay the balance of the purchase price in cash at the time of closing with 
adjustment for closing costs to be added to or deducted from this amount. This 
agreement is not contingent upon Buyer obtaining financing. 

2. TAXES, SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND CHARGES. 
a.) Sellers shall pay all real estate taxes that are liens for prior years and all those due 

and payable in fiscal year in which possession is given. 
b.) All real estate taxes for the fiscal year in which possession is given, due and 

payable in the following fiscal year, shall be prorated belween Seller and Buyer as 
of fhe date of possession, based upon applicable assessed value of the real 
Property that will be used to calculate the taxes that are being prorated and the 
last actual real estate lax levy used to calculate payable real Property taxes. 
Buyers shall be given a credit at closing for such pro-ration based upon the last 
known actual real estate taxes payable. 

c.) All special assessments reported by the Abstractor or spread on the Treasure(s 
Books at the time of delivery of deed or formal installment contract are to be paid 
by Sellers. All charges for solid waste removal, sewage, other utilities, and 
assessments for maintenance attributable to Selle(s possession are to be paid by 
Sellers. 

d.) All subsequent taxes and special assessments are to be paid by Buyers. 

3. POSSESSION AND SETTLEMENT. Possession of the Properly shall be conveyed to Buyer at 
Closing. Closing shall occur thirty days from final Board approval, or a date to be mutually 
agreed upon in writing by Buyers and Sellers, but in no case prior to August I, 2014, and no 
later than February I, 2015, and adjustment of interest and rents shall be made of like date. 
If Possession of the Properly is to be given to Buyers prior to Closing, Buyer and Seller agree 
that the terms of such arrangement shall be determined outside of this Agreement. Sellers 
agree to permit Buyers to inspect the Property within 24 hours prior to Possession to assure 
the Properly is in the condition required by this Agreement. At Closing, Buyer shall deliver 
to Sellers the balance of the Purchase Price and Sellers shall convey title to the Property to 

1 



Buyer by warranty deed, free and clear of all liens, restrictions. and encumbrances. except 
as expressly provided In this Agreement. 

At Closing, Seller and Buyer shall deliver signed closing statements and any other closing 
documents reasonably necessary to effect this transaction. 

4. INSURANCE. Sellers shall bear the risk of loss or damage to the Property prior to possession 
or closing. whichever first occurs. Sellers agree to maintain the existing Insurance on this 
Property In force and to have such policies endorsed to protect the Interest of Buyers until 
the date of possession. If Buyers do not consider the existing Insurance adequate they 
may procure additional Insurance, at their own expense, to protect their Interest. In the 
event of substantial damage or destruction prior to closing, Buyer, at Its elecllon, may 
terminate this Agreement. The Properly shall be deemed substantially damaged or 
destroyed if It cannot be restored to Its present condition on or before the closing dale. 
Provided, however. Buyers shall have the right to complete the closing and receive 
Insurance proceeds regardless of the extent of the damages. 

5. FIXTURES. All fixtures that Integrally belong to or are a part of the real estate, whether 
attached or detached, such as wall to wall carpeting, light fixtures, shutters, shades, rods. 
blinds, venetian blinds, awnings, storm windows, storm doors, screens, television aerial, 
water softeners (except rentals), air conditioning equipment other than window type, door 
chimes, built In items and electrical service cables, fencing, trees. bushes, shrubs and plants 
and the following personal Property Items: NA 

The transfer of furniture or fixtures not Included herein shall be detailed In a separate 
agreement. 

6. CONDITION OF PROPERTY. The properly, as of the date of this Agreement Including 
buildings, grounds. and all Improvements will be preserved by Sellers in its present condition 
until possession, ordinary wear and tear excepted. Buyers shall be permitted to make an 
Inspection of the property prior to possession or closing whichever Is sooner, In order to 
determine tho! there has been no change In the condition of the property, Seller has 
provided Buyer detailed documentation outlining the condition of the property and Buyer 
Is aware of the age of the HVAC system. Seller will make reasonable maintenance/repairs 
to the HVAC system while also knowing that the Buyer intends to conduct a full renovation 
of the HVAC system. In the event that the HVAC system falls prior to Buyer's possession, 
Seller will not be bound to replace II. Seller represents that the property will remain cared 
for and operated In a reasonable manner while agreement is under contract. 

7. COVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. Seller hereby warrants and represents 
to Buyer, which warranties and representations shall survive the closing, that as of the 
dale of this Agreement and as of the closing date, to the best of Seller's knowiedge: 

(a) There are no claims, actions or legal proceedings pending, and to the best of 
Seller's knowledge, no threat thereof or any basis therefore, with respect to Seller or the 
Property that would adversely affect the Property or Seller's ability to perform this 
Agreement. Such claims, actions, or legal proceedings Include but are not limited to any 
pending or threatened condemnation proceedings affecting the Property, any 
contemplated public Improvements that may result in special assessments or otherwise 
materially adversely affect the Property, any existing, or any pending or threatened 
governmental agency or court orders requiring repair, alteration or correction of any 
condition affecting the Property, or any oral or written notice from any federal, state or 
local authority having jurisdlcllon over the Property of any violations of applicable law, 

2 



statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or orders affecting the Property. any oral or written 
notice from any authority having jurisdiction over the Property of any proposal to change 
the zoning classification or to Impose land use restrictions applicable to the Property. 
Seller shall immediately notify and deliver to Buyer a copy of any such notice received by 
Seller on or prior to Closing. 

(b) If prior to the closing any port of the Property is subject to a bona fide threat of 
condemnation by a body having the power of eminent domain, or Is taken by eminent 
domain or condemnation (or sold In lieu thereof). Seller shall provide written notice 
thereof to Buyer, and Buyer may, In Buyer's sole d~cretlon. elect to terminate this 
Agreement by written notice to Seller. If Buyer elects to terminate this Agreement. all 
Earnest Money paid hereunder shall be Immediately returned to Buyer, and both parties 
shall be relieved from any further liability under this Agreement. If Buyer does not elect to 
terminate this Agreement. It shall remain In full force and effect, and the full Purchase 
Price for the Property shall not be adjusted; provided, however, Buyer shall receive notice 
of and be entitled to control over all negotiations or meetings with the condemning 
authorities, and Seller shall at closing, assign, transfer and set over to Buyer. all of Seller's 
right. title and Interest In and to any awards made or to be made In connection with 
such taking. 

(c) Seller has good right. title and authority to convey title to the Property In the 
manner set forth In this Agreement. There ore no existing contracts or other agreements 
for sale of the Property, or any portion thereof, or giving any other party any rights in the 
Property or any portion thereof. Seller Is in full possession of the entire Property and there 
Is no other party who occupies any portion of the Property, except for any tenant under 
a written lease that has been furnished to Buyer and that Buyer will assume at closing. or 
who may claim any Interest in the Property or any portion thereof by reason of adverse 
possession. prescriptive easement or establishment of a boundary by acquiescence. 
There are no private. unrecorded agreements, contracts, deeds or easements that 
restrict or prohibit use of Property for commercial uses or that affect any portion of 
Property. 

(d) In the event that at any time prior to Closing, Seller shall receive oral or written 
notice of any matter that would change any of the representations made In subsections 
(a), (b), and (c) of this section, Seller shall immediately notify Buyer of such Information. 

8. ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITION. At closing. a Groundwater Hazard Statement will be filed by 
Sellers regarding the following: 1. wells; 2. solid waste disposal; 3. hazardous wastes; 4. 
underground storage tanks; and 5. private burial/cemetery plots located on the Property. 
These representations shall also run to Buyers and shall show the absence of any such 
conditions, except as shown as on Other Provisions. Buyers, at their expense, within ninety 
(90) days after acceptance of this Offer, may have the Property Inspected for the 
presence or suspected presence of any substances coming within the definition of 
hazardous wastes or substances, pollutants, or contaminates under any state or federal 
law. rule or regulation, including. but not limited to, asbestos and polychlorinated 
biphenyls; or the presence of underground storage tanks. If any such substances, 
pollutants. contaminants or underground storage tanks are found, then Buyer may 
terminate this Agreement by written notice to Sellers. and upon such notice of termination, 
any earnest money shall be returned to Buyers and thereafter neither party shall have any 
further rights or obligations with respect to this Agreement. 

9. GENERAL REPRESENTATIONS. 

3 



a.) Buyers understand and agree that the Broker. Its agents, employees and associates 
make no representations or warranties as to the physical or mechanical condition of the 
Property, Its size, value, future value, or income potential. 
b.) Sellers and Buyers acknowledge that the Sellers have a legal duly to disclose Material 
Defects In the condition of the real estate or Improvements of which Sellers have actual 
knowledge and which a reasonable Inspection by the Buyers would not reveal. 
c.) Sellers and Buyers each represent to the other that the only real estate brokers who 
have represented them are as shown on the Dlsclosore of Agency Relationship, dated 
March 14. 2014. a copy of which is attached. 

10. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO CLOSING. In the event any of the conditions set forth In this 
provision shall not have been fulfilled on or before the deadline for satisfaction of such 
condition. Buyer, in Its sole discretion. may terminate this Agreement by giving written 
notice thereof to Seller on or before such expiration dale, and shall receive a refund of 
all of the earnest money deposit. Buyer's obligation to perform Its part of this Agreement 
on the Closing date Is conditioned upon the fulfillment of the following events on or 
before the date specified. 

(a) Buyer shall have, at Its sole cost and expense, nlnefy (90)days after the date this 
Agreement Is fully executed by both parties, to Inspect and review the Property, 
the leases on the Property and Seller's books and records with respect to the 
operation of the Property, Oncludlng conducting such soil tests, environmental 
tests, surveys, and other engineering and feasibility tests and studies as It 
determines appropriate), itself and/or with the assistance of others, and 
determined, In Its sole and absolute discretion. that the Property Is In sound 
condition, suitable for the purposes for which Buyer Intends to use the Property 
and meets the criteria and expectations of Buyer. On or before the expiration of 
this nlnefy (90) day period, Buyer may declare this Agreement null and 
void. Should Buyer make such a declaration, Buyer shall be entitled to a refund 
of all earnest money deposited by Buyer. The tentative schedule: 

I. Upon Buyer's removal of due diligence, the final execution of the 
transaction will be contingent upon approval from the Iowa Lottery 
Authority Board. Seller will have thirty (30) days to obtain this approval. 
In accordance with the Board's response, Seller will either terminate 
the agreement or move to closing via written notice delivered to the 
Buyer. Seller's Initial presentation to the Des Moines Public School 
Board- May 20, 2014 

II. Des Moines Public School Board to provide potential approval - June 
3, 2014 

Ill. Buyer to present final offer to Iowa lottery Authority Board for approval 
no later than July 3, 2014 

iv. Schedule Is subject to change within due diligence period Identified 
and as mutually communicated and agreed upon by both parties. 

Buyer shall protect. defend, indemnify and hold harmless Seller from any and all claims, 
liabilities, damages and expenses, Including reasonable attorney fees, from any damage 
to persons or Property or any violation of law arising from Buyer's entry upon the Property 
to conduct any such tests prior to Closing and from any mechanic's /len arising from such 
work: and Buyer shall restore any damage to the Properly caused by any such entry or 
testing. This covenant shall survive the termination of this Agreement prior to Closing and 
Closing. 

4 



The fulfillment of these terms and conditions precedent are for the benefit of Buyer: and 
Buyer may, In Its sole and absolute discretion, wolve conditionally or absolutely the 
fulfillment of any one or more of these conditions, or any part thereof, at any time, or 
may declare any such condition to be fulfilled: provided, however, any such waiver or 
declaration shall be binding upon Buyer only if made in a writing signed by Buyer and 
delivered to Seller. 

11. ABSTRACT AND TITLE. Within fifteen (15) days after the execution of this Offer by both 
parties, the Seller shall continue and pay for the abstract of title, to and Including the date 
of acceptance of this Offer, and deliver the abstract to the Buyer for examination by an 
attorney licensed to practice law In Iowa. The abstract of tifte shall show merchantable 
title In Seller to the Property In conformity with this Agreement, the Land Title Law of the 
State of Iowa and the Iowa Land Tifte Standards of the Iowa State Bar Association. Buyer 
shall deliver to Seller a copy of the title opinion of Buyer's counsel, and Seller shall have a 
reasonable time thereafter, not to exceed the greater of until the scheduled clo~ng or 
thirty (30) days, to correct any title objections. If Seller shall fall to have such objections 
removed prior to closing. Buyer may, at Its sole discretion, either 0) terminate this 
Agreement without liability on its part. and In which event it shall receive a refund of its 
Earnest Money: (ii) If the objections are judgments, liens or the acquisition of others' 
Interest In the Property that may be removed by the expenditure of sums of money, take 
title to the Property, discharge such objections, and receive a credit against the 
Purchase Price for the amounts so expended: (ill) give the Seller a reasonable additional 
period of time stated in writing to cure such title objections: or (iv) take title subject to 
such objections. At closing, the abstract of tifte shall become the property of Buyer. 
Seller shall pay all costs for any additional abstracting ond/or title work due to any act or 
omission of Seller or his predecessor(s). 

12. SURVEY. If a Plat of Survey or Subdivision Plat Is required under Iowa Code Chapter 354, or 
city or county ordinances to convey good title, Sellers shall pay the costs thereof. Buyers 
may, at least ten (1 0) days prior to closing, have the Property surveyed at their expense. If 
the survey, certified by a Registered Land Surveyor, shows an encroachment on sold 
Property or if any Improvements located on the subject Property encroach on lands of 
others, such encroachments shall be treated as a title defect. 

13. DEED. Upon payment of purchase price, Sellers shall convey title by a warranty deed, free 
and clear of liens and encumbrances, reservations. exceptions or modifications except as 
In this Instrument otherwise expressly provided. 

14. FOR THE SEllERS: JOINT TENANCY IN PROCEEDS AND IN SECURITY RIGHTS IN REAl ESTATE. If, 
and only If, Sellers, Immediately preceding this offer, hold the tlfte to the above described 
Property In joint tenancy, and such joint tenancy Is not later destroyed by operafton of law 
or by acts of Sellers (1) then the proceeds of this sale. and any continuing and/or 
recaptured rights of Sellers In real estate shall be and continue In Sellers as joint tenants with 
rights of survivorship and not as tenants in common; and (2) Buyers In the event of the 
death of either Seller agrees to pay any balance of the proceeds of this sale to the 
surviving Seller and to accept deed from such surviving Seller. 

15. REMEDIES OF THE PARTIES· FORFEITURE· FORECLOSURE· REAl ESTATE COMMISSIONS. 
a.) If the Seller falls to fulfill this Agreement, he will pay to the Broker the regular 

commission in full, and the Buyers shall have the right to have all payments returned 
or to proceed by any actions at law or In equity, and the Sellers agree to pay costs 
and attorney fees, and a receiver may be appointed. 

5 



b.) If the Buyers fall to fulfill this Agreement, the Sellers may forfeit the same as provided 
In the Code of Iowa, and all payments made herein shall be forfeited and to the 
extent of the commission It shall first be paid to the Broker In full discharge of Seller's 
obligation for commission to the Broker and the balance, if any. shall be paid to 
and become the Property of the Seller. 

c.) In addition to. the foregoing remedies, Buyers and Sellers each shall be entitled to 
any and all other remedies. or action at law or in equity, Including foreclosure, and 
the party at fault shall pcy costs and attorney fees, and a receiver may be 
appointed. 

16. APPROVAL OF COURT. If this Property Is an asset of any estate, trust or guardianship, this 
contract shall be subject to Court approval. unless declared unnecessary by the Buyers' 
attorney. If necessary, the appropriate fiduciary shall proceed promptly and diligently to 
bring the matter on for hearing for Court approval. On the event the Court Officer's Deed 
shall be used). 

17. CONTRACT BINDING ON SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST. This contract shall apply to and bind the 
successors In Interest of the respective parties. 

18. NOTICE. Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be deemed given 
when It Is received In writing by hand delivery, overnight express delivery or certified mall, 
postage prepaid, receipt return, addressed to the other party at the address listed below, 
or at such other address or to such other person as such party designates by a written 
notice to the other party. A copy of such notice shall also be sent to Broker. 

19. GENERAL PROVISIONS. In the performance of each part of this Agreement time shall be of 
the essence. Failure to promptly assert rights herein shall not, however. be a waiver of any 
existing or subsequent default. This Agreement shall apply to and bind the successors In 
Interest of the parties. This Agreement shall survive the closing. This Agreement contains 
the entire agreement of the parties and shall not be amended except by a written 
Instrument duly signed by SELLERS and BUYERS. Paragraph headings are for convenience 
of reference and shall not limit or affect the meaning of this Agreement. Words and 
phrases herein shall be construed as In the singular or plural number, and as masculine, 
feminine or neuter gender according to context. 

20. BOARD APPROVAL. This contract Is not valid without the approval of the Board of 
Directors of the Des Moines Independent Community School District ("Board"), which 
approval will be evidenced by the execution of this contract by the president and 
secretary of the Board, 

21, BROKER FEES. If the Property Is listed with a real estate Broker, the Sellers shall pay a 
commission as set forth in the listing agreement and such commission shall be split equally 
between the listing Broker and CBRE/Hubbell Commercial. If the Property is not listed, the 
Sellers shall pay the Broker a commission of 3% of the sale price payable at Closing. 

22. ACCEPTANCE. When accepted, this Offer shall become a binding contract for the sale 
and purchase of the above described premises. If this Offer Is not accepted by the Sellers 
on or before , 2014, it shall become null and void and the 
Initial payment shall be repaid to the Buyers without liability on the part of Broker to either 
party. 

23. GOVERNING LAW. This Purchase Agreement Is made and executed under and In all 
respects Is to be governed and construed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 

6 



THIS IS A LEGALLY BINDING CONTRACT. IF NOT UNDERSTOOD, SEEK LEGAL ADVICE. 

BUYERS COMPANY NAME: Des Moines Public Schools 

BUYERS NAME: Bill G2S'd ~~ 

'""'"'oNAruo" ~ 

,. 
/ 

·' 

BUYERS ADDRESS: 1917 Dean, Des Moines, lA 50316·--------------

BUYERS SS#:. _________________________ _ 

BUYERS TAX ID#: _______________________ _ 

BUYERS PHONE NUMBER: .t>l5u15>;J.I_t,2~42<:J-8;,;3"'-2'-1 -----------------

ACCEPTANCE 

SELLERS ADDRESS:------------------------

SELLERS SS#: ________________________ _ 

SELLERS TAX ID#: ------------------------

SELLERS PHONE NUMBER: _____________________ _ 

Document! 

7 



Final Board Approval 

STATE OF IOWA COUNTY OF POLK 

BUYER 

DES MOINES INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By: ____________________ _ 

President 

By: ------------------c--
Secretary 

This Instrument was acknowledged before me on by 
,------------:-::--and as President and Secretary of the Des Moines 
Independent Community School District, respectively. 

Notary Public 

8 



AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF 

PULL-TAB TICKETS 

AND RELATED SERVICES 

Apri/1, 2014 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 1. Identity of parties 
SECTION 2. Purpose 
SECTION 3. Documents Incorporated by reference 
SECTION 4. Definitions 
SECTION 5. Term 
SECTION 6. Statement of work 
SECTION 7. Compensation 
SECTION 8. Insurance 
SECTION 9. Bonds 
SECTION 10. Intellectual Property 
SECTION 11. Contractor Representations and Warranties 
SECTION 12. Indemnification 
SECTION 13. Default and Termination 
SECTION 14. Confidential Information 
SECTION 15. Contract Administration 
SECTION 16. Execution 

SCHEDULE A SCOPE OF SERVICES 
SECTION 1. General Description of Work 
SECTION 2. Ticket Specifications 
SECTION 3. Packaging 
SECTION 4. Delivery 
SECTION 5. Reports and Other Deliverables 
SECTION 6. Marketing 
SECTION 7. Security 

SCHEDULE B PRICING MATRIX 
SECTION 1. Pricing for Games and Other Material 
SECTION 2. New Game Development 
SECTION 3. One Time Set-Up Charge 
SECTION 4. Additional Product Pricing 

1 
1 
1 
2 
3 
3 
4 
7 
9 
10 
13 
14 
14 
16 
17 
24 

25 
25 
25 
29 
30 
30 
31 
32 

34 
34 
34 
34 
34 



AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
PULL-TAB TICKETS 

AND RELATED SERVICES 

This Agreement for the purchase of Pull-Tab Tickets and Related Services 
("Agreement") is entered into by and between the Iowa Lottery Authority ("Lottery'') and Pollard 
Games, Inc. doing business as American Games. American Games is a subsidiary of Pollard 
Banknote Limited ("American Games" or "Contractor"). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, the sufficiency of 
which is acknowledged, it is agreed as follows: 

SECTION 1. IDENTITY OF THE PARTIES. 

1.1 The Lottery is an instrumentality of the state of Iowa whose address is 2323 Grand Avenue, 
Des Moines, lA 50312. The Lottery is authorized by Iowa Code chapter 99G to conduct a lottery 
in the State of Iowa. 

1.2 Pollard Games, Inc. dba American Games is a corporation established under the laws of 
Delaware. American Games is engaged in the business, among other things, of printing pull
tab tickets. The address for Contractor is 504 34th Avenue, Council Bluffs, lA 51501. 

SECTION 2. PURPOSE. The Lottery is desirous of hiring a pull-tab ticket manufacturer to 
produce pull-tab tickets and provide related services for pull-tab games intended to be sold to 
Lottery customers. The Contractor designs and manufactures pull-tab lottery tickets for use by 
various domestic and international government-sanctioned lotteries. The Contractor has the 
requisite skill, expertise, and personnel required to assist the Lottery in producing pull-tab tickets 
and to provide related services for the production of pull-tab games. 

SECTION 3. DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE. 

3.1 Incorporation of Proposal Documents. The Request for Proposal number IL-14-02 
(RFP) and the Contractor's proposal in response to this RFP, together with any clarifications, 
addenda or other writings of the Lottery or Contractor (collectively, the Proposal) are 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference as if fully set forth in this Agreement. 

3.2 Contents of Agreement. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement consists of this 
document as well as the RFP and the Proposal and that the parties are obligated to perform as 
set forth in the RFP and the Proposal to the same extent that they are obligated to perform the 
specific duties set forth in this document. 

3.3 Order of Preference. In the case of any inconsistency or conflict between the specific 
provisions of this document, the RFP or the Proposal, any inconsistency or conflict shall be 
resolved as follows: 

3.3.1 First by giving preference to the specific provisions of any addendum or 
amendment this document. 
3.3.2 Second, by giving preference to the specific provisions of this document. 
3.3.3 Third, by giving preference to the specific provisions of the Proposal. 

1 



3.3.4 Fourth, by giving preference to the specific provisions of any clarifications to the 
RFP. 
3.3.5 Fifth, by giving preference to the specific provisions of the RFP. 

3.4 Intent of References to Bid Documents. The references to the parties' obligations, which 
are contained in this document, are intended to change, supplement or clarify the obligations as 
stated in the RFP and the Proposal. The failure of the parties to make reference to the terms of 
the RFP or Proposal in this document shall not be construed as creating a conflict and will not 
relieve the Contractor of the contractual obligations imposed by the terms of the RFP and the 
Proposal. Terms offered in the Proposal, which exceed the requirements of the RFP, shall not 
be construed as creating an inconsistency or conflict with the RFP or this document. The 
contractual obligations of the Lottery cannot be implied from the Proposal. 

3.5 Incorporation of Working Papers. 

3.5.1 Working Papers executed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference as if written here at the time of execution. 
Any inconsistency between the Working Papers and the terms of this Agreement shall be 
resolved by first giving effect to the terms of the Working Papers. Any inconsistency between 
the Working Papers and the RFP or the Proposal shall be resolved by first giving effect to the 
Working Papers, then to the RFP, and finally to the Proposal. 

3.5.2 The Contractor represents and warrants to the Lottery that it will use its best 
efforts to produce additional tickets (reorders) of a game, according to the specifications set 
forth in the previously executed Working Papers, throughout the term of this Agreement upon 
written purchase order request by the Lottery. 

3.5.3 Where this Agreement provides that a particular characteristic of a ticket will be 
specified by the Lottery, the specification will be made in the Working Papers. 

SECTION 4. DEFINITIONS. The following words shall have the meanings set forth below. 
Words in the singular shall be held to include the plural and vice versa, and words of gender 
shall be held to include any other gender as the context requires. For the purposes of this 
Agreement, the following terms and all other terms defined in this Agreement shall have the 
meanings so defined unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 

4.1 "Delivery'' means the date of the Lottery's receipt of the tickets or completion of Services at 
the Lottery's designated location. 

4.2 "Working Papers" means the executed set of working papers as described in Schedule A, 
section 2.1.13, attached hereto. 

4.3 "Party'' means either of the legal entities identified in section 1 of this Agreement. 

4.4 "Services" means various types of support services as provided to the Lottery by American 
Games incidental to American Games production of pull-tab tickets including but not limited to 
game name searches or other services as requested by the Lottery from time to time. 

4.5 "Acceptance" means tickets that have been received and inspected by the Lottery and 
deemed acceptable. 

2 



4.6 'Working days" means days of the week excluding Saturday, Sunday, or legal holidays of 
the state of Iowa. 

4. 7 'Works" means all concepts, work and work product or any other idea or concept that would 
be considered intellectual property procured or created by the Contractor or its employees, 
agents or contractors for the Lottery. 

SECTION 5. TERM. The term of this Agreement will be from April1, 2014 through March 31, 
2015 with three (3) additional one-year option periods that may be exercised at the sole option 
of the Lottery. Any option period to renew shall be exercised in writing by the Lottery at least 
sixty (60) days prior to the end of the initial period, or any renewal thereof, or at a time mutually 
agreed upon by both parties. The Lottery may opt to award more than one renewal at a time, 
and may negotiate the terms of the renewal. 

SECTION 6. STATEMENT OF WORK. 

6.1 Scope of Goods and Services. The goods to be produced and the services to be 
performed pursuant to and as a result of this Agreement by the Contractor are described in 
Schedule A attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference. 

6.2 Amendments to Scope of Goods and Services. The parties agree that Schedule A. may 
be revised, replaced, amended or deleted at any time during the term of this Agreement to 
reflect changes in service or performance standards upon the mutual written consent of the 
parties. 

6.3 Applicability of the Agreement to Orders. The parties agree that the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement shall apply to all purchase orders, letter orders or other ordering 
documents issued by the Lottery and accepted in writing by the Contractor. 

6.4 Industry Standards. In the absence of a detailed specification for the performance of any 
portion of this Agreement, the parties agree that the applicable specification shall be the 
generally accepted industry standard for the manufacture of pull-tab tickets and related 
services. 

6.5 Personnel to Perform the Services. The Lottery reserves the right to disapprove of any 
subcontractor used by the Contractor or any employee of the Contractor or any subcontractor 
directly involved in ticket production. If the Lottery disapproves of any such person or 
subcontractor, the Contractor shall ensure that they are not involved in the production of the 
Lottery's tickets. The Contractor shall require its employees and the employees of any 
subcontractors involved in the direct production of tickets to submit to background investigations 
by the Lottery and to complete all background disclosure forms as may be required by the 
Lottery. Lottery reserves the right to require Contractor to reassign the development of Working 
Papers to another employee of the Contractor if Working Papers are consistently delivered with 
errors or persistent timeliness problems. 

6.6 Non-Exclusive Rights. The Lottery does not grant the Contractor the exclusive right to 
produce all Lottery pull-tab tickets during the term of this Agreement. In the event that the 
Lottery decides that the development, manufacture, and delivery of pull-tab tickets by another 
contractor is in the Lottery's best interests, the Lottery reserves the right to purchase pull-tab 
tickets from another contractor. The Lottery is not obligated to purchase any specific number of 
tickets from the Contractor during the term of this Agreement. 

3 



6.7 Ticket Purchase Restrictions. As stated in Iowa Code Chapter 99G.31(2){h), "No ticket 
or share issued by the authority shall be purchased by and no prize shall be paid to any officer, 
employee, agent, or subcontractor of any Contractor or to any spouse, child, brother, sister, or 
parent residing as a member of the same household in the principal place of residence or any 
such person if such officer, employee, agent, or subcontractor has access to confidential 
information which may compromise the integrity of the Lottery." 

SECTION 7. COMPENSATION. 

7.1 Pricing Matrix. The pricing matrix for the goods and services described in Schedule A is 
set forth in Schedule B. Travel and per diem expenses are treated as items of overhead and 
are not compensable as a separate item under this Agreement. 

7.2 Payment to Contractor. 

7.2.1 The Lottery agrees to pay Contractor for the actual number of conforming tickets 
delivered which do not exceed the delivery tolerance of+/- 5% of the ticket order quantity. 
Deliveries in excess of the ordered quantity plus the delivery tolerance may be accepted by the 
Lottery on consignment only. 

7 .2.2 The Lottery shall pay for tickets that conform to all of the specifications of this 
Agreement and the Working Papers and which are billable to the Lottery under this Agreement 
within (60) days as set forth in section 7 .2.4 after the "acceptance" of the tickets by the Lottery. 
"Acceptance" by the Lottery occurs only after the Lottery has inspected the delivered tickets. 
The Lottery will inspect the tickets received to determine if they are acceptable within five (5) 
working days of receipt of the tickets if reasonably possible, but in all events inspection shall be 
made within ten (10) working days of receipt of the tickets. For purposes of construing this 
section, "working days" do not include Saturdays, Sundays, or legal holidays of the state of 
Iowa. 

"Acceptance" by the Lottery pursuant to this section is only for the purpose of making 
payment to the Contractor and does not prevent the Lottery from later rejecting tickets based 
upon a defect which is discovered at a later date. 

The sum remitted by the Lottery will be based upon the price shown for the game 
ordered in the Working Papers. 

7.2.3 Acceptance by the Lottery pursuant to this section does not prevent the Lottery 
from returning tickets to the Contractor or later seeking any legal or equitable remedy against 
the Contractor if at any time the Lottery determines that tickets or materials do not conform to 
each and every requirement of this Agreement. 

7 .2.4 The Lottery shall pay all approved invoices in arrears and in conformance with 
Iowa Code Section 8A.514 and 11 lAC § 41.1 (2). The Lottery may vary the terms of this 
provision by paying the bill for services in less than 60 days as provided in Iowa Code Section 
8A.514. However, an election to pay in less than 60 days shall not act as an implied waiver of 
Iowa Code Section 8A.514. 

7.3 CPI Cost Adjustments. The costs in this Agreement shall allow for a price increase or 
decrease adjustment of the Contractor's price beginning with each of the contract extensions, if 
exercised by the Lottery. The Agreement will allow for an adjustment of the Contractor's price 
based on the percentage change in the National All Urban Consumer Price Index for the "all 
items" classification from January to January. The new price will be effective for all games 

4 



ordered after the effective date of any contract extension. The applicable increase or decrease 
for each renewal option period is equal to 100% of the CPI change. 

7.4 Set-Off Against Sums Owed by Contractor. In the event that the Contractor owes the 
Lottery or the state of Iowa any sum under the terms of this Agreement, any other Agreement, 
pursuant to any judgment, or pursuant to any law, the Lottery may set-off the sum owed to the 
Lottery or the State against any sum billed to the Lottery by the Contractor in the Lottery's sole 
discretion unless otherwise required by law. 

7.5 State not to be Obligated. Pursuant to Iowa Code Section 99G.38, the funds of the state 
of Iowa, as opposed to the funds of the Iowa Lottery Authority, are not available to meet the 
obligations of the Lottery that may arise from this Agreement. 

7.6 Cost of Printing Inspection. The Lottery may be present during the production of all ticket 
orders produced. Normal travel expenses relating to ticket inspections will be paid by the 
Lottery. 

7.7 Payments to Lottery. In the event that the Contractor owes the Lottery any sum under the 
terms of this Agreement, the Contractor will remit such sum to the Lottery within fourteen (14) 
calendar days of written notification by the Lottery that such sum is owed. 

7.8 Suspension of Payment. The Lottery may suspend all or part of the payment to the 
Contractor if the Contractor fails to perform as required by this Agreement until such time as the 
Contractor renders satisfactory performance. The amount of the payment suspended shall be 
reasonably calculated by the Lottery to represent only that part of the Contractor's payment 
which is attributable to the work not satisfactorily performed. The determination as to whether 
the contractor is in compliance with this Agreement shall be within the discretion of the Lottery. 

7.9 Liquidated Damages- Delivery of Non-conforming Tickets. 

7.9.1 After any test or inspection conducted by the Lottery, no more than 5 percent (5%) 
of the tickets of any particular game may fail to meet the requirements contained in the 
Agreement, schedules attached hereto, or the Working Papers. The Lottery will have the sole 
right to reject the non-conforming tickets or the entire order containing the non-conforming 
tickets. If the quantity of non-conforming tickets is such that the rejection of the tickets does not 
interrupt the scheduled sale of the game, the Contractor shall refund any purchase price paid for 
the non-conforming tickets and any related expenses. 

7.9.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for all costs and expenses related to the 
replacement, return or destruction of non-conforming tickets. The risk of loss on non
conforming tickets remains with the Contractor at all times prior to and after rejection and does 
not pass to the Lottery upon initial acceptance by the Lottery. The Lottery will pay the 
Contractor for conforming replacement tickets. 

7.9.3 If the quantity of non-conforming tickets is such that the game is terminated, 
interrupted or delayed, the failure to deliver conforming tickets will interfere with the Lottery's 
ability to maximize sales. Since the damages accruing to the Lottery for lost sales will be 
difficult or impossible to ascertain, the Contractor shall pay as liquidated damages for lost sales 
and not as a penalty, five thousand dollars ($5,000) per calendar day that the Lottery is unable 
to sell tickets of the game as originally scheduled and beginning with the fifteenth (15) calendar 
day the Contractor will be required to pay liquidated damages of seven thousand-five hundred 

5 



($7,500) per calendar day for each day that tickets are not sold as scheduled, limited to a 
maximum aggregate of $200,000. 

7.9.4 The Lottery may consider the delivery of non-conforming tickets in the amount of 5 
percent (5%) or more of the tickets of any particular game to be a material breach of this 
Agreement. The Lottery may then cancel this Agreement for cause and may concurrently seek 
any other remedy authorized by law, equity or this Agreement. Except as provided in section 
7.9.3, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting the Contractor's liability for 
damages, expenses or liabilities incurred by the Lottery as a result of the provision of non
conforming tickets or materials. 

7.9.5 Contractor shall pay all liquidated damage payments within fourteen (14) calendar 
days from receipt of notice from the Lottery that the damages have been incurred. If the 
required payment is not received by the Lottery within this time frame, the Lottery may withhold 
sums due to the Contractor under this or any other agreement and if sufficient funds are 
unavailable to the Lottery to satisfy the amount owed, the Lottery may call the required 
performance bond to satisfy the liquidated damages amount. 

7.9.6 The liquidated damages provided in this section are intended to compensate the 
Lottery for damages due only to lost ticket sales. The Lottery will also be entitled to additional 
damages in compensation of expenses, including without limitation, injury to reputation, 
advertising services and materials, promotional items and administrative time for which the 
Lottery does not receive full value as a consequence of non-conforming tickets. 

7.1 0 Liquidated Damages - Over-redemption. 

7.10.1 The parties agree that over-redemption occurs any time the Lottery pays or 
reimburses or appears to be obligated to pay or reimburse a licensed retailer, prize winners or 
any other persons or entities for pull-tab prizes which were not anticipated and approved by the 
Lottery in the Working Papers that are a result of the Contractor's error or an error of someone 
working on behalf of the Contractor and whether or not the Lottery is legally obligated to pay 
such prizes provided that a ticket appears to a reasonable lottery player to be a winner on its 
face or the ticket can be validated as a winner by the Lottery. 

7.1 0.2 If over-redemption occurs, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Lottery or the 
licensed retailer, prize winner or any other person or entity for all prize liabilities incurred which 
are attributable to over-redemption and to indemnify the Lottery as provided in section 14 of this 
Agreement for all liabilities, damages, losses, claims, suits or actions, costs, expenses, and 
attorney's fees, including fees attributable to time spent by the office of the Attorney General of 
Iowa, arising from the over-redemption. To determine the prize liability attributable to over
redemption, a prize consisting of a free ticket in any game shall be valued at 62% of the retail 
sale price of the ticket, and a product prize shall be valued at cost to the Lottery. 

7.1 0.3 If the Lottery interrupts a game due to over-redemption as defined above, the 
Contractor shall reimburse the Lottery for the aggregate of the Lottery's purchase price from the 
Contractor of any tickets not sold by the Lottery due to the interruption of the game and the 
expenses of the Lottery, including without limitation, advertising, promotion, legal fees and 
administrative time, for which the Lottery does not receive full value due to the interruption of the 
game. 

7.1 0.4 The Contractor will reimburse the Lottery's expenses on a proportionate basis 
that reflects the relationship, which the number of tickets unsold, has to the number of tickets 

6 



ordered in the game. In determining the percentage of tickets sold and unsold, the total, 
delivered quantity shall be used, unless all deliveries have not yet been made, in which case, 
the ordered quantity shall be used. In either case, the Lottery shall pay only for tickets actually 
sold to the public. 

7.10.5 If a game is interrupted as a result of over-redemption, the Contractor shall take 
all reasonable steps, including payment of overtime, to ensure that the Lottery obtains 
replacement tickets in the shortest possible time. The Contractor shall not charge the Lottery 
for any additional expenses incurred to facilitate the expedited delivery of replacement tickets. 

7.10.6 The Contractor's liability for over-redemption shall extend to all instances of over
redemption including instances discovered after the expiration, cancellation or termination of 
this Agreement. 

7.1 0. 7 The Lottery shall consider over-redemption as a material breach of this 
Agreement and may cancel this Agreement for cause and concurrently seek any other remedy 
authorized by law or this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting 
the Contractor's liability for damages, expenses or other liabilities incurred by the Lottery as a 
result of over-redemption. 

7.11 Liquidated Damages- Late Delivery. 

7.11.1 If tickets meeting the requirements of this Agreement are not delivered in 
accordance with the schedule set forth in the Working Papers the delay will interfere with the 
Lottery's ability to maximize sales. Since the damages accruing to the Lottery in the event of a 
delay in the delivery of tickets will be difficult or impossible to ascertain, the Contractor and the 
Lottery agree that the Contractor shall pay as liquidated damages for lost sales, and not as a 
penalty, five thousand ($5,000) dollars per calendar day that the contractor does not fully meet 
the delivery schedule in Working Papers for the first fourteen (14) calendar days during which 
the schedule is not met. Beginning with the fifteenth (15) calendar day following the scheduled 
delivery date, the Contractor will pay liquidated damages of seven thousand five hundred 
($7,500) dollars per calendar day for each day the schedule in the Working Papers is not met. 
Liquidated damages shall not exceed $200,000 and will be due within fourteen (14) calendar 
days from receipt of notice from the Lottery that the damages have been incurred by the 
Contractor. If the required payment is not received by the Lottery within this time frame, the 
Lottery may withhold sums due to the contractor under this or any other agreement and if 
sufficient funds are unavailable to the Lottery to satisfy the amount owed, the Lottery may call 
the required performance bond to satisfy the liquidated damages amount. 

7.12 Remedies. The remedies provided throughout this Agreement including, without 
limitation, the remedies associated with the receipt of non-conforming tickets, late delivery and 
over-redemption, are not intended to be exclusive and do not prevent either party from seeking 
any other legal or equitable remedy provided by applicable law or this Agreement. 

SECTION 8. INSURANCE. 

8.1 Coverage Requirements. The Contractor shall maintain in effect, with insurance 
companies of recognized responsibility, at its own expense, insurance covering its work during 
the entire term of this Agreement and any extensions or renewals. The Contractor's insurance 
shall, among other things, be occurrence based and shall insure against any loss or damage 
resulting from or related to the Contractor's performance of this Agreement regardless of the 
date the claim is filed or expiration of the policy. Only companies with a rating of A- or higher by 

7 



A.M. Best Company and are authorized to transact business in the state of Iowa shall issue 
insurance policies and certificates. All such insurance policies shall remain in full force and 
effect for the entire life of this Agreement. Proof of compliance with this section shall be 
provided by Contractor to the Lottery immediately upon execution of this Agreement. 

8.2 Types of Coverage. Unless otherwise requested by the Lottery, Contractor shall, at its 
sole cost, cause to be issued and maintained during the entire term of the contract the 
insurance coverage's set forth below each naming the Lottery as an additional insured's or loss 
payee, as applicable: 

Type of Insurance Limit Amount 
General Liability (Including contractual General Aggregate $2 million 
liability) written on an occurrence basis 

Products Completed $1 million 
Operations Aqqreqate 
Personal lniurv $1 million 
Each Occurrence $1 million 

Automobile Liability, including any auto, Combined Single limit $1 million 
hired autos and non-owned autos 

Errors and Omissions Policy Each Occurrence $1 million 

Excess Liability, Umbrella Form Each Occurrence $2 million 
Aqqreqate $2 million 

Workers Compensation and Employer As required by law 
Liability 

Property Damaqe Each Occurrence $250,000 
Aggregate $250,000 

8.3 Coverage for Lottery Property or Personnel on Contractor Premises. The policies 
must provide coverage for damages to the Lottery's property or personnel, which occurs on the 
Contractor's premises or premises under the control of the Contractor or Contractor's 
subcontractors. 

8.4 Claims Without Regard to Claim. All insurance policies required by this Agreement, with 
the exception of the Errors and Omissions Policy, shall provide coverage for all claims arising 
from activities occurring during the term of the policy regardless of the date the claim is filed or 
expiration of the policy. 

8.5 Notice Regarding Cancellation. Certificates of insurance, which provide that the Lottery 
will be notified at least thirty (30) days prior to cancellation or expiration of the insurance 
coverage required by this Agreement shall be provided to the Lottery at the time of execution of 
the Agreement or at a time mutually agreeable to the parties. The receipt of such certificates 
does not constitute approval of the coverage contained on the certificates, and the Contractor 
remains responsible for determining that its insurance coverage meets each and every 
requirement of this Agreement. The insurer shall state in the certificate that no cancellation of 

8 



the insurance will be made without at least thirty (30) days prior notice to the Lottery and that 
the notice shall be directed to the Lottery in writing. 

8.6 No Limitation of Liability. Acceptance of the insurance certificates by the Lottery shall not 
act to relieve the Contractor of any obligation under this Agreement. All insurance policies and 
certificates shall be issued only by companies authorized to transact business in the state of 
Iowa. 

8. 7 Warranty. The Contractor warrants that it has examined its insurance coverage and 
determined that Lottery may be named as additional insured or loss payee without creating an 
adverse effect on the Contractor's coverage. 

8.8 Scope of Errors and Omissions Insurance. The Contractor shall procure errors and 
omissions insurance in the amount set out above that indemnifies the Lottery and the Contractor 
for losses that may be incurred due to errors. This policy shall remain in effect for one year past 
the expiration of this Agreement and any extensions thereof. 

8.9 Scope of Property Insurance. The Contractor shall maintain property insurance during 
the term of this Agreement which shall insure the Contractor's property at its replacement value 
and shall provide funds to the Contractor to compensate the Contractor for loss of revenues 
resulting from the destruction of the Contractor's property by fire or other hazards. 

8.10 Waiver of Subrogation Rights. The Contractor shall obtain a waiver of any subrogation 
rights that any of its insurance carriers might have against the Iowa Lottery or the state of Iowa. 
The waiver of subrogation rights shall be indicated on the certificates of insurance coverage 
supplied to the Lottery. 

SECTION 9. BONDS. 

9.1 Performance Bond. The Contractor shall post a performance bond in the amount of two 
hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) to the Lottery within ten (10) days of commencement of 
the term of the Agreement. The Contractor shall pay the cost of the bond. In the event that the 
Contractor or any subcontractor or any officer, director, employee or agent of the Contractor or 
any subcontractor or any parent or subsidiary corporation of the Contractor or subcontractor 
fails to fully and faithfully perform each material requirement of this Agreement, including without 
limitation the Contractor's obligation to indemnify the Lottery and pay damages to the Lottery, 
the Lottery shall make claim against the bond. The bond may be renewable annually. Neither 
non-renewal by the Surety, nor failure or inability of the Contractor to file a replacement bond in 
the event the Surety exercises its right to not renew this bond, shall itself constitute a loss to the 
Obligee recoverable under this bond or any extension thereof. The bond shall be in a form 
customarily used in the lottery industry and shall be written by a Surety authorized to do 
business in Iowa and that is acceptable to the Lottery. The bond shall be in effect at all times 
during the term of the Agreement and any extensions or renewals thereof and for ninety (90) 
days following the conclusion of the Agreement. The Contractor represents and warrants that it 
will maintain the required performance bond coverage as described herein without any lapse in 
coverage. 

9.2 Fidelity Bond. The Contractor shall post a fidelity bond in the amount of two hundred 
thousand dollars ($200,000) to the Lottery within ten (10) days of commencement of the term of 
the Agreement. The Contractor shall pay the cost of the bond. The bond shall provide funds to 
the Lottery in the event that the Contractor or Lottery suffers any liability, loss, damage, or 
expense as a result of any fraudulent or dishonest act or omission of the Contractor or any 

9 



parent or subsidiary corporation of the Contractor, which occurs during the term of the bond 
regardless of the date the act or omission is discovered, or a claim is made. The bond shall be 
in a form customarily used in the lottery industry, and shall be written by a Surety authorized to 
do business in Iowa and that is acceptable by the Lottery. This bond shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of the Agreement and any extensions or renewals thereof and for one ( 1) 
year following the conclusion of the Agreement. The Contractor represents and warrants that it 
will maintain the required fidelity bond coverage as described herein without any lapse in 
coverage. 

9.3 Provision of Bonds. Failure on the part of the Contractor to furnish such bonds, or other 
proof of bond coverage acceptable to the Lottery within ten (1 0) days of commencement of the 
term, or to maintain the bonds in full force and effect during the term of the Agreement and any 
extension or renewal thereof, shall be a material breach of the Agreement and shall be 
considered cause for the Lottery to declare the Contractor in default under this Agreement. The 
Lottery's receipt of such bonds or other proof of coverage does not constitute approval of the 
bonds' coverage nor do the bonds relieve the Contractor from the faithful and honest 
performance of the Agreement or relieve the Contractor of any losses greater than the bond 
amount. 

SECTION 10. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY. 

10.1 Works Made for Hire. 

1 0.1.1 All original concepts, work and work product or any other idea or concept that 
would be considered intellectual property procured, developed, or created by the Contractor or 
its employees, agents or contractors specifically for the Lottery (collectively "Works") shall be 
subject to the direction and creative control of the Lottery. The Works shall be the sole property 
of the Lottery. 

For clarification, any patents, trade secrets, trade marks, trade names, trade dress, 
copyright or other intellectual property rights owned by the Contractor, which were developed by 
the Contractor for its general clientele and which were not created or developed specifically for 
the Lottery ("Contractor's Intellectual Property Rights") and licensed properties as described in 
section 10.3 ("Licensed Property'') are not to be considered part of or included in the Works nor· 
the sole property of the Lottery. 

10.1.2 As between the Contractor and the Lottery, the Lottery shall be deemed to be the 
sole author of the Works as the author of a "work made for hire," and shall be the owner of the 
Works and the owner of all rights, title and interest in such materials including, but not limited to, 
all copyrights. 

1 0.1.3 As the owner of the Works, the Lottery may adapt, change or edit or use these 
materials in combination with the works of others and may publish the "Works" in any medium 
throughout the world whether now know or later devised including but not limited to any digital 
or optical medium. 

1 0.1.4 If for any reason the Lottery is not deemed to be the author and owner of all 
Works for all purposes, as works made for hire, then this Agreement shall be considered, to the 
extent allowed by law, an irrevocable, exclusive, royalty free, perpetual license from the 
Contractor, its employees, agents or subcontractors, to the Lottery, of all intellectual property 
rights in all materials purchased by the Lottery from the Contractor. 

10 



10.2 The Lottery's Trademarks, Service Marks, and Trade Names. The Lottery's 
trademarks, including game names, trade names and service marks used on materials 
produced pursuant to this Agreement shall remain the sole property of the Lottery. The 
Contractor shall not use these marks or names on products sold to any person or entity other 
than the Lottery. The Lottery's marks and specifications concerning the marks shall be provided 
to the Contractor by the Lottery. The Lottery's marks and names shall be reproduced exactly as 
specified by the Lottery and only in the quantity specified. 

10.3 Acquisition of Proprietary Rights Held by Others. 
The Contractor shall obtain releases, licenses, permits and all other authorizations necessary to 
use licensed property in which third parties have any rights or interests if the licensed property 
will be used in association with any materials furnished to the Lottery. The Contractor shall 
ensure that the Lottery's use of the licensed property with Contractor participation or in the 
manner communicated to the Contractor will not exceed any applicable limitations. The 
Contractor shall bear the costs associated with the acquisition of any proprietary rights unless 
prior authorization has been issued by the Lottery. 

10.4 Right to Use Intellectual Property. 

10.4.1 Right to Use Intellectual Property. To the extent the Contractor has the right 
to do so, and excluding any Licensed Property, the furnishing or using of any intellectual 
property by the Contractor in creating the Works shall confer upon the Lottery the 
unrestricted, irrevocable right to make, have made, use, sell, license, publish, and/or 
lease any such intellectual property without payment of additional consideration by 
Lottery; provided however, that this subsection shall not apply to Contractor Intellectual 
Property Rights. 

1 0.4.2 Right to Use Intellectual Property Created or Developed for Contractor's 
General Clientele. To the extent Contractor has the right to do so, and excluding 
Licensed Property, the furnishing or using of any Contractor Intellectual Property Rights, 
shall confer upon the Lottery the unrestricted right, irrevocable so long as tickets 
produced pursuant hereto are being sold, to use such intellectual property without 
payment of additional consideration by Lottery, unless otherwise mutually agreed 
between the parties with respect to any of Contractor's Intellectual Property Rights 
created after the date of this Agreement. 

10.5 Warranty Regarding Intellectual Property Rights. The Contractor represents and 
warrants that, in the performance of this Agreement, Contractor's work product and the 
information, data, designs, processes, inventions, techniques, devices, and other such 
intellectual property furnished, used, or relied upon by Contractor will not infringe any copyright, 
patent, trademark, trade dress or other Contractor Intellectual Property Right or others; 
provided, however, that the Contractor need provide no such warranty for information, data, 
designs, processes, inventions, techniques, devices and other such intellectual property 
furnished to Contractor by the Lottery. 

10.6 Games Name Trademark Searches and Opinions of Counsel. The Contractor shall 
obtain a complete state and federal trademark search or trade name search from competent 
legal counsel for the name selected for each game before approval of Working Papers for each 
game and related promotion. A written opinion from competent trademark counsel shall be 
submitted to the Lottery indicating whether it is appropriate for the Lottery to use the name 
selected. The expense of the search and all associated counsel fees will be the responsibility of 
the Contractor. If a purchase order for game is issued and the corresponding state and federal 
trademark search or trade name search has been completed and is approved for use, should 

11 



the Lottery decide to not proceed with the approved game due to no fault of the Contractor, the 
Lottery will be responsible for the expense of the search and all associated counsel fees. 

Upon issuance of a purchase order to the Contractor, the Contractor must conduct the 
trademark search and provide an electronic notification to the Lottery of the results within thirty 
(30) calendar days of receipt of purchase order. 

Within thirty (30) calendar days of Contractor's receipt of signed executed Working Papers, the 
Contractor must send the original version of the trademark letter via a delivery service which 
requires a signature as proof of delivery to the Lottery. 

10.7 Infringement of Trademarks, Patents, Copyrights and Other Proprietary Rights. 

10.7.1 The Contractor represents and warrants that all the concepts and materials 
produced, or provided to the Lottery pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, including the copy 
and artwork submitted to the Lottery in the Working Papers, shall be wholly original with the 
Contractor or that the Contractor has secured all applicable interests, rights, licenses, permits, 
or other intellectual property rights in such concepts and materials. 

10.7.2 The Contractor represents and warrants that the concepts and materials and the 
Lottery's use of the materials and the exercise by the Lottery of the rights granted by this 
Agreement shall not infringe upon any other work, other than material provided by the Lottery to 
the Contractor to be used as a basis for such materials, or violate the rights of publicity or 
privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person, firm or corporation and that the 
materials will not infringe upon the copyright, trademark, trade name, literary, dramatic, 
statutory, common law or any other rights of any person, firm or corporation or other entity. 

10.7.3 The Contractor represents and warrants that, in the performance of this 
Agreement, the Contractor's work product and the information, data, designs, processes, 
inventions, techniques, devices, and other such intellectual property furnished, used, or relied 
upon by the Contractor will not infringe any copyright, patent, trademark, trade dress or other 
intellectual property right of the Contractor or others. 

10.7.4 The Contractor also represents and warrants that the design and method of 
manufacture of materials provided pursuant to this Agreement shall not infringe on any patent. 

10.8 Product Information Supplied by Lottery. The Lottery shall be responsible for the 
accuracy and completeness of the information it supplies to the Contractor concerning the 
games it is seeking from Contractor. 

10.9 Approval of Materials by Contractor. The Lottery's approval of materials submitted by 
the Contractor shall not be construed as relieving the Contractor of any of its responsibilities 
under this Agreement. 

10.10 Possession of Copies. Upon request, the Contractor shall deliver to the Lottery and the 
Lottery may retain all copies of all materials produced as a result of or in accordance with this 
Agreement. 

10.11 Copyright Notice. All materials and Works produced by the Contractor in which the 
Lottery shall own the copyright shall contain the following notices, with the correct year inserted, 
in an appropriate location unless a different form of notice is subsequently specified by the 

12 



Lottery in writing: "C" enclosed in a circle{©), the year(2014), and the Iowa Lottery(© 2014 
Iowa Lottery). 

SECTION 11. CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 

11.1 All representations and warranties made by the Contractor in all provisions of this 
Agreement and the Proposal by the Contractor, whether or not this· Agreement specifically 
denominates the Contractor's promise as a warranty or whether the warranty is created only by 
the Contractor's affirmation or promise, or is created by a description of the materials and 
services to be provided, or by provision of samples to the Lottery, shall not be construed as 
limiting or negating any warranty provided by law, including without limitation, warranties which 
arise through course of dealing or usage of trade. The warranties expressed in this Agreement 
are intended to modify the warranties implied by law only to the extent that they expand the 
warranties applicable to the goods and services provided by the Contractor. 

11.2 The Contractor represents and warrants that the related materials, goods and services to 
be provided to the Lottery pursuant to this Agreement shall be suitable for their intended 
purposes. The Contractor acknowledges that the Lottery is relying on the Contractor's skill and 
judgment to furnish tickets and related materials and services fit in all respects for this purpose 
which will be designed to maximize the ticket sales of the Lottery. 

11.3 The Contractor represents and warrants that the tickets and related materials, goods and 
services shall be merchantable. 

11.4 The Contractor represents and warrants that title to the materials conveyed to the Lottery 
shall be good and that transfer of title is rightful and that the materials shall be delivered free of 
any security interest or other lien or encumbrance. 

11.5 The Contractor represents and warrants that it has the right to enter into and to fully 
perform this Agreement upon the terms and conditions specified and that it has not granted and 
will not grant any right or interest to any person or entity which might derogate, encumber, or 
interfere with the rights granted to the Lottery. 

11.6 The Contractor represents and warrants that any tickets and related services provided will 
be new and unused and free of defects in material, design and workmanship. 

11.7 The Contractor represents and warrants that all services provided shall be performed in a 
prompt, competent and workmanlike manner by properly trained individuals in accordance with 
the highest standards of the Contractor's profession. 

11.8 The Contractor represents and warrants that the design, manufacture and sale or use by 
the Lottery of materials provided by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will not infringe 
on any intellectual property rights of any other person or entity. 

11.9 The Contractor represents and warrants that the production, design, and use by the 
Lottery of tickets and related materials, goods and services provided by the Contractor will not 
infringe on any patent, trademark, copyright, trademark, service mark, trade secret or other right 
held by any third party; provided, however, that the Contractor need provide no such warranty 
for information, data, designs, processes, inventions, techniques, devices, and other such 
intellectual property furnished to Contractor by the Lottery. 

13 



11.10 The Contractor represents and warrants that the tickets and related goods and services 
provided shall meet each and every requirement and specification of this Agreement exactly as 
specified in this Agreement and in the Working Papers executed pursuant to this Agreement. 

11.11 The Contractor represents and warrants that it has not made any misrepresentations to 
the Lottery related to this Agreement or the products and services to be provided pursuant to 
this Agreement. "Misrepresentations" include material omissions. 

SECTION 12. INDEMNIFICATION. 

12.1 The Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the state of Iowa and the Lottery, its 
employees, agents, board members, appointed officials and elected officials, harmless from any 
and all liabilities, damages, loss, claims, suits or actions, settlements, judgments, costs and 
expenses, including reasonable value of time for the Attorney General's Office, and the costs 
and expenses and attorney fees of other counsel required to defend the Lottery, related to or 
arising from: 

12.1.1 Any violation or breach of this Agreement by the Contractor, its employees, or 
agents; or 

12.1.2 Any negligent acts or omissions of Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, 
board members, contractors, subcontractors, or trademark counsel employed by Contractor in 
the performance of this Agreement; or 

12.1.3 Any failure by the Contractor to comply with all local, state and federal laws and 
regulations; or, 

12.1.4 Any failure by the Contractor to make all reports, payments and with holdings 
required by Federal and State law with respect to social security, employee income and other 
taxes, fees or costs required by the Contractor to conduct business in the state of Iowa; or, 

12.1.5 Any event in which a third-party asserts that the Lottery's use of a product, 
design, and use of ticket product provided by Contractor to the Lottery is a violation of such 
party's rights; provided, however, that Contractor need provide no such indemnification for 
claims which relate solely to information, data, designs, processes, inventions, techniques, 
devices and other such intellectual property furnished to Contractor by the Lottery. 

12.2 The Contractor's duty to indemnify as set forth in this section shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement and shall apply to all acts taken in the performance of this 
Agreement regardless of the date any potential claim is made or discovered by the Lottery. 

SECTION 13. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION. 

13.1 Termination for Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice 
for the substantial breach by the other party of any material term, if such breach is not cured, 
provided that a cure is possible within 1 0 days following receipt of written notice of breach from 
the non-breaching party. Substantial breach events include but are not limited to the following: 

13.1.1 Contractor fails to materially perform as required by this Agreement; 

14 



13.1.2 Contractor fails to make substantial and timely progress toward performance or 
fails to meet any of the material specifications and requirements of this Agreement, including 
without limitation the representations and warranties provided in this Agreement. 

13.1.3 Lottery fails to materially perform as required by this Agreement including failure 
to make timely payment for goods and services rendered. 

13.2 Notice of Cure. If a cure is possible, the notice shall specify the exact date by which the 
condition must be cured. Following expiration of the opportunity to cure and notice from the 
non-breaching party, the non-breaching party may seek any legal or equitable remedy 
authorized by this Agreement or by law. 

13.3 Immediate Termination. The Lottery may terminate this Agreement, effective 
immediately without advance notice and without penalty or legal liability for any of the following 
reasons: 

13.3.1 If the Contractor furnished any statement, representation, warranty or 
certification in connection with this Agreement, which is materially false, deceptive, incorrect or 
incomplete. 

13.3.2 If the Contractor fails to perform, to the Lottery's satisfaction, any material 
requirement of this Agreement or is in violation of any material provision of this Agreement, 
including, without limitation, the express warranties made by the Contractor. 

13.3.3 If the Lottery determines that satisfactory performance of this Agreement is 
substantially endangered or that a default is likely to occur. 

13.3.4 If the Contractor becomes subject to any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding 
under federal or state law to the extent allowed by applicable state or federal law including 
bankruptcy laws. 

13.3.5 If the Contractor terminates or suspends its business. 

13.3.6 If the Lottery reasonably believes that the Contractor has become insolvent or 
unable to pay its obligations as they accrue consistent with applicable federal or state law. 

13.3.7 If an officer, director or employee with significant contact with the Lottery's 
account is or has been convicted of a felony, any gambling related offense whether a 
misdemeanor or felony, or of any state of federal Racketeer Influenced or corrupt Organization 
Act (RICO) by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

13.3.8 If it is alleged that the Contractor's processes or materials violate any valid 
patent, trademark, copyright, other intellectual property right or contract, and the Lottery 
reasonably believes that the allegation may impair the Contractor's performance of this 
Agreement. 

13.3.9 If during the course of this Agreement, the Contractor sells pull-tab tickets to 
others having reason to know that the other person intend to sell the tickets illegally in any 
jurisdiction. 

13.3.1 0 If during the course of this Agreement any action by the Contractor interferes 
with the Lottery's relationship with its licensed retailers, or promotes products or distribution 
systems that compete with authorized Lottery products or distribution systems. 

15 



13.3.11 If cancellation occurs for any of the causes set forth above, the Lottery shall 
have no further obligation to the Contractor other than payment for services rendered and 
materials provided prior to cancellation. Payment will be made only upon submission of 
invoices and proper proof of the Contractor's claim. This provision in no way limits the remedies 
available to the Lottery in the event of a termination under this provision. 

13.4 Termination for Convenience. Following thirty (30) days written notice, the Lottery may 
terminate this Agreement in whole or in part for convenience without the payment of any penalty 
or incurring any further obligation to the Contractor. Following termination for convenience, the 
Contractor shall be entitled to compensation, for conforming tickets, materials actually in the 
Lottery's possession at the time of cancellation, and reasonable industrial costs of work-in
progress. 

13.5 Termination for Lack of Authority or Funding. Notwithstanding anything in this 
Agreement to the contrary, and subject to the limitations, conditions, and procedures set forth 
below, the Lottery shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without penalty or legal 
liability by giving sixty (60) days written notice if any of the following contingencies occur: 

• If the Lottery's authorization to operate is withdrawn or there is a material alteration in 
the programs the Lottery administers; or 

• If Lottery's duties are substantially modified. 

13.6 Remedies of Contractor. In the event of termination of this Agreement the Contractor 
shall be paid for services completed prior to termination upon submission of invoices and proper 
proof of claim, for services and materials provided to the Lottery prior to cancellation and for 
reasonable industrial costs of work-in-progress. 

13.7 No Release of Obligation. The expiration or termination of this Agreement for any cause 
shall not release either party from: 

13.7.1 Any obligations and duties remaining under any order accepted by the 
Contractor prior to such expiration or termination; 

13.7.2 Any liability which at the time of expiration or termination has already accrued to 
the other party, or, which thereafter may accrue in respect to any event prior to expiration or 
termination; or 

13.7.3 Any liability from any obligation that survives expiration or termination. 

SECTION 14. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 

14.1 All Confidential Information provided shall be clearly marked as Confidential Information 
by the party providing the information at the time of disclosure to the other party. The 
Contractor shall limit such identification to information it reasonably believes is entitled to 
confidential treatment pursuant to the public records provisions of Iowa law. Each party shall 
hold the Confidential Information of the other in strictest confidence and, except as previously 
authorized in writing by the other party, (i) shall use the Confidential Information only in 
furtherance of this Agreement, (ii) shall not copy Confidential Information and (iii) shall not 
disclose the Confidential Information to any person or entity except those employees of the 
party to whom the information has been disclosed who have a need to know the Confidential 
Information for purposes contemplated by this Agreement. The parties' obligations under this 
provision do not apply to information which: is publicly available or in the public domain when 

16 



provided; is or becomes publicly available or public domain information through no fault of the 
recipient of the information subsequent to the time it was provided; is rightfully communicated to 
the recipient of the information by another party; is independently developed by the recipient; or 
is disclosed pursuant to law or the order of a court or government authority. The parties' 
obligations under this provision shall survive the conclusion of this Agreement and shall be 
perpetual. 

14.2 No private or confidential data collected, maintained, or used in the course of performance 
of the Agreement shall be disseminated except as authorized by statute or section 14.1, either 
during the period of the Agreement or thereafter. Any data supplied to American Games by the 
Lottery shall be considered the property of the Lottery. 

14.3 American Games shall use its best efforts to ensure that the details of the games planned 
by the Lottery are not disclosed to persons or organizations other than the personnel, agents, 
and subcontractors of American Games whose assistance is necessary for the production of 
tickets and related materials. In the event that American Games receives a request for 
information or records concerning the Lottery or its advertising plans, American Games shall 
immediately forward the request to the Lottery. 

14.4 In the event American Games receives a request from a third party (other than a 
subcontractor working on Contractor's Lottery account) for information supplied to American 
Games by the Lottery, American Games shall immediately notify the Lottery of the request by 
telephone and fax. American Games will not release the information subject to the request 
without the Lottery's permission or pursuant to a court order or as may be required by law. 

14.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in the event a public records request is 
made to the Lottery pursuant to Iowa Code chapter 22 regarding Confidential Information, the 
Lottery shall notify Contractor as soon as possible of the request by telephone and fax. The 
Lottery may respond to the request for information not sooner than 7 days thereafter with a 
release of the requested information unless prohibited by law or American Games has obtained 
an injunction preventing release of the requested information. 

SECTION 15. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION. 

15.1 Independent Contractor. 

15.1.1 The status of the Contractor shall be that of an independent contractor. The 
Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractor performing under this Agreement are not 
employees or agents of the Lottery. 

15.1.2 The Lottery shall not provide the Contractor with office space, support staff, 
equipment, tools, or supervision beyond the terms of this Agreement. 

15.1.3 Neither the Contractor nor its employees, agents and subcontractors are eligible 
for any State employee benefits, including but not limited to, retirement benefits, insurance 
coverage or the like. 

15.1.4 Neither the Contractor nor its employees shall be considered employees of the 
Lottery or the state of Iowa for federal or state tax purposes. The Lottery shall not withhold 
taxes on behalf of the Contractor (unless required by law). The Contractor shall be responsible 
for payment of all taxes in connection with any income earned from this Agreement. 

17 



15.2 Compliance with the Law and Regulations. 

15.2.1 The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
rules, ordinances, regulations and orders when performing within the scope of this Agreement, 
including without limitation, all laws applicable to the prevention of discrimination in employment, 
the administrative rules of the Iowa Department of Management or the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission which pertain to equal employment opportunity and affirmative action, laws relating 
to prevailing wages, occupational safety and health standards, prevention of discrimination in 
employment, payment of taxes, gift laws, lobbying laws, laws dealing with the manufacture and 
transportation of gambling related materials and laws relating to the use of targeted small 
businesses as subcontractors or suppliers. 

15.2.2 The Contractor declares that it has complied with all federal, state and local laws 
regarding business permits and licenses that may be required to carry out the work to be 
performed under this Agreement. 

15.2.3 The Contractor shall give notice to any labor union with which it has a bargaining 
or other agreement of its commitment under this section of the Agreement. The Contractor shall 
make the provisions of this section a part of its contracts with any subcontractors providing 
goods or services related to the fulfillment of this Agreement. 

15.2.4 The Contractor shall comply with all of the reporting and compliance standards of 
the Department of Management regarding equal employment. These requirements may require 
the Contractor to submit its affirmative action plan. The plan must comport with the Department 
of Management rules at 541 lAC chapter 4. 

15.2.5 The Lottery may consider the failure of the Contractor to comply with any law or 
regulation as a material breach of this Agreement. In addition, the Contractor may be declared 
ineligible for future State contracts or be subjected to other sanctions for failure to comply with 
this section. 

15.3 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended in writing from time to time by mutual 
consent of the parties. All amendments to this Agreement must be fully executed by both 
parties. The only parties authorized to execute amendments on behalf of the Lottery are the 
Lottery CEO, Executive Vice President, Vice President of Operations or Vice President of 
Finance. 

15.4 Third Party Beneficiaries. There are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement. This 
Agreement is intended only to benefit the Lottery and the Contractor. 

15.5 Choice of Law and Forum. 

15.5.1 The laws of the state of Iowa shall govern and determine all matters arising out 
of or in connection with this Agreement without regard to the choice of law provisions of Iowa 
law. 

15.5.2 In the event any proceeding of a quasi-judicial or judicial nature is commenced in 
connection with this Agreement, the proceeding shall be brought in Des Moines, Iowa, in Polk 
County District Court for the state of Iowa, if jurisdiction is proper. If however, jurisdiction is not 
proper in the Iowa District Court, Polk County, but is proper only in a United States District 
Court, the matter shall be commenced in the United States District Court for the Southern 
District of Iowa, Central Division. 

18 



15.5.3 This provision shall not be construed as waiving any immunity to suit or liability, 
in state or federal court, which may be available to the Lottery or the state of Iowa. 

15.6 Assignment, Change of Ownership or Financial Condition. The Contractor shall not 
assign, transfer, convey, or otherwise dispose of this Agreement, its duties under this 
Agreement, or any rights, title, or interest in this Agreement to any other person, corporation, or 
other entity without the prior written approval of the Lottery. For purposes of this section a 
transfer or conveyance includes the sale or gift of a twenty-five percent (25%) equity interest in 
the Contractor. 

In the event that any person, or group of persons, hereafter acquires directly or indirectly the 
beneficial ownership (as defined by Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation 17 C.F.R. 
§240.13d-3) of five percent (5%) or more of the ownership interest in, or any class of equity 
securities of, the Contractor, the Lottery must be notified in writing of such event. Background 
investigation may be required for these new owners. Such background investigations may 
include fingerprint identification by the Iowa Division of Criminal Investigation, the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation or the appropriate non-U.S. equivalent. By signing this Agreement, the 
Contractor consents to cooperate with such investigations, and to instruct its employees to 
cooperate. The expense of any investigation will be borne by the Contractor. The Lottery may 
terminate this contract based upon adverse results of these background checks. The ability to 
conduct such investigations is a continuing right of the Lottery throughout the contract term. 

15.7 Integration. This Agreement, including all the documents incorporated by reference, 
represents the entire Agreement between the parties and neither party is relying on any 
representation that may have been made which is not included in this Agreement. 

15.8 Headings or Captions. The paragraph headings or captions are for identification 
purposes only and do not limit or construe the contents of the paragraphs. 

15.9 Not a Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating or 
constituting the relationship of a partnership, joint venture, (or other association of any kind or 
agenUprincipal relationship) between the parties hereto. Each party shall be deemed an 
independent contractor contracting for services and acting toward the mutual benefits expected 
to be derived here from. No party, unless otherwise specifically provided for herein, has the 
authority to enter into any agreement or create an obligation or liability on behalf of, in the name 
of, or binding upon another party to this Agreement. 

15.10 Supersedes Former Agreements. This Agreement supersedes all prior Agreements 
between the Lottery and the Contractor for the goods and services provided in connection with 
this Agreement. 

15.11 Waiver. Any breach or default by either party shall not be waived or released other than 
by a writing signed by the other party. Failure by either party at any time to require performance 
by the other party or to claim a breach of any provision of the Agreement shall not be construed 
as affecting any subsequent breach or the right to require performance with respect thereto or to 
claim a breach with respect thereto. Only the following persons may execute a waiver of a term 
of this Agreement on behalf of the Lottery: the Lottery CEO, the Executive Vice President, Vice 
President of Finance or the Vice President of Security. 

19 



15.12 Notices. 

15.12.1 Any and all notices, designations, consents, offers, acceptances or any other 
communication provided for herein shall be given in writing by registered or certified mail, return 
receipt requested, by receipted hand delivery, by Federal Express, courier or other similar and 
reliable carrier which shall be addressed to each party as set forth as follows: 

If to the Iowa Lottery: Iowa Lottery 
Attn.: Larry Loss 
2323 Grand Ave. 

If to the Contractor: 

Des Moines, lA 50312 

American Games 
Attn: Steven Fingold 
504 34th Avenue 
Council Bluffs, lA 51501-8095 

15.12.2 Each such notice shall be deemed to have been provided: 

15.12.2.1 At the time it is actually received; or, 

15.12.2.2 Within one day in the case of overnight hand delivery, courier or 
services such as Federal Express with guaranteed next day of delivery; or, 

15.12.2.3 Within five days after deposited the U.S. Mail in the case of 
registered U.S. Mail. 

15.13.3 Copies of such notice shall be provided separately to each party. 

15.13.4 From time to time, the parties may change the name and address of a party 
designated to receive notice. Such change of the designated person shall be in writing to the 
other party and as provided herein. 

15.14 Cumulative Rights. 

15.14.1 The various rights, powers, options, elections and remedies of either party, 
provided in this Agreement, shall be construed as cumulative and no one of them is exclusive of 
the others or exclusive of any rights, remedies or priorities allowed either party by law. 

15.14.2 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as affecting, impairing or limiting 
the equitable or legal remedies to which either party may be entitled as a result of any breach of 
this Agreement. 

15.15 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalid portion shall be severed from this 
Agreement. Such a determination shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other part 
or provision of this Agreement. 

15.16 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to the successful 
performance of the terms of this Agreement. The Contractor shall ensure that all personnel 
providing services to the Lottery are responsive to Lottery requirements in all respects including 

20 



Lottery directives with respect to the goods and services delivered in accordance with this 
Agreement. 

15.17 Authorization. Each party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the other that: 

15.17.1 It has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations 
under this Agreement. 

15.17.2 It has taken all requisite action (corporate, statutory, or otherwise) to approve 
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes a legal, 
valid and binding obligation upon itself in accordance with its terms. 

15.17.3 This Agreement is contingent upon ratification of the Lottery Board pursuant to 
Iowa Code Chapter 99G. The Lottery does not warrant that the Agreement will be ratified by the 
Lottery Board. 

15.18 Successors in Interest. All the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Agreement shall 
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors, 
assigns, and legal representatives. 

15.19 Records Retention and Access. 

15.19.1 The Contractor shall maintain books, records, and documents which sufficiently 
and properly document and calculate all charges billed to the Lottery, in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and such other procedures as specified by the 
Lottery, throughout the term of this Agreement for a period of at least five (5) years following the 
date of final payment, cancellation, expiration or completion of any required audit, whichever is 
later. 

15.19.2 The Contractor shall retain and maintain all ticket validation, financial, and 
accounting records, and evidence pertaining to this Agreement and to each game produced 
under the Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and sound 
business practice and any other procedures reasonably established by the Lottery. 

15.19.3 The Contractor shall permit the Auditor of the state of Iowa or any authorized 
representative of the State or any authorized representative of the United States government, to 
access and examine, audit, excerpt and transcribe any directly pertinent validation records, 
financial records, accounting records, books, documents, papers, electronic or optically stored 
and created records or other records of the Contractor relating to or created as a result of the 
performance of this Agreement. These records shall be made available to the Lottery, its 
designees, the Auditor, or an authorized representative of the United States government at 
reasonable times and at no cost to the Lottery during the term of this Agreement and for a 
period of five (5) years following the termination, cancellation or expiration of this Agreement. 

15.20 Audit and Accounting Statements. Each year during the term of this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall have a complete corporate financial audit conducted annually, at its own 
expense. The audit must follow generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) or the 
appropriate non-U.S. equivalent. A copy of the Contractors certified financial statements shall 
be provided to the Lottery within 180 days after the close of the Contractors fiscal year. 

The Contractor shall provide the Lottery with Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) 1 O-K 
and 1 0-Q reports (or the appropriate non-U.S. equivalent) as they are issued, together with any 

21 



other reports required pursuant to Section 13 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, through the duration of this contract. 

15.21 Counterparts. The parties agree that this Agreement has been or may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all such counterparts shall 
together constitute one and the same instrument. 

15.22 Additional Provisions. The parties agree that if an Addendum, Rider or Exhibit is 
attached hereto by the parties, and referred to herein, then the same shall be deemed 
incorporated herein by reference. 

15.23 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The parties agree that they will, 
from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged 
and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further instruments as may reasonably be 
required for carrying out the expressed intention of this Agreement. 

15.24 Obligations of Joint Entities. If the Contractor is a joint entity, consisting of more than 
one individual, partnership, corporation or other business organization, all such entities shall be 
jointly and severally liable for carrying out the activities and obligations of this agreement, and 
for any default of such activities and obligations. 

15.25 Force Majeure. 

15.25.1 Neither the Contractor nor the Lottery shall be liable to the other for any delay 
or failure of performance of this Agreement, and no delay or failure of performance shall 
constitute a default or give rise to any liability for damages if, and only to the extent that, such 
delay or failure is caused by a "force majeure". 

15.25.2 As used in this Agreement, "force majeure" includes acts of God, war, civil 
disturbance and any other causes which are beyond the control and anticipation of the party 
effected and which, by the exercise of reasonable diligence, the party was unable to anticipate 
or prevent. Failure to perform by a subcontractor or an agent of the Contractor shall not be 
considered a "force majeure" unless the subcontractor or supplier is prevented from timely 
performance by a "force majeure" as defined in this Agreement. "Force Majeure" does not 
include financial difficulties of the Contractor or any parent, subsidiary, affiliated or associated 
company of the Contractor or claims or court orders which restrict the Contractor's ability to 
deliver the goods or services contemplated by this Agreement. 

15.25.3 If a "force majeure" delays or prevents the Contractor's performance, the 
Contractor shall immediately commence to use its best efforts to directly provide alternate, and 
to the extent possible, comparable performance. Comparability of performance and the 
possibility of comparable performance shall be reasonably determined solely by the Lottery. 

15.25.4 During any such period, the Contractor shall continue to be responsible for all 
costs and expenses related to alternative performance, subject to not incurring unreasonable 
costs. 

15.25.5 This section shall not be construed as relieving the Contractor of its 
responsibility for any obligation which is being performed by a subcontractor or supplier of 
services unless the subcontractor or supplier is prevented from timely performance by a "force 
majeure" as described here. 

22 



15.26 Taxes. The Contractor and its subcontractors, may be subject to certain taxes, including 
but not limited to sales tax, motor vehicle fuel tax, personal or corporate income tax or other 
taxes or assessments, and to licensing fees or other miscellaneous fees or charges which may 
be imposed by federal, state, or local law or ordinance. The Contractor and its subcontractors 
shall be solely responsible for paying any taxes incurred in the performance of this Agreement. 
The Contractor shall promptly pay all such taxes, fees or charges when due. The Lottery is a 
tax-exempt entity and no payment will be made for any taxes levied on the Contractor for any 
purpose. 

15.27 Title to Lottery Property. Title to all property furnished by the Lottery to the Contractor 
to facilitate the performance of this Agreement shall remain the sole property of the Lottery. 

15.28 Prime Contractor Responsibilities. The Contractor shall assume all responsibility for 
delivery of tickets, quality of tickets, and the performance of all required services, whether or not 
subcontractors are involved. The Lottery shall consider the Contractor to be the sole point of 
contact with regard to all matters related to this Agreement and is not required to initiate or 
maintain contact with any subcontractor. 

15.29 Survival of Obligations. 

15.29.1 Certain obligations imposed on the parties by this Agreement continue beyond 
the expiration, cancellation, or termination of this Agreement as necessary to carry out the intent 
of the parties. 

15.29.2 Such obligations include, without limitation, the Contractor's obligation to 
indemnify the Lottery, the Contractor's obligations with respect to over-redemption and non
conforming tickets, the licensing and ownership of intellectual property rights and the 
Contractor's obligations with respect to the retention of records and the maintenance of bonds 
and insurance. 

15.30 Endorsements. The Contractor will not use any oral or written communication made by 
any Lottery employee in a manner which could be characterized as an endorsement of or 
advertisement for the Contractor or the Contractor's product without the Lottery's prior written 
consent. 

15.31 Non-Exclusive Rights. The contract will not be exclusive. The Lottery will reserve the 
right to contract with other Contractors for the production of pull-tab tickets and related services 
during the contract term. 

15.32 Authorization to do Business in Iowa. The Contractor shall obtain a certificate of 
authority to do business in Iowa and shall take all necessary steps to ensure that it is authorized 
to do business in Iowa as American Games. 

15.33 Non-Disclosure of the Lottery's Plans. The Contractor shall use its best efforts to 
ensure that the details of the games planned by the Lottery are not disclosed to persons or 
organizations other than the personnel, agents and subcontractors of the Contractor whose 
assistance is necessary for the production of tickets and related materials. In the event that the 
Contractor receives a request for information or records concerning the Lottery or its instant 
ticket needs, the Contractor shall immediately forward the request to the Lottery. 

15.34 Covenant Against Contingent Fees. The Contractor warrants that it has not employed 
or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the 
Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any 

23 



person or entity, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other consideration on a basis that is contingent 
upon the award of this contract. 

15.35 Investigation of Officers, Directors and Shareholders. 

15.35.1 The Contractor shall require all officers, directors or shareholders owning five 
percent (5%) or more of the Contractor or any parent or subsidiary company of the Contractor to 
participate in background investigations conducted by the Lottery and to complete background 
disclosure forms. Throughout the term of this Agreement the Contractor will notify the Lottery of 
any changes in the identity of persons or entities holding these positions. Failure to disclose 
such matters may result in termination of the contract. 

15.35.2 The Contractor shall require its employees and the employees of any 
subcontractors to submit to background investigations if requested by the Lottery and to 
complete all background disclosure forms as may be required by the Lottery. 

15.35.3 The Contractor shall bear all costs and expenses associated with background 
investigations. In the event the Lottery is required to pay any of these costs and expenses, the 
Contractor agrees to reimburse the Lottery accordingly. Costs may include but are not limited 
to the hourly charges of the Division of Criminal Investigation's agents, meals, travel, lodging, 
and miscellaneous expenses and fees incurred in conducting the background investigations. 

15.36 Obligations Beyond Agreement Term. This Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect to the end of the specified term or until terminated or canceled pursuant to this 
Agreement. All continuing obligations of the Lottery and the Contractor incurred or existing 
under this Agreement as of the date of expiration, termination or cancellation will survive the 
termination or conclusion of this Agreement. 

SECTION 16. EXECUTION. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the parties have entered into the above Agreement and have caused 
their duly authorized representatives to execute this Agreement. 

Iowa Lottery Authority 

By: --~~------------------
Name: Larry Loss 
Title: Executive Vice President 

Pollard Games, Inc. dba American Games 

By: --~--~~--------------
Name: Doug Pollard 
Title: President 
FederaiiD # ___________ _ 

24 

Date: _____ _ 

Date: 



25 



SCHEDULE A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SECTION 1. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF WORK. The Contractor shall provide the Lottery 
with pull-tab tickets and related materials and services as follows: 

SECTION 2. TICKET SPECIFICATIONS. 

2.1 Ticket Specifications 

2.1.1 Ticket Construction 

2.1.1.1 The Lottery requires the use of a coated-board stock, on the face side (opposite 
side of the opening tabs), of the finished, glued ticket. The basic ticket construction shall 
be 2-ply with the overall thickness in the range of .024 through .027 inches. Stock must 
be specified in the working papers. 

2.1.1.2 Pull-tab tickets may be constructed as either a 3, 4 or 5 tab break open industry 
standard ticket. 

2.1.1.3 The Contractor shall ensure color consistency in the printing of tickets making it 
impossible to identify winning tickets in a unit due to differences in color or the 
appearance of extraneous marks on the tickets. 

2.1.1.4 Pull-tab tickets produced must be capable of being dispensed from automated 
pull-tab dispensing machines. The Lottery currently sells pull-tabs through American 
Games Maxim Vending Machines in one of two sizes: the 4206 Model accommodating 
six vending columns of tickets and the 8412 with twelve vending columns. The 
dispensing of tickets is achieved with one non-abrasive dispensing belt, which smoothly 
delivers each ticket into a ticket hopper that can hold multiple tickets. 

2.1.2 Ticket Gluing. Pattern ticket gluing must occur on all four edges of the sealed ticket and 
between the individual break-open tabs. 

2.1.3 Die-Cut Openings and Perforations 

2.1.3.1 The opening tabs shall be evenly spaced side-to-side on each ticket. 

2.1.3.2 Each ticket shall contain opening tabs perforated on the horizontal lines top and 
bottom and at the end of the opening tab where the tab must be grasped for opening. 
Perforations and die cutting shall allow easy opening by the general public while at the 
same time not permit tickets to be accidentally opened in normal handling. 

2.1.3.3 The openings shall be 9/16" H x 1 3/8" W. 

2.1.4 Size of Tickets. The individual ticket size shall be 1 7/8" +/-1/16" x 4 1/4" +/-1/16". The 
Lottery reserves the right to request tickets in other sizes at prices mutually agreeable to the 
Lottery and the Contractor. 

2.1.5 Play Numbers/Symbols. All labor and materials necessary to produce and generate the 
play numbers or symbols that must appear on individual tickets comprising the game, shall be the 
responsibility of the Contractor. 

26 



2.1.6 Confirming CaptionNerification Symbol or Device. Each winning play shall be 
accompanied by a confirming caption/verification symbol or device that must appear under the 
winning tab. Examples of verification symbols would be the use of a specific number keyed to 
particular winners, changing symbol colors for winners, the use of benday patterns, or similar 
feature. Each winning ticket winning combination shall also have a colored winning arrow running 
through the winning symbols, along with the total dollar amount the entire ticket won printed in the 
far left margin of the lower most winning arrowhead tab. Multiple wins on a single ticket may be 
used depending on the approved prize structure. The use of benday patterns is a requirement. 
Benday patterns may be repeated on non-winning tickets; however, all non-winning tickets shall 
not have the same benday pattern. A unique benday pattern and a win code shall also be used 
in addition to the total dollar amount won and the actual win bar. 

2.1.7 Barcode. A barcode representing the game and unit number must be printed on the 
outside ply of the ticket that contains the unconcealed symbols or numbers, rather than on the 
covering sheet containing the opening tabs. The 1 0 digit barcode contains a check digit which is 
determined by the algorithm and does change with each serial number. The game and unit 
number must also appear above the barcode in an easily read form. Each ticket in the unit must 
bear the same barcode. The barcode height shall be 5/16" high. The barcode will be standard 
interleaved two offive symbology. The barcode will contain 10 digits in the form of 
GGGUUUUUUC where: 

GGG 
uuuuuu 
c 

represents the 3 digit game number 
represents the 6 digit unit number 
represents a check digit 

The algorithm will be supplied to Contractor after contract award. 

2.1.8 Special Ticket Markings 
2.1.8.1 The reverse or back side (pull-tab side) of each ticket must include the following 
printing and may include additional printing as specified by the Lottery. 

• "Must be 21 to purchase" 
• "Prizes of $600 or less must be claimed at place of sale" 
• The Lottery logo 
• "If you or someone you know has a gambling problem, Call 1-800-BETS OFF" 
• A signature line 

2.1.8.2 The following items must appear on the ticket front: 
• "Average odds of winning are 1 in X.XX" 
• Ticket Price 
• Iowa Lottery 
• IAGG (where GG is a game number) 
• 10 Digit barcode 

2.1.9 Colors. The colors and symbols on the front of the tickets shall correspond to the same 
colors and symbols on the reverse side of the same ply (game spots). The Contractor shall be 
capable of printing four-color process and/or spot color printing. 

2.1.10 Fluorescent Ink. Contractors shall be capable of printing fluorescent inks. 

2.1.11 Ultra-Violet Ink. Contractors shall be capable of printing tickets using an ultra-violet print 
process and inks for security purposes. 

2.1.12 Randomization. The odds of winning any prize of any level on a given ticket must not 
vary from the odds of winning that prize as stated in the final approved prize structure. Winning 
prizes must appear randomly within each unit of tickets. 

27 



2.1.12.1 Number patterns, plate layouts, collating/shuffling sequences, and plans for 
cutting shall be developed by Contractor and require Lottery approval to eliminate any 
possibility of the tickets not appearing totally random in their organization within units. 
2.1.12.2 In cutting finished tickets, winners and losers must be cut together to eliminate 
any possibility of picking out the winners from variations in the cutting, or from edge 
patterns that are caused from cutting. 
2.1.12.3 The Contractor shall organize the printing plates used in the process of printing 
tickets to ensure that winning tickets are interspersed among losing tickets. Various 
combinations of plates must be utilized during the manufacturing process to achieve this 
objective. 
2.1.12.4 All play symbols on tickets, both winning and non-winning, shall be dispersed 
randomly throughout the play area. 
2.1.12.5 The Contractor shall be capable of selective seeding within pools as may be 
specified by the Lottery. 

2.1.13 Working Papers. For each game ordered, the Lottery will require a complete set of 
working papers describing the details of the ticket production. This set of working papers must be 
delivered to the Lottery in hard copy form or may be provided electronically. The approved final 
set of working papers become the governing document pertaining to the game and take 
precedence over any other conditions of the contract in the event of any conflict in the 
specifications or requirements. The working papers will contain the detailed specifications of the 
game including ticket design, play symbols, prize structure, production schedule, packaging & 
shipping and game layout. 

2.1.14 Ticket Production Timetable 
2.1.14.1 For the first order of a game (not a reorder), the Contractor shall submit to the 
Lottery draft Working Papers and an electronic version of trademark approval from 
competent trademark attorney within 20 days after receiving a purchase order request 
from the Lottery. Delivery dates shall be established in the purchase order; failure to 
meet the delivery dates shall be subject to a penalty clause. 
2.1.14.2 Delivery date for the tickets shall be 45 days from final approval of the Working 
Papers. 
2.1.14.3 Reorders shall be delivered within 35 days from the date the Lottery orders the 
tickets. 
2.1.14.4 "Days" shall mean ''working days" and does not include Saturdays, Sundays or 
State legal holidays. 

2.1.15 State or Federal Trademark Searches. The contract will require the Contractor to obtain 
a state and federal trademark search and a written opinion from trademark counsel, stating 
whether the name selected for the pull-tab ticket game is available for use without a likelihood of 
confusion with outstanding trademarks. The expense of the search and all associated counsel 
fees will be the responsibility of the Contractor. 

2.1.16 Press Proof. Press proofs (actual design and color) must be made available to the 
Lottery for approval at least seven (7) days prior to production printing of tickets. The Contractor 
shall also notify the Lottery via e-mail at least two (2) weeks prior to the expected print date 
indicating the official print dates. The Lottery will require press proofs for every new game. The 
Lottery may inspect press proofs at the Contractor's facility. The Contractor shall notify the 
Lottery ten working days prior to the printing of the press proofs. 

2.1.17 Quality Control. The Contractor shall allow the Lottery to select three complete 
production cartons of tickets for inspection and approval of quality from among the initial cartons 
produced for each individual order of tickets. All tickets accepted by the Lottery must meet 
specifications in the 'Working Papers". Tickets that do not conform to these specifications shall 
be rejected by the Lottery. The Lottery may, in its sole discretion, reject an entire ticket order if 
the Lottery's sample inspection reveals nonconforming tickets or packaging in the ticket order. 

28 



2.1.18 Production Samples. The initial order of each game shall include 12 units of void 
sample tickets that must not include any winning tickets. The Contractor shall mark "VOID" on 
the back of these sample tickets to assure they cannot be confused with valid game tickets. The 
barcode and human readable number on the front of the ticket shall contain game number 099 
and unit number 999999. 

2.1.19 Durability. Tickets that have been printed and sealed must maintain their original crisp 
appearance, must not warp, and must remain properly sealed, regardless of environment 
encountered in normal handling and usage, for a minimum of two years after delivery by 
Contractors to the Lottery. 

2.1.20 Ticket Security. All production techniques possible must be employed to prevent 
security compromise in the following areas: 

• Opacity 
• Debonding 
• Color or printing variations 
• Cutting variations 
• Positioning of winners in unit 
• Paper 
• Gluing 
• Bendays 
• Ultra-violet inks 
• Selective seeding 

2.1.21 Test Game. A test game consisting of 17,280 tickets printed in accordance with the 
printing specifications listed in this RFP and packaged in accordance with the specifications listed 
in this RFP, shall be produced by the Contractor if the Contractor has not produced a live game 
for the Iowa Lottery within the preceding eighteen (18) months of this RFP. The sample game 
must include all validation algorithms, barcodes and media files associated with a live game. 
Creative ticket art will not be required. Production of a live game will not occur until the Lottery 
has successfully tested a sample game. All costs associated with the production and delivery of 
a sample game at the initiation of the contract will be borne by the Contractor. 

2.2 Packaging 

2.2.1 Unit Assembly and Guarantee. The Contractors production plans and manufacturing 
procedures must ensure: (a) that each unit has the precise quantity of tickets; (b) that the proper 
number and ratio Of winning to losing tickets exists in each unit; and, (c) that there is a random 
distribution of the winning tickets in a given unit and that there is no possibility that individual 
winning tickets could be picked out by their physical location in a unit. 

2.2.2 Unit Packaging. Each unit shall consist of five hundred forty (540) tickets. Each unit must 
be placed in a cardboard tray and individually shrink-wrapped. The cardboard tray sizes shall be 
L 14 1/4" x W 4 3/8" x H 1 1/4" using a 2-ply cardboard. One ticket of the unit is to be '11ipped" 
over and placed on top of the unit with game side up prior to shrink-wrapping, so that the 
barcode, game and unit number are readily identifiable. One Retailer Manual Page shall be 
placed in the bottom of the tray prior to tickets being inserted. 

There shall be one serial number per 540 ticket-count tray, four serial numbers in the carton of 
four trays and a total of 16 serial numbers in a master case of product. Serial numbers are to be 
sequential with omits allowed in the sequential numbering. The unit tray does not require a label; 
the ticket that is "flipped" over is sufficient labeling. 

2.2.3 Carton Packaging. Each carton shall consist of four packaged units of tickets with each 
cardboard carton containing the same total number of tickets (2160 per carton). The size of the 
die cut cardboard carton shall be L 16 1/2" x W 9 1/2" x H 4" and designed to pass a 200 lb crush 
test and 32 lb edge crush test. The carton containing the four units is not to be shrink-wrapped, 

29 



but the carton must be capable of being securely closed for shipment. Each carton must be 
sequentially numbered with its own unique 9-digit number. The carton serial number will be 
structured to indicate the game code {first three digits) and the consecutive carton within the 
game {last six digits). 

2.2.4 Carton Label. Each carton shall contain labeling in the form of a stick-on label or direct 
printing on the outside of the carton with identifying information. Labels or direct printing must be 
no less than 3" x 4 1/2". Each carton label must identify the four unit numbers within the carton. 

2.2.5 Case Packaging. Each case shall consist offour packaged units of four cartons for ease 
of handling and shipment. The cases must be designed to pass a 200 lb crush test and 32 lb 
edge crush test. Standard case size shall beL 17" x W 10" x H 17". 

2.2.6 Case Label. Each case shall contain labeling in the form of a stick-on label or direct 
printing on the outside of the case with identifying information. Labels or direct printing must be 
no less than 3" x 4 1/2". Each case label must identify the case number and unit serial numbers 
within the case. 

2.2.7 Skids. 

2.3 Delivery 

2.2. 7.1 Shipping cases shall be packed on pallets in sequential order secured by stretch 
wrapped plastic. Pallets must be constructed of hardwood lumber or number two 
softwood, capable of withstanding multiple handling by forklift trucks without splintering or 
collapsing. 
2.2.7.2 Pallets are to be 30" x 37" with 3 runners 4" high and 37" long to allow forklift to 
enter the 30" side. Pallet labels are to face outwards and be on 30" side of the pallet. 
The label must show the game code number, the lowest and highest case numbers 
loaded on the pallet, and the pallet number for the game. Pallets shall be numbered one 
through the highest pallet number for the game. 
2.2.7 .3 The cases of tickets will be stacked on pallets not to exceed 55" in height, in 
numerical sequence (clockwise) with the case labels facing out. The lowest numbered 
case shall be on the top layer of the pallet and highest number on the bottom layer. 
2.2.7.4 Each pallet shall be assigned a number with all numbering to be sequential within 
the ticket order. 

2.3.1 Delivery Vehicles and Loading. Tickets are to be delivered in exclusive-use, sealed 
trucks from plant to warehouse. Skids of finished tickets must be loaded with the lowest 
numbered skid in the "nose" of the trailer and the highest numbered skid at the rear of the trailer. 
A minimum of three feet of clearance must be left between the last skid loaded and the cargo 
doors at the rear of the delivery vehicle to facilitate unloading. 

2.3.2 Shipping Documentation. At the time of ticket delivery, the Contractor shall provide three 
separate reports; a) a shipping manifest, b) a shipping report, and c) game file information. 

2.3.3 Delivery of Tickets. Tickets must be delivered FOB destination to the Lottery Warehouse 
located at 1918 SE Hulsizer in Ankeny, Iowa or to any other warehouse location in Iowa 
designated by the Lottery in writing. Continuous and uninterrupted delivery, without storage, 
must be made in accordance with the delivery schedule specified in the working papers. 

2.3.4 Delivery Tolerances. The Contractor shall deliver the ordered quantity for each game 
plus or minus five (5) percent. The Lottery will be billed and will pay only for the actual number of 
conforming tickets delivered. Deliveries in excess of the ordered quantity plus the delivery 
tolerance may be accepted by the Lottery on consignment only. 

30 



2.3.5 Delivery Schedule. The Contractor shall notify the Lottery when tickets are ready for 
shipment. Tickets ordered are not to be shipped from the Contractor's plants or warehouses until 
the Lottery authorizes acceptable times for the shipment of tickets. 

2.3.6 Partial Shipments. The Contractor shall be prepared to supply partial shipments if 
requested by Lottery. 

2.4 Reports and Other Deliverables 

At the time the ticket order is delivered to the Lottery, the Contractor shall provide a shipping manifest, 
shipping report and game file as described below. 

2.4.1 Shipping Manifest. The shipping manifest shall contain the following information: 
• Game number. 
• Game name. 
• Purchase order number. 
• Date picked up at Contractor's plant. 
• Date of delivery to the Lottery. 
• Truck seal number. 
• Listing of omitted cartons and ticket serial numbers. 
• Total number of omitted cartons. 
• Total number of cartons (4 units of tickets per carton). 
• A list providing the carton number, ticket or serial number within that carton broken down 

by individual pallet number. 

2.4.2 Shipping Report. The shipping report shall contain the following information: 
• Gross number of tickets included in the shipment. 
• Number of pallets, 
• Number of cases per pallet. 
• Number of tickets per pallet. 
• Seal number of the truck lock. The seal number must also appear on the bill of lading for 

the shipment. 

2.4.3 Game File. The game file shall be a sequential listing of all case numbers and unit serial 
numbers within the shipment. The game file shall be provided on a CD compatible with the 
Lottery computer system. The game file shall be sequential and all-inclusive with missing units 
(omits) designated on the game file. 

2.5 Security 

2.5.1 Cost of Travel for Ticket Printing. The Lottery may be present during the production of 
all ticket orders produced and shall have the right, acting by itself or through its authorized 
representatives, to enter the premises of the Contractor at all times to examine the game and to 
inspect and copy the records of the Contractor pertaining to the operation of the Lottery account. 

Normal travel expenses relating to ticket inspections will be paid by the Lottery. 

Current practice is to have a Lottery Security staff person inspect the printing of ticket backs and 
UV ink applications and monitor the process of hand-seeding for all tickets having a prize greater 
than $600. 

2.5.2 Plant Security Requirement. All plants in which the game tickets are produced must be 
equipped with a complete plant security system acceptable to the Lottery, which must include 
controlled access, building intrusion alarm system and monitoring cameras. Contractor must 
provide a written description of all plant security system updates or changes made by the 
Contractor and any subcontractors during the term of this contract or any extension periods. 

31 



2.5.3 Waste Materials. All tickets or ticket parts wasted in the manufacturing processes 
throughout the plant are to be accounted for and destroyed. These materials must be destroyed 
by shredding, burning or dissolving on the printer's premises. Scrap materials cannot leave the 
printer's premises until processed to render them unrecognizable as lottery materials. The 
Contractor shall provide the Lottery with a written description of any changes made to 
this method during the term of the Agreement. 

2.5.4 Storage. Finished tickets are to be stored in a secured area which must include controlled 
access and monitoring cameras. If the Lottery requests a delayed delivery date other than the 
delivery date specified in the working papers, the Contractor shall be required to store tickets for 
up to ninety (90) days at no additional cost to the Lottery. 

2.5.5 Security Breach Notification. The Contractor shall notify the Vice President of Lottery 
Security immediately via telephone and in writing of any breach of security experienced by the 
Contractor during the term of the contract including but not limited to the theft or disappearance of 
any paper stock, data media, cylinders, tickets, waste, film, printing plates, etc. 

2.5.6 Property of Lottery. Tickets produced for the Lottery are proprietary materials, and shall 
not be furnished by the Contractor to any other country, state, organization, company, agency, 
jobber, distributor or individual other than the Iowa Lottery. Rejected tickets or materials in the 
possession of the Contractor shall be stored by the Contractor in a secure area until the Lottery 
advises the Contractor in writing as to the disposition of such tickets or materials. 

2.6 Corporate Marketing Support 

2.6.1 The Contractor must apply its best efforts to support the Lottery game design and 
marketing, assisting the Lottery to achieve its financial objectives. A Contractor must be able to 
accommodate the Lottery's marketing plans and efforts with corporate marketing support that 
includes, but is not limited to: 

2.6.1.1 Retailer Manual Pages. The Contractor shall design, produce and provide 
Retailer Manual Pages as described herein. The initial order of a game shall include 950 
Retailer Manual Pages. These Retailer Manual Pages shall be packaged in quantities of 
fifty and shrink-wrapped. The Retailer Manual Page shall be approved by the Lottery. 
Each page is to be printed on 6" x 4" recycled enamel 1 00# paper with multi-colors to be 
selected, full bleed, and printed on both sides. Each page shall be six-hole punched. 
The retailer manual page shall include, but not be limited to the following 
information: 

SIDE 1 
(a) The number and name of the game. 
(b) Reproductions of the front of the game ticket and the back of the game 

ticket with one or two tabs pulled displaying a winner. 
(c) The prize payout percentage. 
(d) The price per ticket. 
(e) The number of tickets and the retail sales per unit. 
{f) The prize structure per unit. 
(g) The total number of winning tickets and the total amount won per unit. 
{h) The odds of winning. 
(i) The retailer cost and profit per unit. 
SIDE2 
(a) "How to Play" instructions 
{b) "Validation Requirements" explanation. 

32 



2.6.1.2 Sales Sheets. The Contractor shall design, produce and provide 660 Lottery 
approved Sales Sheets at least seven (7) working days prior to the start of each new 
game launch. The Sales Sheet shall be shipped directly to each of the five (5) Lottery 
regions and Lottery headquarters. The Contractor shall design, produce and provide 
Sales Sheets as described herein. The Sales Sheet design shall be submitted to the 
Lottery for approval. Each Sales Sheet designed shall be printed on 8.5" x 11" white 
100# signature gloss enamel stock with multi-colors (to be selected at a later time), full 
bleed, and printed two sides. The sales sheet shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following information for each game available for sale: 

A reproduction of the front of the game ticket. 
The game number and name. 
The game information grouped by sales price point. 
The number of tickets per unit. 
The retail sales per unit. 
The total amount of prizes per unit. 
The retailer commission per unit. 
The retailer net cost per unit. 
A reproduction of the Lottery logo. 

2.6.1.3 Marketing Support. The Contractor shall provide marketing support to assist 
the lottery with prize structure and game design, game names, themes, play formats, 
industry trends, lottery data processing, lottery accounting, and lottery security. The 
Lottery reserves the right to approve the account representative(s). Costs for marketing 
services provided by the account representative and any required support staff shall be 
included in the printing prices. 

The representative will be responsible for providing the following services: 
o Coordination of contract execution between the Lottery and the Contractor 

including working papers for specific games, ticket art design, prize 
structures, schedules, production, ticket printing and ticket delivery. 

o Provide support in game design and strategic planning of the pull-tab 
product. 

o Recommend game offerings, prize structures, pricing and point-of-sale 
strategies. 

o Contractor representative must identify any special printing techniques or 
costs associated with the Contractors recommendation for tickets. 

o Be readily available by telephone or other means of business 
communication. 

o Meet with Lottery personnel, typically one time per calendar year or as may 
be requested by Lottery. 

o Provide promotional ideas or concepts available for licensing to enhance 
pull-tab sales. 

33 



SCHEDULE B 
PRICING MATRIX 

SECTION 1. PRICING FOR GAMES AND OTHER MATERIALS. The prices of tickets 
provided by the Contractor shall be as follows: 

Ticket Quantity 
250,000 
500,000 
1,000,000 
1,500,000 
2,000,000 
2,500,000 
3,000,000 
3,500,000 
4,000,000 
5,000,000 

Cost of Order 
$5,075 
$7,995 

$14,400 
$20,670 
$27,100 
$33,150 
$38,550 
$40,005 
$50,440 
$62,350 

Cost per Ticket 
$0.02030 
$0.01599 
$0.01440 
$0.01378 
$0.01355 
$0.01326 
$0.01285 
$0.01143 
$0.01261 
$0.01247 

SECTION 2. NEW GAME DEVELOPMENT. The development of a new game shall include 
creative development, trademark search, press proofs, 12 units of sample tickets, 950 retailer 
pages and 660 sales sheets. 

SECTION 3. ONE TIME SET-UP CHARGE. Contractor will charge the Lottery a one-time 
charge for developing each new game the sum of $3,500. This charge will be billed in 
accordance with section 7, of this Agreement. 

SECTION 4. ADDITIONAL PRODUCT PRICING. Upon request by the Lottery in the Working 
Papers, the Contractor shall provide selective "seeding" of tickets, ultra-violet ink, and/or 
fluorescent inks. Additional costs for these products are: 

Ultra-violet inks Add $500 per game 
Fluorescent inks Add $0.15/square inch/per thousand 

tickets 
Selective seeding Add 10% of the base game price per 

game 

Standard industry ticket size with Discount of $0.65 per 1000 tickets* 
barcode activation insert* 

*Standard industry ticket size is 1 7 /8" x 3 %", a shorter 5 tab ticket with a barcode insert or 
barcode activation card to be inserted into each pull-tab unit of tickets. (Current Lottery ticket 
size is 1 7/8" x 4 W'.) 

Pricing for other printing options, full barcode validation and or promotional ideas to be 
determined based upon final specifications at time of order. 

34 



2323 Grand Avenue • Des Moines • Iowa • 50312·5307 
Telephone: 515·725·7900 • Fax: 515·725·7882 
www.ialottery.com 

April 22, 2014 

TO: Iowa Lottery Authority Board 
FA: Larry Loss 
RE: Maintenance of Pull-Tab and Instant Vending Machines 

Chester J. Culver • Governor 
Patty Judge • Lt. Governor 

Terry Rich • Chief Executive Officer 

The Iowa Lottery Board approved the purchase of instant ticket and pull-tab 
vending machines in 2004. In association with the vending machines, the Iowa 
Lottery has had contracts in place for the maintenance and distribution of the 
machines. 

Because the machines continue to be in good operating order, it is our intent to 
continue using the machines. This will require a new maintenance contract. 
While other service companies may be able to provide maintenance of the 
machines, they would incur the expense of a background investigation and must 
purchase all parts from American Games who holds the patent for the modular 
components of the machines. Based on these facts, the Lottery feels American 
Games is a sole source provider for the maintenance. 

Today we ask the Board to enter into a one-year agreement with American 
Games for the maintenance of pull-tab and instant ticket vending machines with 
the contract ending date of September 30, 2015. 



AGREEMENT FOR MAINTENANCE OF 

PULL-TAB and INSTANT TICKET 

VENDING MACHINES 

October 1, 2014 

1 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 1. Identity of parties 1 
SECTION 2. Purpose 1 
SECTION 3. Definitions 1 
SECTION 4. Term 2 
SECTION 5. Scope of Work 2 
SECTION 6. Compensation 2 
SECTION 7. Insurance 4 
SECTION 8 Bonds 6 
SECTION 9. Intellectual Property 6 
SECTION 10. Contractor Representations and Warranties 7 
SECTION 11. Indemnification 8 
SECTION 12. Default and Termination 9 
SECTION 13. Confidential Information 10 
SECTION 14. Contract Administration 11 
SECTION 15. Execution 19 

SCHEDULE A- MAINTENANCE PROGRAM SCOPE OF SERVICES 20 

1 



AGREEMENT FOR MAINTENANCE OF 
PULL-TAB and INSTANT TICKET VENDING MACHINES 

This Agreement for maintenance of pull-tab and instant ticket vending machines 
("Agreement") is effective on October 1, 2014, and is entered into by and between the Iowa 
Lottery Authority ("Lottery"), and Pollard Games, Inc., doing business as American Games, Inc. 
("Contractor''). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, the sufficiency of 
which is acknowledged, it is agreed as follows: 

SECTION 1. IDENTITY OF THE PARTIES. 

1.1 The Lottery is an instrumentality of the State of Iowa whose address is 2323 Grand Avenue, 
Des Moines, lA 50312. The Lottery is authorized by Iowa Code chapter 99G to conduct a 
lottery in the state of Iowa. 

1.2 The Contractor is a corporation incorporated in Delaware engaged in the business of, 
among other things, providing ITVM and PTVM equipment and related services with a full 
service office in Iowa. The address for Contractor is 504 34th Avenue, Council Bluffs, lA 51501. 

SECTION 2. PURPOSE. The Lottery is desirous of hiring Contractor to provide maintenance, 
repair, relocation and storage of instant and pull-tab vending machines. The Contractor designs 
and manufactures vending equipment and has the requisite skill, expertise, and personnel 
required to assist the Lottery in providing a full service maintenance program. 

SECTION 3. DEFINITIONS. The following words shall have the meanings set forth below. 
Words in the singular shall be held to include the plural and vice versa, and words of gender 
shall be held to include any other gender as the context requires. For the purposes of this 
Agreement, the following terms and all other terms defined in this Agreement shall have the 
meanings so defined unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 

3.1 "Party'' means either of the legal entities identified in Section 1 of this Agreement. 

3.2 "ITVM" means instant ticket vending machine manufactured by the Contractor and owned 
by the Lottery. 

3.3 "PTVM" means pull-tab ticket vending machine manufactured by the Contractor and owned 
by the Lottery. 

3.4 "Relocation" means the moving of either ITVM or PTVM to a different retail location in Iowa 
or storage facility maintained by Contractor. 

3.5 "Maintenance Program" means a full service program to include a toll-free number for 
trouble calls, dispatching service, replacement parts for equipment and knowledgeable service 
personnel to repair equipment. 

3.6 "Fully Installed" means a machine that has been installed in a retail location, is fully 
operational, and for which the retailer has been trained. 

1 



3.7 "Non-Functional Machine" means, subject to Section 3 of Schedule A, a machine that does 
not properly dispense tickets, accept money, perform accounting functions, or that fails to 
properly operate for any other reason. 

SECTION 4. TERM. The term of this Agreement will be from October 1, 2014 to September 
30, 2015 with no additional renewal option periods. 

SECTION 5. SCOPE OF WORK. 

5.1 Scope of Services. The maintenance program to be performed pursuant to and as a result 
of this Agreement by the Contractor are described on Schedule A attached hereto and made a 
part hereof by this reference. 

5.2 Amendments to Scope of Services. The parties agree that Schedule A, Maintenance 
Program Scope of Services, may be revised, replaced, amended or deleted at any time during 
the term of this Agreement to reflect changes in service or performance standards upon the 
mutual written consent of the parties. Any such changes shall be documented in an 
Amendment to this Agreement, as contemplated in section 14.3. 

5.3 Industry Standards. In the absence of a detailed specification for the performance of any 
portion of this Agreement, the parties agree that the applicable specification shall be the 
generally accepted industry standard for related services. 

5.4 Personnel to Perform the Services. The Lottery reserves the right to disapprove of any 
employee of the Contractor directly involved in maintenance services. If the Lottery disapproves 
of any such person, the Contractor shall ensure that they are not involved in the service of the 
Lottery's equipment. The Contractor shall require new employees involved with the 
maintenance service to submit to background investigations by the Lottery and to complete all 
background disclosure forms as may be required by the Lottery. 
5.5 Ticket Purchase Restrictions. As stated in Iowa Code Chapter 99G.31(2)(h), "No ticket 
or share issued by the authority shall be purchased by and no prize shall be paid to any officer, 
employee, agent, or subcontractor of any vendor or to any spouse, child, brother, sister, or 
parent residing as a member of the same household in the principal place of residence or any 
such person if such officer, employee, agent, or subcontractor has access to confidential 
information which may compromise the integrity of the Lottery." All ticket purchases (pull-tab 
and instant) that are dispensed from a PTVM or ITVM are prohibited. 

5.6 Ownership. All vending machines remain the property of the Lottery at all times, unless 
and until such time as, the Lottery may sell the vending machines back to the Contractor. At its 
sole discretion, Contractor may, upon request by the Lottery, agree to purchase any PTVM or 
ITVM equipment from the Lottery at a price of $1.00 per machine with all transactions to be 
documented in writing. 

SECTION 6. COMPENSATION. 

6.1 Pricing. Upon execution of the Agreement, the total number of machines installed at retail 
locations throughout Iowa is 999 PTVM's and 302 ITVM's. The Lottery agrees to pay 
reasonable cost for replacement parts as deemed necessary and approved by the Lottery, and 
the following relocation fees and monthly maintenance fees: 

Monthly maintenance fees shall be: 

2 



6 column PTVM 
12 column PTVM 
12 bin ITVM 
16 bin ITVM 
20 bin ITVM 

Relocation fees shall be: 
PTVM relocation 
ITVM relocation 

$30.50 per machine/month 
$30.50 per machine/month 
$50.00 per machine/month 
$50.00 per machine/month 
$50.00 per machine/month 

$115 per machine/relocation 
$450 per machine/relocation 

6.2 Payment to Contractor. 

6.2.1 The Contractor shall submit a detailed monthly invoice to the Lottery for the 
maintenance program and any relocations. Machines may be removed from the serviceable 
inventory due to damage such as fire, flood, break-in, etc. Once a machine is removed from the 
serviceable inventory, the machine must be removed from the invoice list for service. 

6.2.2 The Lottery shall pay all approved invoices in arrears and in conformance with 
Iowa Code Section 8A.514 and 11 lAC § 41.1 (2). The Lottery may vary the terms of this 
provision by paying the bill for services in less than 60 days as provided in Iowa Code Section 
8A.514. However, an election to pay in less than 60 days shall not act as an implied waiver of 
Iowa Code Section 8A.514. 

6.3 Set-Off Against Sums Owed by Contractor. In the event that the Contractor owes the 
Lottery or the state of Iowa any sum under the terms of this Agreement, any other Agreement, 
pursuant to any judgment, or pursuant to any law, the Lottery may set-off the sum owed to the 
Lottery or the State against any sum billed to the Lottery by the Contractor in the Lottery's sole 
discretion unless otherwise required by law. 

6.4 State not to be Obligated. Pursuant to Iowa Code Section 99G.38, the funds of the state 
of Iowa, as opposed to the funds of the Iowa Lottery Authority, are not available to meet the 
obligations of the Lottery that may arise from this Agreement. 

6.5 Delay of Payment Due to Contractor's Failure. If the Lottery in good faith determines 
that the Contractor has failed to perform or deliver any task or product as required by this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any payment in relation to that particular task 
or product under this Agreement until such task or product is completed or delivered. Except for 
situations covered in Section 6.6, Liquidated Damages, the Lottery will give the Contractor prior 
written notice detailing the failure and ten {10) days to effect cure of the failure. In the event of 
partial performance, the Lottery may only withhold that portion of the Contractor's fee, which 
represents payment for the unsatisfactory services. 

6.6 Liquidated Damages. 

The parties acknowledge that the Contractor's failure to perform, or to perform in a timely 
manner, will have an adverse impact on the Lottery's ability to maximize the sale of Lottery 
tickets. The parties also acknowledge that it will be difficult to determine the amount of 
damages caused by the Contractor's failure. Accordingly, the Contractor agrees to the following 
liquidated damages as reasonable damages in each of the following circumstances provided 
that the failure or delay in performance is caused solely by the fault or neglect of the Contractor 

3 



and is not contributed to or occasioned by the fault or neglect of the Lottery or any third party, 
nor caused by force majeure: 

6.6.1 The Contractor shall pay the Lottery $50.00 per day or part of a day, per 
machine, that each machine is not Fully lnstalle.d within the time frame established for 
machine relocations. 

6.6.2 The Contractor shall pay the Lottery $200 per day or part of a day, per machine, 
for each machine that remains Non-Functional beyond the Grace Period (as defined in 
Schedule A, Section 5) as defined in Section 3. 7. 

6.6.3 The Contractor shall pay the Lottery $200.00 per day for any machine delivered 
to retail locations in an unsatisfactory condition. An unsatisfactory condition is defined 
but not limited to a machine that is dirty, damaged or Non-Functional. 

6.7 Remedies. The remedies provided throughout this Agreement including, without limitation, 
the remedies associated with Non-Functional and not Fully Installed machines, are not intended 
to be exclusive and do not prevent either party from seeking any other legal or equitable remedy 
provided by applicable law or this Agreement. 

SECTION 7. INSURANCE. 

7.1 Coverage Requirements. The Contractor shall maintain in effect, with insurance 
companies of recognized responsibility, at its own expense, insurance covering its work during 
the entire term of this Agreement. The Contractor's insurance shall, among other things, be 
occurrence based and shall insure against any loss or damage resulting from or related to the 
Contractor's performance of this Agreement regardless of the date the claim is filed or expiration 
of the policy. Only companies authorized to transact business in the state of Iowa shall issue 
insurance policies and certificates. All such insurance policies shall remain in full force and 
effect for the entire life of this Agreement. Proof of compliance with this section shall be 
provided by Contractor to the Lottery immediately upon execution of this Agreement. 

7.2 Types of Coverage. Unless otherwise requested by the Lottery, Contractor shall, at its 
sole cost, cause to be issued and maintained during the entire term of the contract the 
insurance coverage's set forth below each naming the Lottery as an additional insured's or loss 
payee, as applicable: 

Type of Insurance Limit Amount 
General Liability (Including contractual General Aggregate $2 million 
liability)written on an occurrence basis 

Products Completed $1 million 
Operations AQQreQate 
Personal lniurv $1 million 
Each Occurrence $1 million 

Automobile Liability, including any auto, Combined Single limit $1 million 
hired autos and non-owned autos 

Errors and Omissions Policy Each Occurrence $1 million 

4 



Excess Liability, Umbrella Form Each Occurrence $2 million 
Aggregate $2 million 

Workers Compensation and Employer As required by law 
Liability 

Property Damage Each Occurrence $250,000 
Aggregate $250,000 

7.3 Coverage for Lottery Property or Personnel on Contractor Premises. The policies 
must provide coverage for damages to the Lottery's property or personnel, which occurs on the 
Contractor's premises or premises under the control of the Contractor or Contractor's 
subcontractors. 

7.4 Claims Without Regard to Claim. All insurance policies required by this Agreement, with 
the exception of the Errors and Omissions Policy, shall provide coverage for all claims arising 
from activities occurring during the term of the policy regardless of the date the claim is filed or 
expiration of the policy. 

7.5 Notice Regarding Cancellation. Certificates of insurance, which provide that the Lottery 
will be notified at least thirty (30) days prior to cancellation or expiration of the insurance 
coverage required by this Agreement shall be provided to the Lottery at the time of execution of 
the Agreement or at a time mutually agreeable to the parties. The receipt of such certificates 
does not constitute approval of the coverage contained on the certificates, and the Contractor 
remains responsible for determining that its insurance coverage meets each and every 
requirement of this Agreement. The insurer shall state in the certificate that no cancellation of 
the insurance will be made without at least thirty (30) days prior notice to the Lottery and that 
the notice shall be directed to the Lottery in writing. 

7.6 No Limitation of Liability. Acceptance of the insurance certificates by the Lottery shall not 
act to relieve the Contractor of any obligation under this Agreement. All insurance policies and 
certificates shall be issued only by companies authorized to transact business in the state of 
Iowa. 

7.7 Warranty. The Contractor warrants that it has examined its insurance coverage and 
determined that Lottery may be named as additional insured or loss payee without creating an 
adverse effect on the Contractor's coverage. 

7.8 Waiver of Subrogation Rights. The Contractor shall obtain a waiver of any subrogation 
rights that any of its insurance carriers might have against the Iowa Lottery or the state of Iowa. 
The waiver of subrogation rights shall be indicated on the certificates of insurance coverage 
supplied to the Lottery. 

7.9 Scope of Property Insurance. The Contractor shall not be responsible for any loss or 
damage to machines where the cause of such loss or damage cannot reasonably be attributed 
to the acts or omissions of the Contractor, its agents or employees. 

5 



SECTION 8. BONDS. 

8.1 Performance Bond. The Contractor shall post a performance bond in the amount of fifty 
thousand dollars ($50,000) to the Lottery within ten (1 0) days of commencement of the term of 
the Agreement. The Contractor shall pay the cost of the bond. In the event that the Contractor 
or any subcontractor or any officer, director, employee or agent of the Contractor or any 
subcontractor or any parent or subsidiary corporation of the Contractor or subcontractor fails to 
fully and faithfully perform each material requirement of this Agreement, including without 
limitation the Contractor's obligation to indemnify the Lottery and pay damages to the Lottery, 
the Lottery shall make claim against the bond. The bond may be renewable annually. Neither 
non-renewal by the Surety, nor failure or inability of the Contractor to file a replacement bond in 
the event the Surety exercises its right to not renew this bond, shall itself constitute a loss to the 
Obligee recoverable under this bond. The bond shall be in a form customarily used in the 
lottery industry and shall be written by a Surety authorized to do business in Iowa and that is 
acceptable to the Lottery. The bond shall be in effect at all times during the term of the 
Agreement and for ninety (90) days following the conclusion of the Agreement. The Contractor 
represents and warrants that it will maintain the required performance bond coverage as 
described herein without any lapse in coverage. 

8.2 Fidelity Bond. The Contractor shall post a fidelity bond in the amount of two hundred 
thousand dollars ($200,000) to the Lottery within ten (1 0) days of commencement of the term of 
the Agreement. The Contractor shall pay the cost of the bond. The bond shall provide funds to 
the Lottery in the event that the Contractor or Lottery suffers any liability, loss, damage, or 
expense as a result of any fraudulent or dishonest act or omission of the Contractor or any 
parent or subsidiary corporation of the Contractor, which occurs during the term of the bond 
regardless of the date the act or omission is discovered, or a claim is made. The bond shall be 
in a form customarily used in the lottery industry, and shall be written by a Surety authorized to 
do business in Iowa and that is acceptable by the Lottery. This bond shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of the Agreement and for one (1) year following the conclusion of the 
Agreement. The Contractor represents and warrants that it will maintain the required fidelity 
bond coverage as described herein without any lapse in coverage. 

8.3 Provision of Bonds. Failure on the part of the Contractor to furnish such bonds, or other 
proof of bond coverage acceptable to the Lottery within ten (1 0) days of commencement of the 
term, or to maintain the bonds in full force and effect during the term of the Agreement shall be 
a material breach of the Agreement and shall be considered cause for the Lottery to declare the 
Contractor in default under this Agreement. The Lottery's receipt of such bonds or other proof 
of coverage does not constitute approval of the bonds' coverage nor do the bonds relieve the 
Contractor from the faithful and honest performance of the Agreement or relieve the Contractor 
of any losses greater than the bond amount. 

SECTION 9. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY. 

9.1 The Lottery's Trademarks, Service Marks, and Trade Names. The Lottery's trademarks, 
including game names, trade names and service marks used on materials produced pursuant to 
this Agreement shall remain the sole property of the Lottery. The Contractor shall not use these 
marks or names on products sold to any person or entity other than the Lottery. The Lottery's 
marks and specifications concerning the marks shall be provided to the Contractor by the 
Lottery. The Lottery's marks and names shall be reproduced exactly as specified by the Lottery 
and only in the quantity specified. 

6 



9.2 Acquisition of Proprietary Rights Held by Others. 
The Contractor shall obtain releases, licenses, permits and all other authorizations necessary to 
use licensed property in which third parties have any rights or interests if the licensed property 
will be used in association with any materials furnished to the Lottery. The Contractor shall 
ensure that the Lottery's use of the licensed property with Contractor participation or in the 
manner communicated to the Contractor will not exceed any applicable limitations. The 
Contractor shall bear the costs associated with the acquisition of any proprietary rights unless 
prior authorization has been issued by the Lottery. 

9.3 Warranty Regarding Intellectual Property Rights. The Contractor represents and 
warrants that, in the performance of this Agreement, Contractor's work product and the 
information, data, designs, processes, inventions, techniques, devices, and other such 
intellectual property furnished, used, or relied upon by Contractor will not infringe any copyright, 
patent, trademark, trade dress or other Contractor Intellectual Property Right or others; 
provided, however, that the Contractor need provide no such warranty for information, data, 
designs, processes, inventions, techniques, devices and other such intellectual property 
furnished to Contractor by the Lottery. 

9.4 Approval of Materials by Contractor. The Lottery's approval of materials submitted by 
the Contractor shall not be construed as relieving the Contractor of any of its responsibilities 
under this Agreement. 

9.5 Possession of Copies. Upon request, the Contractor shall deliver to the Lottery and the 
Lottery may retain all copies of all materials produced as a result of or in accordance with this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 10. CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 

10.1 All representations and warranties made by the Contractor in all provisions of this 
Agreement, whether or not this Agreement specifically denominates the Contractor's promise as 
a warranty or whether the warranty is created only by the Contractor's affirmation or promise, or 
is created by a description of the materials and services to be provided, or by provision of 
samples to the Lottery, shall not be construed as limiting or negating any warranty provided by 
law, including without limitation, warranties which arise through course of dealing or usage of 
trade. The warranties expressed in this Agreement are intended to modify the warranties 
implied by law only to the extent that they expand the warranties applicable to the goods and 
services provided by the Contractor. 

10.2 The Contractor represents and warrants that the related materials, goods and services to 
be provided to the Lottery pursuant to this Agreement shall be suitable for their intended 
purposes. The Contractor acknowledges that the Lottery is relying on the Contractor's skill and 
judgment to provide equipment and services fit in all respects for this purpose that will be 
designed to maximize tickets sales for the Lottery. 

10.3 The Contractor represents and warrants that title to the materials conveyed to the Lottery 
shall be good and that transfer of title is rightful and that the materials shall be delivered free of 
any security interest or other lien or encumbrance. 

10.4 The Contractor represents and warrants that it has the right to enter into and to fully 
perform this Agreement upon the terms and conditions specified and that it has not granted and 

7 



will not grant any right or interest to any person or entity which might derogate, encumber, or 
interfere with the rights granted to the Lottery. 

10.5 The Contractor represents and warrants that all services provided shall be performed in a 
prompt, competent and workmanlike manner by properly trained individuals in accordance with 
the industry standards of the Contractor's profession. 

10.6 The Contractor represents and warrants that the design, manufacture and sale or use by 
the Lottery of materials provided by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will not infringe 
on any intellectual property rights of any other person or entity. 

10.7 The Contractor represents and warrants that it has not made any misrepresentations to 
the Lottery related to this Agreement or the products and services to be provided pursuant to 
this Agreement. "Misrepresentations" include material omissions. 

SECTION 11. INDEMNIFICATION. 

11.1 The Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the state of Iowa and the Lottery, its 
employees, agents, board members, appointed officials and elected officials, harmless from any 
and all liabilities, damages, loss, claims, suits or actions, settlements, judgments, costs and 
expenses, including reasonable value of time for the Attorney General's Office, and the 
reasonable costs and expenses and reasonable attorney fees of other counsel required to 
defend the Lottery, related to or arising from: 

11.1.1 Any violation or breach of this Agreement by the Contractor, its employees, or 
agents; or 

11.1.2 Any negligent acts or omissions of Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, 
board members, contractors, or subcontractors, employed by Contractor in the performance of 
this Agreement; or 

11.1.3 Any failure by the Contractor to comply with all applicable local, state and federal 
laws and regulations; or, 

11.1.4 Any failure by the Contractor to make all reports, payments and withholdings 
required by Federal and State law with respect to social security, employee income and other 
taxes, fees or costs required by the Contractor to conduct business in the state of Iowa; or, 

11.1.5 Any event in which a third-party asserts that the Lottery's use of an ITVM or a 
PTVM provided by Contractor to the Lottery is a violation of such party's rights; provided, 
however, that Contractor need provide no such indemnification for claims which relate solely to 
information, data, designs, processes, inventions, techniques, devices and other such 
intellectual property furnished to Contractor by the Lottery. 

11.2 The Contractor's duty to indemnify as set forth in this section shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement and shall apply to all acts taken in the performance of this 
Agreement regardless of the date any potential claim is made or discovered by the Lottery. 

8 



SECTION 12. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION. 

12.1 Termination for Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice 
for the substantial breach by the other party of any material term, if such breach is not cured, 
provided that a cure is possible within 1 0 days following receipt of written notice of breach from 
the non-breaching party. Substantial breach events include but are not limited to the following: 

12.1.1 Contractor fails to materially perform as required by this Agreement; 

12.1.2 Contractor fails to make substantial and timely progress toward performance or 
fails to meet any of the material specifications and requirements of this Agreement, including 
without limitation the representations and warranties provided in this Agreement. 

12.1.3 Lottery fails to materially perform as required by this Agreement including failure 
to make timely payment for goods and services rendered. 

12.2 Notice of Cure. If a cure is possible, the notice shall specify the exact date by which the 
condition must be cured. Following expiration of the opportunity to cure and notice from the 
non-breaching party, if the breach remains uncured the non-breaching party may seek any legal 
or equitable remedy authorized by this Agreement or by law. 

12.3 Immediate Termination. The Lottery may terminate this Agreement, effective 
immediately without advance notice and without penalty or legal liability for any of the following 
reasons: 

12.3.1 If the Contractor furnished any statement, representation, warranty or 
certification in connection with this Agreement, which is materially false, deceptive, incorrect or 
incomplete. 

12.3.2 If the Lottery determines that satisfactory performance of this Agreement is 
substantially endangered or that a default is likely to occur. 

12.3.3 If the Contractor becomes subject to any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding 
under federal or state law to the extent allowed by applicable state or federal law including 
bankruptcy laws. 

12.3.4 If the Contractor terminates or suspends its business. 

12.3.5 If the Lottery reasonably believes that the Contractor has become insolvent or 
unable to pay its obligations as they accrue consistent with applicable federal or state law. 

12.3.6 If an officer, director or employee with significant contact with the Lottery's 
account is or has been convicted of a felony, any gambling related offense whether a 
misdemeanor or felony, or of any state of federal Racketeer Influenced or corrupt Organization 
Act (RICO) by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

12.3.7 If it is alleged that the Contractor's processes or materials that are material to this 
Contract violate any valid patent, trademark, copyright, other intellectual property right or 
contract, and the Lottery reasonably believes that the allegation may impair the Contractor's 
performance of this Agreement. 

9 



12.3.8 If during the course of this Agreement any action by the Contractor substantially 
interferes with the Lottery's relationship with its licensed retailers, or promotes products or 
distribution systems that compete with authorized Lottery products or distribution systems. 

12.3.9 If cancellation occurs for any of the causes set forth above, the Lottery shall have 
no further obligation to the Contractor other than payment for services rendered and materials 
provided prior to cancellation. Payment will be made only upon submission of invoices and 
proper proof of the Contractor's claim. This provision in no way limits the remedies available to 
the Lottery in the event of a termination under this provision. 

12.4 Termination for Convenience. Following sixty (60) days written notice, the Lottery may 
terminate this Agreement in whole or in part for convenience without the payment of any penalty 
or incurring any further obligation to the Contractor. 

12.5 Termination for Lack of Authority or Funding. Notwithstanding anything in this 
Agreement to the contrary, and subject to the limitations, conditions, and procedures set forth 
below, the Lottery shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without penalty or legal 
liability by giving sixty (60) days written notice if any of the following contingencies occur: 

• If the Lottery's authorization to operate is withdrawn or there is a material alteration in 
the programs the Lottery administers; or 

• If Lottery's duties are substantially modified. 

12.6 Remedies of Contractor. In the event of termination of this Agreement the Contractor 
shall be paid for services completed prior to termination upon submission of invoices and proper 
proof of claim, for services and materials provided to the Lottery prior to cancellation and for 
reasonable industrial costs of work-in-progress. 

12.7 No Release of Obligation. The expiration or termination of this Agreement for any cause 
shall not release either party from: 

12.7.1 Any obligations and duties remaining under any order accepted by the 
Contractor prior to such expiration or termination; 

12.7.2 Any liability which at the time of expiration or termination has already accrued to 
the other party, or, which thereafter may accrue in respect to any event prior to expiration or 
termination; or 

12.7.3 Any liability from any obligation that survives expiration or termination. 

SECTION 13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 

13.1 All Confidential Information provided shall be clearly marked as Confidential Information 
by the party providing the information at the time of disclosure to the other party. The 
Contractor shall limit such identification to information it reasonably believes is entitled to 
confidential treatment pursuant to the public records provisions of Iowa law. Each party shall 
hold the Confidential Information of the other in strictest confidence and, except as previously 
authorized in writing by the other party, (i) shall use the Confidential Information only in 
furtherance of this Agreement, (ii) shall not copy Confidential Information and (iii) shall not 
disclose the Confidential Information to any person or entity except those employees of the 
party to whom the information has been disclosed who have a need to know the Confidential 
Information for purposes contemplated by this Agreement. The parties' obligations under this 

10 



provision do not apply to information which: is publicly available or in the public domain when 
provided; is or becomes publicly available or public domain information through no fault of the 
recipient of the information subsequent to the time it was provided; is rightfully communicated to 
the recipient of the information by another party; is independently developed by the recipient; or 
is disclosed pursuant to law or the order of a court or government authority. The parties' 
obligations under this provision shall survive the conclusion of this Agreement and shall be 
perpetual. 

13.2 No private or confidential data collected, maintained, or used in the course of performance 
of the Agreement shall be disseminated except as authorized by statute or section 14.1, either 
during the period of the Agreement or thereafter. Any data supplied to American Games by the 
Lottery shall be considered the property of the Lottery. 

13.3 American Games shall use its best efforts to ensure that the details of pull-tab and instant 
games offered by the Lottery are not disclosed to persons or organizations other than the 
personnel, agents, and subcontractors of American Games whose assistance is necessary for 
the dispensing of the tickets in Lottery equipment. In the event that American Games receives a 
request for information or records concerning the Lottery or its advertising plans, American 
Games shall immediately forward the request to the Lottery. 

13.4 In the event American Games receives a request from a third party (other than a 
subcontractor working on Contractor's Lottery account) for information supplied to American 
Games by the Lottery, American Games shall immediately notify the Lottery of the request by 
telephone and fax. American Games will not release the information subject to the request 
without the Lottery's permission or pursuant to a court order or as may be required by law. 

13.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in the event a public records request is 
made to the Lottery pursuant to Iowa Code chapter 22 regarding Confidential Information, the 
Lottery shall notify Contractor as soon as possible of the request by telephone and fax. The 
Lottery may respond to the request for information not sooner than 7 days thereafter with a 
release of the requested information unless prohibited by law or American Games has obtained 
an injunction preventing release of the requested information. 

SECTION 14. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION. 

14.11ndependent Contractor. 

14.1.1 The status of the Contractor shall be that of an independent contractor. The 
Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractor performing under this Agreement are not 
employees or agents of the Lottery. 

14.1.2 The Lottery shall not provide the Contractor with office space, support staff, 
equipment, tools, or supervision beyond the terms of this Agreement. 

14.1.3 Neither the Contractor nor its employees, agents and subcontractors are eligible 
for any State employee benefits, including but not limited to, retirement benefits, insurance 
coverage or the like. 

14.1.4 Neither the Contractor nor its employees shall be considered employees of the 
Lottery or the state of Iowa for federal or state tax purposes. The Lottery shall not withhold 

11 



taxes on behalf of the Contractor (unless required by law). The Contractor shall be responsible 
for payment of all taxes in connection with any income earned from this Agreement. 

14.2 Compliance with the Law and Regulations. 

14.2.1 The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
rules, ordinances, regulations and orders when performing within the scope of this Agreement, 
including without limitation, all laws applicable to the prevention of discrimination in employment, 
the administrative rules of the Iowa Department of Management or the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission which pertain to equal employment opportunity and affirmative action, laws relating 
to prevailing wages, occupational safety and health standards, prevention of discrimination in 
employment, payment of taxes, gift laws, lobbying laws, laws dealing with the manufacture and 
transportation of gambling related materials and laws relating to the use of targeted small 
businesses as subcontractors or suppliers. 

14.2.2 The Contractor declares that it has complied with all federal, state and local laws 
regarding business permits and licenses that may be required to carry out the work to be 
performed under this Agreement. 

14.2.3 The Contractor shall give notice to any labor union with which it has a bargaining 
or other agreement of its commitment under this section of the Agreement. The Contractor shall 
make the provisions of this section a part of its contracts with any subcontractors providing 
goods or services related to the fulfillment of this Agreement. 

14.2.4 The Contractor shall comply with all of the reporting and compliance standards of 
the Department of Management regarding equal employment. These requirements may require 
the Contractor to submit its affirmative action plan. The plan must comport with the Department 
of Management rules at 541 lAC chapter 4. 

14.2.5 The Lottery may consider the failure of the Contractor to comply with any law or 
regulation as a material breach of this Agreement. In addition, the Contractor may be declared 
ineligible for future State contracts or be subjected to other sanctions for failure to comply with 
this section. 

14.3 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended in writing from time to time by mutual 
consent of the parties. All amendments to this Agreement must be fully executed by both 
parties. The only parties authorized to execute amendments on behalf of the Lottery are the 
Lottery CEO, Executive Vice President, Vice President Operations & Systems or the Vice 
President of Finance. 

14.4 Third Party Beneficiaries. There are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement. This 
Agreement is intended only to benefit the Lottery and the Contractor. 

14.5 Choice of Law and Forum. 

14.5.1 The laws of the state of Iowa shall govern and determine all matters arising out 
of or in connection with this Agreement without regard to the choice of law provisions of Iowa 
law. 

14.5.2 In the event any proceeding of a quasi-judicial or judicial nature is commenced in 
connection with this Agreement. the proceeding shall be brought in Des Moines, Iowa, in Polk 

12 



County District Court for the state of Iowa, if jurisdiction is proper. If however, jurisdiction is not 
proper in the Iowa District Court, Polk County, but is proper only in a United States District 
Court, the matter shall be commenced in the United States District Court for the Southern 
District of Iowa, Central Division. 

14.5.3 This provision shall not be construed as waiving any immunity to suit or liability, 
in state or federal court, which may be available to the Lottery or the state of Iowa. 

14.6 Assignment and Delegation. The Contractor shall not assign, transfer, convey, or 
otherwise dispose of this Agreement, its duties under this Agreement, or any rights, title, or 
interest in this Agreement to any other person, corporation, or other entity without the prior 
written approval of the Lottery. For purposes of this section a transfer or conveyance includes 
the sale or gift of a controlling interest in the Contractor. The Contractor may, with the prior 
written approval of the Lottery, subcontract for the supply of any of the services described in 
Schedule A, provided that no such subcontract shall relieve the Contractor of its obligations 
hereunder, who shall remain primarily liable to the Lottery for fulfillment of all obligations 
hereunder. 

In the event that any person, or group of persons, hereafter acquires directly or indirectly the 
beneficial ownership (as defined by Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation 17 C.F.R. 
§240.13d-3) of five percent (5%) or more of the ownership interest in, or any class of equity 
securities of, the Contractor, the Lottery must be notified in writing of such event. Background 
investigation may be required for these new owners. Such background investigations may 
include fingerprint identification by the Iowa Division of Criminal Investigation, the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation or the appropriate non-U.S. equivalent. By signing this Agreement, the 
Contractor consents to cooperate with such investigations, and to instruct its employees to 
cooperate. The expense of any investigation will be borne by the Contractor. The Lottery may 
terminate this contract based upon adverse results of these background checks. The ability to 
conduct such investigations is a continuing right of the Lottery throughout the contract term. 

14.7 Integration. This Agreement, including Schedule A, represents the entire Agreement 
between the parties and neither party is relying on any representation that may have been made 
which is not included in this Agreement. 

14.8 Headings or Captions. The paragraph headings or captions are for identification 
purposes only and do not limit or construe the contents of the paragraphs. 

14.9 Not a Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating or 
constituting the relationship of a partnership, joint venture, (or other association of any kind or 
agenUprincipal relationship) between the parties hereto. Each party shall be deemed an 
independent contractor contracting for services and acting toward the mutual benefits expected 
to be derived here from. No party, unless otherwise specifically provided for herein, has the 
authority to enter into any agreement or create an obligation or liability on behalf of, in the name 
of, or binding upon another party to this Agreement. 

14.10 Obligations Beyond Agreement Term. This Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect to the end of the specified term or until terminated or canceled pursuant to this 
Agreement. All continuing obligations of the Lottery and the Contractor incurred or existing 
under this Agreement as of the date of expiration, termination or cancellation will survive the 
termination or conclusion of this Agreement. 

13 



14.11 Supersedes Former Agreements. This Agreement supersedes all prior Agreements 
between the Lottery and the Contractor for the goods and services provided in connection with 
this Agreement. 

14.12 Waiver. Any breach or default by either party shall not be waived or released other than 
by a writing signed by the other party. Failure by either party at any time to require performance 
by the other party or to claim a breach of any provision of the Agreement shall not be construed 
as affecting any subsequent breach or the right to require performance with respect thereto or to 
claim a breach with respect thereto. Only the following persons may execute a waiver of a term 
of this Agreement on behalf of the Lottery: the Lottery CEO, the Executive Vice President, Vice 
President Operations & Systems or the Vice President of Finance. 

14.13 Notices. 

14.13.1 Any and all notices, designations, consents, offers, acceptances or any other 
communication provided for herein shall be given in writing by registered or certified mail, return 
receipt requested, by receipted hand delivery, by Federal Express, courier or other similar and 
reliable carrier which shall be addressed to each party as set forth as follows: 

If to the Iowa Lottery: Iowa Lottery 
Attn.: Larry Loss 
2323 Grand Ave. 

If to the Contractor: 

Des Moines, lA 50312 

American Games, Inc. 
Attn.: Douglas E. Pollard 
504 34th Street 
Council Bluffs, lA 51501 

14.13.2 Each such notice shall be deemed to have been provided: 

14.13.2.1 At the time it is actually received; or, 

14.13.2.2 On the next business day in the case of overnight hand delivery, 
courier or services such as Federal Express with guaranteed next day of 
delivery if sent on a business day; or, 

14.13.2.3 Within five days after deposited the U.S. Mail in the case of 
registered U.S. Mail. 

14.13.3 Copies of such notice shall be provided separately to each party. 

14.13.4 From time to time, the parties may change the name and address of a party 
designated to receive notice. Such change of the designated person shall be in writing to the 
other party and as provided herein. 

14.14 Cumulative Rights. 

14.14.1 The various rights, powers, options, elections and remedies of either party, 
provided in this Agreement, shall be construed as cumulative and no one of them is exclusive of 
the others or exclusive of any rights, remedies or priorities allowed either party by law. 

14 



14.14.2 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as affecting, impairing or limiting 
the equitable or legal remedies to which either party may be entitled as a result of any breach of 
this Agreement. 

14.15 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalid portion shall be severed from this 
Agreement. Such a determination shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other part 
or provision of this Agreement. 

14.16 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to the successful 
performance of the terms of this Agreement. The Contractor shall ensure that all personnel 
providing services to the Lottery are responsive to Lottery requirements in all respects including 
Lottery directives with respect to the goods and services delivered in accordance with this 
Agreement. 

14.17 Authorization. Each party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the other that: 

14.17.1 It has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations 
under this Agreement. 

14.17.2 It has taken all requisite action (corporate, statutory, or otherwise) to approve 
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes a legal, 
valid and binding obligation upon itself in accordance with its terms. 

14.17.3 This Agreement is contingent upon ratification of the Lottery Board pursuant to 
Iowa Code Chapter 99G. The Lottery does not warrant that the Agreement will be ratified by the 
Lottery Board. 

14.18 Successors in Interest. All the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Agreement shall 
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and there respective successors, 
assigns, and legal representatives. 

14.19 Records Retention and Access. 

14.19.1 The Contractor shall maintain books, records, and documents which sufficiently 
and properly document and calculate all charges billed to the Lottery throughout the term of this 
Agreement for a period of at least three (3) years following the date of final payment, 
cancellation, expiration or completion of any required audit, whichever is later. 

14.19.2 The Contractor shall retain and maintain all financial, and accounting records 
pertaining to this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals and 
sound business practice and any other procedures reasonably established by the Lottery. 

14.19.3 The Contractor shall permit the Auditor of the state of Iowa or any authorized 
representative of the State or any authorized representative of the United States government, to 
access and examine, audit, excerpt and transcribe any directly pertinent financial records, 
accounting records, books, documents, papers, electronic or optically stored and created 
records or other records of the Contractor relating to or created as a result of the performance of 
this Agreement. These records shall be made available to the Lottery, its designees, the 
Auditor, or an authorized representative of the United States government at reasonable times 

15 



and at no cost to the Lottery during the term of this Agreement and for a period of (3) years 
following the termination, cancellation or expiration of this Agreement. 

14.20 Counterparts. The parties agree that this Agreement has been or may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all such counterparts shall 
together constitute one and the same instrument. 

14.21 Additional Provisions. The parties agree that if an Addendum, Rider or Exhibit is 
attached hereto by the parties, and referred to herein, and then the same shall be deemed 
incorporated herein by reference. 

14.22 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The parties agree that they will, 
from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged 
and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further instruments as may reasonably be 
required for carrying out the expressed intention of this Agreement. 

14.23 Obligations of Joint Entities. If the Contractor is a joint entity, consisting of more than 
one individual, partnership, corporation or other business organization, all such entities shall be 
jointly and severally liable for carrying out the activities and obligations of this agreement, and 
for any default of such activities and obligations. 

14.24 Force Majeure. 

14.24.1 Neither the Contractor nor the Lottery shall be liable to the other for any delay 
or failure of performance of this Agreement, and no delay or failure of performance shall 
constitute a default or give rise to any liability for damages if, and only to the extent that, such 
delay or failure is caused by a "force majeure". 

14.24.2 As used in this Agreement, "force majeure" includes acts of God, war, civil 
disturbance and any other causes which are beyond the control and anticipation of the party 
affected and which, by the exercise of reasonable diligence, the party was unable to anticipate 
or prevent. Failure to perform by a subcontractor or an agent of the Contractor shall not be 
considered a "force majeure" unless the subcontractor or supplier is prevented from timely 
performance by a "force majeure" as defined in this Agreement. "Force Majeure" does not 
include financial difficulties of the Contractor or any parent, subsidiary, affiliated or associated 
company of the Contractor or claims or court orders which restrict the Contractor's ability to 
deliver the goods or services contemplated by this Agreement. 

14.24.3 If a "force majeure" delays or prevents the Contractor's performance, the 
Contractor shall immediately commence to use its best efforts to directly provide alternate, and 
to the extent possible, comparable performance. Comparability of performance and the 
possibility of comparable performance shall be reasonably determined solely by the Lottery. 

14.24.4 During any such period, the Contractor shall continue to be responsible for all 
costs and expenses related to alternative performance, subject to not incurring unreasonable 
costs. 

14.24.5 This section shall not be construed as relieving the Contractor of its 
responsibility for any obligation which is being performed by a subcontractor or supplier of 
services unless the subcontractor or supplier is prevented from timely performance by a "force 
majeure" as described here. 

16 



14.25 Taxes. The Contractor and its subcontractors, may be subject to certain taxes, including 
but not limited to sales tax, motor vehicle fuel tax, personal or corporate income tax or other 
taxes or assessments, and to licensing fees or other miscellaneous fees or charges which may 
be imposed by federal, state, or local law or ordinance. The Contractor and its subcontractors 
shall be solely responsible for paying any taxes incurred in the performance of this Agreement. 
The Contractor shall promptly pay all such taxes, fees or charges when due. The Lottery is a 
tax-exempt entity and is exempt from the payment of Iowa sales tax. No payment will be made 
for any taxes levied on the Contractor for any purpose. 

14.26 Right of Inspection. The Contractor shall allow the Lottery, or anyone designated by 
the Lottery, to inspect its facilities at all reasonable times in order to monitor and evaluate 
performance of this Agreement. 

14.27 Title to Lottery Property. Title to all property furnished by the Lottery to the Contractor 
to facilitate the performance of this Agreement shall remain the sole property of the Lottery. 

14.28 Prime Contractor Responsibilities. The Contractor shall assume all responsibility for 
the delivery and maintenance of ITVMs and PTVMs and the performance of all required 
services, whether or not subcontractors are involved. The Lottery shall consider the Contractor 
to be the sole point of contact with regard to all matters related to this Agreement and is not 
required to initiate or maintain contact with any subcontractor. 

14.29 Survival of Obligations. 

14.29.1 Certain obligations imposed on the parties by this Agreement continue beyond 
the expiration, cancellation, or termination of this Agreement as necessary to carry out the intent 
of the parties. 

14.29.2 Such obligations include, without limitation, the Contractor's obligation to 
indemnify the Lottery, the ownership of intellectual property rights and the Contractor's 
obligations with respect to the retention of records and the maintenance of bonds and 
insurance. 

14.30 Endorsements. The Contractor will not use any oral or written communication made by 
any Lottery employee in a manner which could be characterized as an endorsement of or 
advertisement for the Contractor or the Contractor's product without the Lottery's prior written 
consent. 

14.31 Non-Exclusive Rights. The contract will not be exclusive. The Lottery will reserve the 
right to contract with other vendors for maintenance services during the contract term. 

14.32 Authorization to do Business in Iowa. The Contractor shall obtain a certificate of 
authority to do business in Iowa and shall take all necessary steps to ensure that it is authorized 
to do business in Iowa as American Games. 

17 



14.33 Covenant Against Contingent Fees. The Contractor warrants that it has not employed 
or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the 
Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any 
person or entity, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other consideration on a basis that is contingent 
upon the award of this contract. 

14.34 Financial Statements. Each year during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor 
shall provide the Lottery with an audited financial statement, if available, otherwise, an audited 
consolidated financial statement of its parent entity, consolidating the financial results of both 
entities and their subsidiaries. The financial statement shall be provided as soon as practicable 
following completion of the statement. To the extent it may legally do so, the Lottery agrees to 
maintain as confidential and not disclose or provide to third parties, the financial statements 
provided by the Contractor. 

14.35 Investigation of Officers, Directors and Shareholders. 

14.35.1 The Contractor shall require all officers, directors or shareholders owning five 
percent (5%) or more of the Contractor or any parent or subsidiary company of the Contractor to 
participate in background investigations conducted by the Lottery and to complete background 
disclosure forms. Throughout the term of this Agreement the Contractor will notify the Lottery of 
any changes in the identity of persons or entities holding these positions. 

14.35.2 The Contractor shall require its employees and the employees of any 
subcontractors to submit to background investigations if requested by the Lottery and to 
complete all background disclosure forms as may be required by the Lottery. The Contractor 
shall bear all costs and expenses associated with background investigations. In the event the 
Lottery is required to pay any of these costs and expenses, the Contractor agrees to reimburse 
the Lottery accordingly. Costs may include but are not limited to the hourly charges of the 
Division of Criminal Investigation's agents, meals, travel, lodging, and miscellaneous expenses 
and fees incurred in conducting the background investigations. 

14.36 Obligations Beyond Agreement Term. This Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect to the end of the specified term or until terminated or canceled pursuant to this 
Agreement. All continuing obligations of the Lottery and the Contractor incurred or existing 
under this Agreement as of the date of expiration, termination or cancellation will survive the 
termination or conclusion of this Agreement. 

18 



SECTION 15. EXECUTION. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the parties have entered into the above Agreement and have caused 
their duly authorized representatives to execute this Agreement. 

State of Iowa, 
Iowa Lottery Authority 

By: 
Nam_e_:~L_a_r~~L_o_s_s __________________ ___ 

Title: Executive Vice President 

Pollard Games, Inc. 

By: --~~~~~~-----------
Name: Douglas E. Pollard 
Title: President 

Federal ID # ______________________ _ 

19 

Date: __________ _ 

Date: __________ _ 



SCHEDULE A 
MAINTENANCE PROGRAM 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

1. The Contractor shall provide a 24-hour toll free number for trouble calls or requests for 
technical assistance. The Contractor's personnel shall staff this service call line during regular 
business hours of 7 a.m. to 7 p.m., Monday through Saturday, excluding Iowa state holidays. 
From 7 p.m. to 7 a.m. Monday through Saturday, Sundays and Iowa state holidays the toll-free 
number must record and log trouble calls and requests for technical help. The Contractor must 
provide adequate BOO-number service to accommodate retailer calls. 

2. The Contractor shall provide on-site preventative maintenance and cleaning at a 
minimum of once every 120 days throughout the term of the Agreement. Contractor's 
employees or agents providing on-site service shall be dressed in suitable business attire such 
as corporate logo shirts. 

3. The Contractor shall perform maintenance or repair (or, in circumstances determined 
necessary by the Contractor, replacement, at no additional purchase cost to the Lottery), on a 
machine that is a Non-functional Machine as described in Section 3. 7. Notwithstanding Section 
3. 7 for all purposes of this Agreement, a "Non-functional Machine" and this Schedule, shall not 
include any machine that does not operate properly due to: 

(a) willful damage or destruction caused by any person other than the Contractor, its 
authorized agents or employees; 

(b) accidental damage caused by any person other than the Contractor, the Lottery, a 
retailer or the authorized agents or employees of any of them or caused by the 
occurrence of a force majeure event; 

(c) the use of parts or components not manufactured or supplied by the Contractor; 
(d) maintenance, modification or service to the machines carried out by any person 

other than the Contractor or its authorized agents or employees; 
(e) handling, storage, use, operation or maintenance in a manner or environment not 

conforming to any published instructions issued by the Contractor or to the Lottery at 
the time of installation. 

The Lottery, in good faith, will make the final determination regarding whether a machine is 
operating properly and whether a machine fails to operate properly due to one or more of the 
reasons identified in (a) through (e), above. 

4. In the case of a machine that does not operate properly due to one of the reasons 
identified in section 3 (a) through (e), above, Contractor shall promptly determine whether the 
machine can be repaired, and, if so shall provide the Lottery with a written estimate of the cost 
of all parts necessary to effect the repairs and an estimate of the amount of time necessary to 
complete the repairs. The Lottery shall then notify the Contractor in writing whether it wishes to 
have the machine repaired. The Contractor shall invoice the Lottery for all parts used in the 
repair, which shall be paid pursuant to the terms of section 6.2.1 hereof. The Contractor shall 

20 



provide the labor necessary to effect the repairs and will charge the same to the lottery at an 
hourly rate of $60 to the Lottery. 

5. In the case of a machine where the Lottery would like to replace machine decals and or its 
backlit display signage, the Contractor shall provide the Lottery with a written estimate of the 
cost, in which case the Lottery shall then notify the Contractor in writing whether it wishes to 
proceed with the replacement of the machine decals and or display signage. 

6. The machines which are reported to the Contractor as "Non-functional", must be made 
fully operational according to the following schedule: 

• Calls reporting a Non-functional Machine reported during normal business hours of 7:00 
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday must be resolved within 24 hours, excluding 
Sundays and Iowa state holidays. If only one dispensing bin is not functioning, the 
repair (or replacement, as the case may be) must be completed in 48 hours. 

• Calls reporting a Non-functional Machine that are reported to the recording device must 
be resolved within 24 hours of the commencement of the next regular scheduled 
business day, Monday through Saturday. If only one dispensing bin is not functioning, 
the repair (or replacement, as the case may be) must be completed in 48 hours of the 
commencement of the next regular scheduled business day. 

• Failure to comply within the schedule in the previous bulleted items will result in 
liquidated damages for downtime. The Contractor will pay the Lottery $200.00 for any 
day or portion thereof beyond the grace period that a machine is a non-functional 
machine. The time between the call reporting the trouble and the time within which the 
repair or replacement is to be completed is called the "Grace Period." 

7. All calls to the Contractor's toll free answering service (for calls outside of business 
hours) shall be voice-recorded and retained for a period of 30 days. 

8. A daily log of all service activity including preventative maintenance shall be maintained 
by the Contractor. A recap report shall be transmitted electronically to the Lottery each week. A 
weekly recap of all service activity including preventative maintenance shall be maintained by 
the Contractor and faxed or sent via e-mail to the Lottery on a weekly basis. 

9. The Contractor shall ensure that maintenance personnel receive training as necessary 
to adequately perform service duties throughout the term of the Agreement. 

10. The Contractor shall provide a specific contact person or persons designated to the 
Lottery to coordinate and direct questions, problems and issues. 

11. The machines shall have a repair log located inside the cabinets to document all 
preventative maintenance and service records. 

12. The Contractor agrees to relocate or remove machines at retail locations within five (5) 
business days of a written request from the Lottery. If a machine to be relocated is a Non
functional Machine or a machine of the kind described in paragraph 4 above, the time for 
relocation may be extended with the Lottery's approval by the time reasonably necessary to 
make any required repairs. The Contractor must coordinate the scheduled relocation or removal 
with Lottery staff and the retail location. If machines are to be relocated to another retail 
location, Contractor agrees to take the necessary steps to deliver in clean condition, free from 
odor and in operational status ready for service and provide retailer training at the time of 

21 



delivery. The Lottery will provide written requests for relocation or removal to the Contractor via 
fax or e-mail. 

13. On occasion, emergency removals must be completed by the Contractor in less than five 
(5) business days. 

14. The Contractor shall not remove any machine from the location where it was installed 
unless instructed in writing by the Lottery unless removal is determined necessary by the 
Contractor in order to repair or replace a machine that is a Non-functional Machine. 

15. The Contractor will be responsible for all Contractor-supplied Lottery machines, including 
security and storage, which are not placed at a retail location during the Agreement. 

16. Upon request by the Lottery, the Contractor agrees to make performance-based 
engineering changes as deemed necessary. Any changes or upgrades shall be performed at 
the Contractor's earliest convenience. The Contractor shall provide a written quote to the 
Lottery indicating the costs associated with any modifications or engineering changes to the 
machines and shall only proceed to effect the changes upon receipt of the Lottery's written 
approval of the quote and proposed changes. The Lottery reserves the right to test all changes 
to the machines prior to implementation. 

22 



EXTENSION TO THE AGREEMENT 
FOR CREATIVE ADVERTISING SERVICES 

THIS EXTENSION, is effective on July 1, 2014 and is made by and between the IOWA 
LOTTERY AUTHORITY (Lottery) and STRATEGIC AMERICA (Agency). 

In consideration of the premises and the mutual promises and covenants herein 
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. IDENTITY OF THE PARTIES. 

1.1 The Iowa Lottery Authority is an instrumentality of the State of Iowa and is authorized by 
Iowa Code Chapter 99G to conduct a lottery in the State of Iowa. The Lottery's address is 2323 
Grand Ave., Des Moines, Iowa 50312. 

1.2 Strategic America is an Iowa corporation, whose business, is among other things, of 
providing creative advertising services for clients. The address for Agency is 6600 Westown 
Parkway, Suite 100, West Des Moines, lA 50266. 

SECTION 2. STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT AND PURPOSE. The Lottery and Agency 
entered into a two-year Agreement providing that the Agency would provide advertising and 
marketing support for planning and preparation of materials intended to advertise the Lottery, 
its services and products during the term of the Agreement. 

SECTION 3. EXTENSION. On July 1, 2012, the Lottery and Agency entered into an 
Agreement for Creative Advertising Services (reference RFP 12-01 ). The term of the 
Agreement was for a two-year period with four one-year option periods. The Agreement was 
amended in August 2012 to reflect a change to Section 6.2 Monthly, Billings. Pursuant to 
Section 4 of the Agreement, the first option period of the Agreement is hereby exercised 
through June 30, 2015. 

SECTION 4. RATIFICATION. Except as expressly amended hereby, the Agreement or any 
other amendments to the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and the parties hereby 
ratify and confirm the terms and conditions thereof. 

SECTION 5. AUTHORIZATION. Each party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the 
other that: 

5.1 It has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this 
Agreement. 

5.2 It has taken all requisite action (corporate statutory or otherwise) to approve execution, 
delivery and performance of this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and 
binding obligation upon itself in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be 
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and similar laws. 



SECTION 6. EXECUTION. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the parties have entered into the above Agreement and have 
caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Agreement. 

IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 

By:.~~---------------
Larry Loss 
Executive Vice-President 

Date: _______ _ 

2 

STRATEGIC AMERICA 

By: __ --:-::--c::-:::-:------------
John C. Schreurs 
President 

Date: ____________ _ 



EXTENSION TO THE AGREEMENT FOR 
MEDIA PLANNING, BUYING SERVICES AND PRODUCTS 

THIS EXTENSION, is effective on July 1, 2014 and is made by and between the IOWA 
LOTTERY AUTHORITY (Lottery) and STRATEGIC AMERICA (Agency). 

In consideration of the premises and the mutual promises and covenants herein 
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. IDENTITY OF THE PARTIES. 

1.1 The Iowa Lottery Authority is an instrumentality of the State of Iowa and is authorized by 
Iowa Code Chapter 99G to conduct a lottery in the State of Iowa. The Lottery's address is 2323 
Grand Ave., Des Moines, Iowa 50312. 

1.2 Strategic America is an Iowa corporation, whose business, is among other things, of 
providing media purchasing services for clients. The address for Agency is 6600 Westown 
Parkway, Suite1 00, West Des Moines, lA 50266. 

SECTION 2. STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT AND PURPOSE. The Lottery and Agency 
entered into a two-year Agreement, plus extensions, providing for media planning and buying 
services by the Agency to support advertising and marketing efforts to sell Lottery products. 

SECTION 3. EXTENSION. Effective July 1, 2012, the Lottery and the Agency entered into an 
Agreement (reference RFP 12-01) for media planning and buying services. The term of the 
Agreement was for a two-year period with four (4) one-year option periods. Effective 
September 2012 the Agreement was amended to reflect a revised Section 6.3 for Ad-Grab 
Services. Pursuant to Section 4 of the Agreement, the term of the Agreement is hereby 
extended for the first option period through June 30, 2015. 

SECTION 4. RATIFICATION. Except as expressly amended hereby, the Agreement or any 
other amendments to the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and the parties hereby 
ratify and confirm the terms and conditions thereof. 

SECTION 5. AUTHORIZATION. Each party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the 
other that: 

5.1 It has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this 
Agreement. 

5.2 It has taken all requisite action (corporate statutory or otherwise) to approve execution, 
delivery and performance of this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and 
binding obligation upon itself in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be 
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and similar laws. 

1 



SECTION 6. EXECUTION. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the parties have entered into the above Agreement and have 
caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Agreement. 

IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY 

By::-------:--------
Larry Loss 
Executive Vice-President 

Date: _______ _ 

2 

STRATEGIC AMERICA 

By:---:---:--=--:::-:------
John C. Schreurs 
President 

Date: ___________ _ 



IOWA LOTTERY 
ATTITUDINAL RESEARCH 

800 TELEPHONE SURVEYS 
RESEARCH ESTIMATE 

APRIL 1, 2014 

• Project One: Attitudinal Research (attitudes, Image and perceptions of the Iowa Lottery) 

Research Methodology: Quantitative Research (Telephone interviews) 
• Essman/Research will complete a total of 800 random telephone interviews 

{15 minutes in length) with Iowa residents. 
• Per the Iowa Lottery: Supplement with cell phone numbers: 

- 75% of the interviews will be completed with land lines. 
- 25% of the interviews will be completed with wireless households. 
Note: An estimated 26% of US households have no landlines and are considered 
wireless only. 
- Cell phone considerations: 

o The TCPA {Telephone Consumer Protection Act) requires that cell phones be 
dialed manually. 

o Screening for geography may be necessary because wireless phone numbers are 
portable. 

o Response rates are typically lower and refusal rates higher for cell phone samples 
compared to landlines. 

o Interviewers need to determine if cell phone respondents are in a safe place to 
conduct the survey. 

o 2011: We suggest offering an incentive for cell phone respondents. Many cell 
phone users pay for airtime. 
2014: Due to changes in cell phone plans, incentives are typically no longer 
necessary when conducting cell phone surveys 

- Target Audience 
• Iowans {representative of the state of Iowa/age and gender) 

- 21 years of age and older 

Project Quotas (based on 2008-2012 American Community Survey/5-Year Estimates) 
• Age 2011 2014 Census 

Survey Results Recommendations Estimates 
- 21-34: 19.3% 18-20% 27% 
- 35-44: 19% 18-20% 16% 
- 45-54: 22% 20-22% 20% 
- 55-64: 18% 20-22% 17% 
- 65+: 22% 20-22% 20% 

• Gender 
- Female: 50% 
- Male: 50% 

Project Costs 
• Cost to prepare the questionnaire 

- Project meetings/coordination 
Developing and revising the questionnaire/testing 

$1,000 

* 



• Costs to Implement the 2014 survey $16,000 
- Sample development 
- Questionnaire programming/testing 
- Data collection (800@ 15 minutes) 

o 75%/600 landllne surveys 
o 25%/200 cell phone surveys 

• 2011 Change in Project Scope per the Iowa Lottery/ 
supplement landlines with cell phone numbers $5,750 

Sample development - cell phone 
Data collection (cell phone numbers must be manually dialed) 

• 2014 - Increased labor costs and increased sample costs $1,575 
Note: The overall costs for project coordination, data collection 
and sample development has increased since 2011, primarily due 
to decreasing response rates and the increasing costs to develop the 
cell phone sample and collect the data. 

• 2014 Change in Project Scope 
Participation incentives have been eliminated (200 @ $20/$4,000) 

• Cost to generate and prepare the reports 
Cross tabulation tables/data analysis 
Executive Summary and PowerPoint 

• Cost of Oral Formal presentation 

2014 Project Cost: $31,325 (+/-10%} 

Recommended Timeline 
• Revised survey draft from !LOT 
• Questionnaire finalized 
• Sample development/programming/testing 
• Data collection 
• Tabulations/data analysis 
• Report preparation 
• First draft of Summary Report 
• Final Summary Report/PowerPoint/Presentation 

Approved by Iowa Lottery 

$5,500 

$1,500 

March 19 
Week of March 31 
Week of April 7 
Weeks of April14, 21, and 28 
Week of May 5 
Weeks of May 12 and 19 
Week of June 1 
Week of June 16 

* 



EXTENSION TO THE AGREEMENT 
FOR GAME AUDfTING SERVICES 

This Extension of Agreement for Game Auditing Services (Extension) is effective on 
May 1, 2014, and is made by and between the Iowa Lottery Authority (Lottery) and McGiadrey LLP 
(Contractor). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Amendment, the sufficiency of which is 
acknowledged, it is agreed as follows: 

SECTION 1. IDENTITY OF THE PARTIES. 
1.1 The Iowa Lottery Authority is an instrumentality of the State of Iowa and is authorized by Iowa 

Code Chapter 99G to conduct a lottery in the State of Iowa. The Lottery's address is 2323 Grand Ave., 
Des Moines, Iowa 50312. 

1.2 The Contractor is a limited liability partnership engaged in the business, of among other 
things, providing game auditing services. Contractor's address is 400 Locust Street, Suite 640, Des 
Moines, lA 50309. 

SECTION 2. STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT AND PURPOSE. The Lottery and Contractor entered into 
an Agreement for the purpose of retaining Contractor to conduct game auditing services for Lottery 
drawings held during the term of the agreement. 

SECTION 3. EXTENSION. On or about May 1, 2011 and Amended 11/25/13, the Lottery and Contractor 
entered into an Agreement for Game Auditing Services (Agreement). The term of the Agreement was for 
one year, plus five (5) one-year option periods exercisable at the option of the Lottery. Pursuant to 
Section 4 of the Agreement, the term of the Agreement is hereby extended through April 30, 2015. 

SECTION 4. RATIFICATION. Except as expressly amended hereby, the Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect, and the parties hereby ratify and confirm the terms and conditions thereof. 

SECTION 5. AUTHORIZATION. Each party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the other that: 
5.1 It has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this 

Agreement. 
5.2 It has taken all requisite action (corporate or otherwise) to approve execution, delivery and 

performance of this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation upon 
itself in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and 
similar laws. 

SECTION 6. EXECUTION. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and for other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties have entered into the above Agreement and have caused their duly authorized 
representatives to execute this Amendment. 

Iowa Lottery Authority 

By:. __ ~--~--------------------
Larry Loss 
Executive Vice President 

Date: __________________________ __ 

McGiadrey LLP 

By: --~~~----------------
Rod Foster 
Managing Partner 

Date: -----------------------



2323 Grand Avenue· Des Moines ·Iowa 50312-5307 
Telephone: 515-725-7900 ·Fax: 515-725-7882 
www.ialottery.com 

Date: 4-22-2014 

To: Iowa Lottery Board 
From: Larry L. Loss 
Re: 2014 Association Membership Dues 

Terry E. Branstad · Governor 
Kim Reynolds· lt. Governor 

Terry Rich · Chief Executive Officer 

For many years, the Iowa Lottery has participated as a member of the Iowa Grocery Industry Association 
(IGIA), the Petroleum Marketers and Convenience Stores of Iowa (PMCI), the North American 
Association of State & Provincial Lotteries (NASPL) and the World Lottery Association (WLA). As you 
are aware, the Board must approve memberships for the lottery. These billings come in annually at about 
the same time, so as with past practice, we have packaged them for Board approval. 

Membership and active participation in IGIA events and activities has led to greater cooperation between 
the Iowa Lottery and our retailers. IGIA represents the interests of a majority of our retailer outlets. 
Membership enables us to keep up to date on convenience and grocery store industry trends and concerns. 
ILA staff recommends approval of the $500 membership dues in IGIA. 

Again this year, the Iowa Lottery is seeking approval to participate as a business associate member of 
PMCI. Membership and active participation in retailer industry events has enabled us to keep our fingers 
on the pulse of the industry and has led to stronger bonds of cooperation between the ILA and our 
convenience store retailers. Convenience stores are the Lottery's largest retailer trade type. 
ILA staff recommends approval of the $688 membership dues in PMCI. 

All North American lotteries are members of NASPL. NASPL plays a critical role in connecting member 
lotteries with essential education, information and communicatton on key trends and issues and acts as a 
united voice for the lottery industry on critical issues. NASPL is a key participant in building and 
maintaining relationships with national corporate retailers as well as the standardization or major 
procurements for member lotteries. 
ILA staff recommends approval of the $16,000 membership dues for NASPL. 

Staff further supports approval of membership in WLA. Through our membership in WLA, the Iowa 
Lottery has access to educational information and training seminars, current trends and issues, security 
information and the opportunity to learn from and interact with lotteries across the world. As with other 
ventures, lottery industry problems and opportunities are not constrained or defined by international 
borders. 
ILA staff recommends approval of the 5,600 Swiss Francs (approximately $6,367.98 at the 
monetary exchange rate current when this document was prepared on April14, 2014) membership 
dues for WLA. 

The membership dues for all of these organizations are the same as last year. Enclosed are invoices from 
the Iowa Grocery Industry Association, Petroleum Marketers and Convenience Stores of Iowa, North 
American Association of State & Provincial Lotteries and the World Lottery Association. 



~l't.---.. 
iowa gmcm·y imills!i·y 

'-----association 
2540 106th St., Suite 102 
Urbandale, IA 50322 
(515) 270-2628 

Attn: Tom Warner 
Iowa Lottery 
2323 Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, IA 50312 

Invoice 
# 22722 

2/5/2014 

Qty Item _ I Price _ _!:~tended 
1 Membership Dues- Supplier 3/1/2014-2/28/2015 $500.00 $500.00 

-Tom Warner 
Comment: Supplier Dues, 3/1/14 - 2/28/15 

---~~-~~- -----~ ~~---

Total: $500.00 

Contributions or gifts to the Iowa Grocery Industry Association are not tax deductible as a 
charitable contribution for income tax purposes. However, they may be tax deductible as 
ordinary and necessary business expenses subject to restrictions imposed as a result of 
association lobbying activities. The Iowa Grocery Industry Association estimates that the 
deductible portion of your 2014 Dues- the portion not allocable to Lobbying - is 65%. The 
non-deductible portion of your dues is 35%. 



10430 New York Ave, Suite F 
Urbandale, lA 50322 

Iowa lottery 
2323 Grand Ave 
Des Moines, lA 50312 

Item Description 

Associate Dues Associate Membership Dues 
Sales Tax 

Pf\~C! t\ssnt'i;_.lff:' !Vlr!mherjhip h.:1s i\s reV.Jih·ds! 

() Busin;:s~; rd21ra!s i:'!H"l n:commcnd<itlon:; bv Pi"VKI Staff. 
() Voilng n--!pm.sent~ilkHl on boMcl of dlroctcH3 ;md Ul!Hrr1Hi:(~Gs. 
6 Up 'i:o Ow mimlt(! lmh1st1 y inforntf1tion and insiRht through metni.H:r tOl"JHHllnk<Jtion:::., 

6 h~<'llna~d Oil Spoui: ;:nUdes spot\if~htinl!, ?.~S<H .. :h'ltc: mr;mlwrs. 

6 Company I bUng ,::md link tn you!" VJcbsHe on W\'1\'-t.pm.:of'itHNii.com. 

6 Indus\!\' inpul, H~PH'S(n!!··~\ion, eHpCJ lise ;H;d aru~ss. 
6 Ed!Jrdtional conh;-nmce <lit! I nl:'lwmldng spoJ)SDrship oppor~unitlt:!.S, 
6 Busin\-;ss servir1~s imd fm rn~~, t ;-,.:;hting oppol t·unl Ues, '~mplovf:!(·; henr.-fit padwg,~S1 

insuranu!, (~(c. 
6 Dpnn H~(jU(~St 1 up i:o four ~(~ts of me~nhershlp la!wls l)(~r yea!". 

Non· Deductible St~tern~nt: 
Dilf'S jMyments to the Petl"oleun1 Jv1<Hkc:i.ets and Collvenicnr:e Stores of Iowa mrly be: deductiblt' <1S an ordinuy 
and ner.ess::ny business expense;, but are not deducti\.lle as ("harit<lhle cont!ibutions for feder;1l income tax 

purposes. ·r he portion of yotn PJvlCI dues c-:Xpended Oli lobbying {32%) is not dr..ductihle lher efore, 68% of 

your PMC! dues <He tax deductibl~. 

Phone# Fax ff 

515-224-7545 515-224-0502 

My Check is Enclosed 

Credit Card Number 

E-mail Web Site 

info@pmcofiowa.com www.pmcofiowa.com 

Charge My Credit Card 

----------------------------------

Total 

Payments/Credits 

Balance Due 

Amount 

688.00 
0.00 

$688.00 

$0.00 

$688.00 

Expiration Date 

Signature 

Date 

3/1/2014 

Invoice# 

Iowa Lottery 
2323 Grand Ave 

Des Moines, lA 50312 

Date of Signature 54059 



> 

••• • ••::-.'!. \ NORTH AMERICAN ASSOCIATION 
:"g• ••• .::.•: OF STATE & PROVINCIAL LOTTERIES 
00 

•.::• 1 SOUTH BROADWAY 
NASPL GENEVA, OH44041 

BILL TO: 

10\VAWTTERY 
TERRY RICH, PRESIDENT & CEO 
2323 GRAND AVE. 
DES MOINES, IOWA 50312 

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION 

I ASPL DUES INVOICE, JULY 1, 2014- JUNE 30,2015 

.,. . ' T< Jt FEIN 1158 181658 

INVOICE 

PO. NUMBER TERMS 

Net30 

DATE 
3/2612014 

RATE 

16,000.00 

TOTAL 

INVOICE# 
7138 

PROJECT 

AMOUNT 

16,000.00 

$16,000.00 

nMf!IUU.tA 



WORLD LOTTERY 
ASSOCIATION 

VVlA 

Invoice- Membership fee 2014 

Iowa Lottery 
2323 Grand Avenue 
50312 Des Moines, lA 
USA 

lnvoice-Nr 2014- R 137 

March 1·2, 2014 
May 30, 2014 
Regular Membership fee 2014 

HEADQUARTERS 

WorlcJ Lottery Association 
Lange Gasse 20 
P. 0. Box 
CH-4002 Basel 
Switzerland 

Telephone +41 61 284 1502 
Fax +41 61 284 1350 
info@world-lotteries.org 
VAT No. 502108 

Invoice-Date 
Due Date 
Concerning 
Category US$ 100 to 500 million (Gross sales) 

Fee VAT exempt 0% 5600 CHF 

MONTREAL OFFICE 

World lottery Association 
c/o Loto-Quebec 
500, rue Sherbrooke Ouest 
13ureau 2000 
Montreal, Quebec H3A 3G6 
Canada 

Telephone +1 514 282 0273 
Fax +1 514 873 8999 
lynne. roiter@loto-quebec.com 

Please compare your annual sales for 2013 (calculated in US$) with the fee structure below. Should 
they place you in a different category than indicated above, please contact Francine Waldvogel 
(fw@world-lotteries.org) at the WLA office immediately. Upon clarification you will be sent a revised 
invoice. 

Fee Structure 

Annual sales I Membership fee 
up to US$ 100 million CHF 4,900 US$ 1 to 4 billion 

over US$ 4 billion US$ 100 to 500 million CHF 5,600 
US$ 500 million to 1 billion CHF 8,400 

We kindly ask you to remit the fee in question by May 30, 2014. 

Payment details 
Bank Details 

Company 

Account N" 
Bank 

Swift Address 
I BAN 

World Lottery Association, CH-
4002 Basel, Switzerland 
241502-81 

Credit Suisse , 4051 Basel, 
Switzerland 
CRES_CH_ZZ_ 40A 
CH 18 0483 5024 1502 8100 0 

Please note your invoice number on the payment. 

Others 

CHF 14,000 
CHF 21,000 

Please send your check to: 

World lottery Association 

Lange Gasse20 

PO Box 
4002 Basel 
Switzerland 

Bank fees: Please make sure that local bank fees are paid by sender. 



Iowa Lottery Authority- Financial Mana! ement 
Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 

PRE-AUDIT 210.245 I of5 May9, 2014 
Subject 

EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 
EDUCATION LEAVE AND/OR EDUCATION FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND 

CONTINUING EDUCATION 

EDUCATION LEAVE AND/OR EDUCATION ASSISTANCE 
1. General Purpose 

The purpose of educational leave with full or partial pay and educational assistance is to 
assist Iowa Lottery employees to develop skills that will improve their ability to perform 
job responsibilities or, in the case of educational leave, to also provide training and 
educational opportunities for employees of the lottery that will enable the Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) to better meet the staffing needs of the lottery. 

2. Eligibility 
a. Any non-temporary employee may be considered for education leave and/or 

education financial assistance. While the selection of the applicants is at the 
discretion of the Lottery, it is the express policy of the Lottery to offer all 
qualified employees an equal opportunity to be considered for educational leave 
within the limitations imposed by agency staffing requirements. 

b. Education leave and/or education financial assistance may be granted to 
employees to assist them in developing skills that will improve their ability to 
perform job responsibilities. 

c. Educational leave shall be requested for a period not to exceed 12 consecutive 
months. Accrued vacation or compensatory leave need not be exhausted before 
educational leave is granted. The determination to require the exhaustion of any 
or all accrued leave shall rest with the lottery. The lottery may grant an extension 
of the original leave for an additional 12 months. 

d. An employee receiving other financial assistance, such as scholarship aid or 
Veterans' Administration assistaoce, will be eligible to receive education financial 
assistance only to the extent that the sum of all reimbursements do not exceed 
100% of tuition and related expenses. 

3. Educational Institutions 
An eligible employee may, under this program, attend any accredited educational 
institution within the State. Attendance at an out -of-state institution may be approved by 
Department of Administrative Services (DAS) provided there are geographical or 
educational considerations that make attendance at an in-state institution impractical. 



Iowa Lottery Authority- Financial Mana ement 
Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 

PRE-AUDIT 210.245 2 of5 May9, 2014 
Subject 

EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 
EDUCATION LEAVE AND/OR EDUCATION FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND 

CONTINUING EDUCATION 

4. Reimbursement Criteria 
a. An employee may be reimbursed for tuition, course required fees and course 

related expenses upon submission of an original paid receipt (credit card receipts 
alone are not acceptable) from the educational institution to the designated lottery 
representative. The cost of other materials (except to the extent that the 
educational institution furnishes materials and includes the cost in the cost of 
tuition), the cost of registration fees, parking, activity fees or any other non-course 
required fees or charges are not eligible for reimbursement. For college credit 
courses, 80% of the cost for tuition expense and course required fees and 
expenses will be reimbursed. 

b. Proof of successful completion of the course as follows: 
1) Successful completion of undergraduate course requires at least a grade of"C-" 
2) Successful completion of a graduate course requires at least a grade of"B-" 
3) Successful completion of a vocational or conespondence course requires 
submission of an official certificate or diploma. 

5. Continued Employment Requirements and Recoupment of Reimbursements 

a. As a condition of applying for reimbursement for education expenses that exceed 
$500, the recipient must sign an agreement to continue employment with the 
lottery for an agreed upon time period described below except where attendance 
at the educational course and the education expenses were requested by the 
lottery. Application for reimbursement for multiple classes taken concutTently 
will be combined for determination of the recoupment amount required (i.e. two 
college courses taken in the same semester.) The agreement must be signed prior 
to approval of the application for education leave and/or education assistance and 
will stipulate the period of time deemed by the lottery to be commensurate with 
the amount of reimbursement received. The period of time commences upon 
successful completion ofthe course. In the event that the recipient leaves the 
lottery for any reason, the recipient will repay to the lottery an appropriate 
fraction of the amount received for each month remaining in the period provided 
for in the agreement. If the recipient continues employment with the state, then 
the repayment will be subject to a repayment schedule as determined by the 
Lottery. If the recipient leaves state government, then the repayment will be 
recouped out of the final paycheck. Recoupment must be coordinated with the 
accounting enterprise of the department of administrative services to ensure 
proper tax reporting. 



Iowa Lottery Authority- Financial Mana~ ement 
Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 

PRE-AUDIT 210.245 3 of5 May9, 2014 
Subject 

EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 
EDUCATION LEAVE AND/OR EDUCATION FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND 

CONTINUING EDUCATION 

Recipients of tuition reimbursement or continuing education expense exceeding 
$500 must agree to the following calendar day employment commitment with the 
Iowa Lottery, subject to the provisions for ongoing repayment outlined above in 
the event the employment commitment is not honored. Time commitment begins 
with a 120 day commitment and will accrue in increments of an additional60 
days for each $500 of tuition reimbursement or continuing education expense paid 
for a recipient working on a full eighty-hour pay period basis. For example: 

$501 through $1,000 = 120 days 
$1,001 through $1,500 = 180 days 
$1,501 through $2,000 = 240 days 
(Etc. in increments of$500/60 days) 

6. Approval of Education Financial Assistance 
a. Education financial assistance must be pre-approved by the CEO and DAS 

b. The tuition reimbursement application and instructions for its completion can be 
found at the following location: 
http://das.hre.iowa.gov/documents/MS manual/552-
0304_ educ _leave_ assistance. pdf 

c. Submit the completed forms to your supervisor at least 30 days prior to the start 
of the course. 

d. When the course has been successfully completed, submit an original of your 
official grade slip and an original itemized paid receipt on a travel payment (TP) 
document to the Lottery for processing. 

7. Taxation of Educational Assistance Benefits 
Undergraduate and Graduate assistance for job-related and non-job related courses are 
not taxable until it reaches $5,250 per individual per calendar year, per Section 127 of the 
Internal Revenue Code. Tax-free education assistance benefits include payments for 
tuition, fees and similar expenses, books, supplies and equipment. 

It is the Lottery's responsibility to track the total reimbursement of their employees to 
determine if a reimbursement to an employee for any graduate/undergraduate level 
courses would result in a total reimbursement exceeding $5,250 in a calendar year. 

For Educational Assistance that has reached $5,250, the Lottery Accounting deprutment 
will contact DAS-SAE-Daily Processing Manager for instructions on how to process, due 
to the taxable issues. 



Iowa Lottery Authority- Financial Mana ement 
Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 

PRE-AUDIT 210.245 4of5 May9, 2014 
Subject 

EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 
EDUCATION LEAVE AND/OR EDUCATION FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND 

CONTINUING EDUCATION 

CONTINUING EDUCATION 
I. Subject to the availability of funds and with the approval of the Executive Vice President, 

the Lottery will pay for courses, workshops, seminars, etc., taken by Iowa Lottery 
employees to meet continuing education requirements for maintaining professional 
registration, certification, or licensure when the continuing education course reasonably 
relates to the duties and responsibilities assigned to the individual, or to duties which may· 
reasonably be assigned to the individual. If applicable, all provisions of the Education 
Leave and/or Education Assistance section above must be met. 

2. The Lottery may approve attendance of department staff at courses, workshops, seminars, 
forums, mid-summer short -term training sessions not to exceed five days, for the purpose 
of providing training to department staff that are directly related to the staff's current 
duties and responsibilities or those duties and responsibilities that the staff may 
reasonably be assigned. When selecting training sessions, employees should consider 
vendors contracted by the State to acquire the most cost effective selections. Payment of 
registration fees will be either by reimbursement to the employee, or by direct billing to 
the Lottery. See Procedure 210.115 for when direct billing is allowable. 

3. Continuing Education courses described in I & 2 above will be paid or reimbursed at 
100%. 

SUBMITTING CLAIMS TO DAS-SAE DAILY PROCESSING (For Accounting Use Only) 
I. A travel payment (TP) document for the graduate/undergraduate education assistance will 

be prepared and submitted to DAS-SAE-Daily Processing. 

2. Attach the itemized paid receipt fi·om the institution. A credit card receipt alone is not 
acceptable. 

3. Attach a copy of the grade report, approved application for educational leave and/or 
education financial assistance and the recoupment agreement. 

4. Attach any receipts for books or extra allowable fees. 

5. The employee must sign the TP. 

6. The TP should utilize the Special Cover Sheet and be marked Educational Assistance, 
and on-lined onto I/3. 



Iowa Lottery Authority- Financial Mana~ ement 
Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 

PRE-AUDIT 210.245 5 of5 May9,2014 
Subject 

EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 
EDUCATION LEAVE AND/OR EDUCATION FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND 

CONTINUING EDUCATION 

7. DAS-SAE-Daily Processing will pre-audit. 

8. The lottery will apply the required approvals on 113. 

9. Object code 2474 is to be used on the TP for graduate/undergraduate courses that are not 
taxable, job/non-job related, up to $5250 per calendar year. 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.102 I of 15 April25, 2014 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

Purchasing Policies 

Master Agreements 
Prior to purchasing any goods or services, the ILA associate shall review the Department of Administrative Services 
(DAS) website and/or State Accounting System (1/3) for any available master agreement. Goods or services of 
general use available on a master agreement may be purchased from a different vendor if the quantity required 
makes it cost-effective to purchase from a non-master agreement vendor or if there is an immediate or emergency 
need for an item and the ILA determines that its best interests will be served by exemption from the bidding 
process. 

Competitive Procurement 
Above $50,000 

1. A formal (sealed) competitive selection process is required in connection with any "major procurement" 
except in cases where a single vendor has an exclusive right to offer a product or service. A "major 
procurement" is defined as any consulting agreement or any contract for the printing of tickets or the 
purchase or lease of equipment or services essential to the operation of a lottery game. Invitations-to
bid or Requests for Proposal (RFP) must be posted to the DAS bid opportunities website and the 
Targeted Small Business (TSB) website and shall be advertised in a daily paper in Iowa. Award of bid 
or RFP requires CEO and Lottery Board approval. 

2. A formal (sealed) competitive selection process is required in connection with the purchase of goods or 
services when COST IS NOT the main criterion for selection and the goods or services are expected to 
cost in the aggregate of $50,000 or more. Invitations-to-bid or RFPs must be posted to the DAS bid 
opportunities website and the TSB website. Award of bid or RFP requires CEO approval and Lottery 
Board approval for services only. 

3. A formal or informal competitive selection process (which includes electronic or fax submissions) is 
required for the purchase of goods that are not essential to the operation of a lottery game, when 
COST IS the main criterion for selection and the goods are expected to cost in the aggregate of 
$50,000 or more. Bids must be posted to the DAS bid opportunities website and the TSB website. 
Award of bid requires CEO approval. 

4. The use of other state or public entity current agreements for goods or services may be utilized to 
purchase the goods and services by the Lottery instead of issuing a competitive bid or RFP. 

Above $5,000 to $50,000 
1. GOODS- An informal or formal competitive selection process for goods may be used when cost is the 

main criterion and the goods are expected to cost greater than $5,000 and less than $50,000. The 
following guidelines shall apply: 
a. The informal or formal invitation-to-bid may be issued electronically to selected vendors known to 
offer the goods and may be posted to the DAS bid opportunities website and the TSB website. 
b. Award may require CEO approval depending upon total cost. 
c. Informal bids shall be documented in writing. If informal bids are obtained via telephone, notes taken 
by the ILA associate during the telephone call qualify as appropriate documentation; e-mail or fax bids 
or quotes also qualify as responses. All documentation shall be attached to the purchase file. 
d. If the goods are expected to cost over $5,000 but the contract will be awarded to a vendor based on 
special circumstances or criteria other than cost, the CEO or Executive Vice-President may grant a 
waiver of the bidding requirement. The ILA associate requesting the waiver shall do so in writing. 
e. If the ILA has a list of vendors that provide the goods, all applicable vendors on the list shall be 
contacted or provided an invitation-to-bid. 
f. If there is no vendor list for the goods , but the ILA associate requesting the informal bid knows of 
three or more vendors who provide the goods, at least three informal bids shall be obtained. If the ILA 
associate does not know of at least three vendors who provide the goods , then as many bids as 
possible should be obtained and the ILA associate should document in writing why fewer than three 
bids were taken. 
g. If the lowest bidder is not awarded the contract, the reason should be documented in writing, 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.102 2 of 15 April25, 2014 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

attached to the purchase file and approved by authorized person signing the purchase order or 
contract. 
h._lf an outside entity (ad agency or other vendors) conducts a competitive bidding process on behalf 
of the ILA, the policies stated above shall also apply. 
i. Any goods of $10,000 and below may be purchased from a DIA certified TSB vendor without any 
informal quote/bid obtained. The purchase file should contain a screen-print showing the vendor is an 
authorized company and appears on the TSB website at time of purchase. 
j. If the goods being purchased are known by the ILA associate to result in possible re-orders during 

fiscal year and cost in the aggregate over $5,000, a written contract is required. 
k. If the goods are a single purchase and cost in the aggregate over $5,000, a written contract is 
required. 

2. SERVICES -An informal or formal competitive selection process for services may be used when cost 
is NOT the main criterion and the services are expected to cost greater than than $5,000 but less than 
$50,000 annually and or no more than $150,000 for a multi-year service. The following guidelines shall 
apply: 
a. The informal or formal competitive selection may be issued electronically to selected vendors 
known to offer the services and may be posted to the DAS bid opportunities website and the TSB 
website. 
b. Award requires CEO approval over $20,000 and Lottery Board approval over $25,000. 
c. Informal bids shall be documented in writing. If informal bids are obtained via telephone, notes taken 
by the ILA associate during the telephone call qualify as appropriate documentation; e-mail bids or 
quotes also qualify as responses. All documentation shall be attached to the purchase file. 
d. If the services are expected to cost over $5,000 but the contract will be awarded to a vendor based 
on special circumstances or criteria other than cost, the CEO or Executive Vice-President may grant a 
waiver of the bidding requirement. The ILA associate requesting the waiver shall do so in writing. 
e. If the ILA has a list of vendors that provide the service, all applicable vendors on the list shall be 
contacted or provided an invitation-to-bid. 
f. If there is no vendor list for the service, but the ILA associate requesting the informal bid knows of 
three or more vendors who provide the service, at least three informal bids shall be obtained. If the ILA 
associate does not know of at least three vendors who provide the service, then as many bids as 
possible should be obtained and the ILA associate should document in writing why fewer than three 
bids were taken. 
g. If the lowest bidder is not awarded the contract, the reason should be documented in writing, 
attached to the purchase file and approved by authorized person signing the purchase order or 
contract. 
h. Any services of $10,000 and below may be purchased from a DIA certified TSB vendor without any 
informal quote/bid obtained. The purchase file should contain a screen-print showing the vendor is an 
authorized company and appears on the TSB website at time of purchase. 
i. If the service being purchased is known by the ILA associate to result in additional services at a later 
time during the fiscal year and cost in the aggregate over $5,000, a written contract is required. 
j. Refer to services contract section below for additional requirements. 

$1,001 - $5,000 -
1. SERVICES- For services costing less than $5,000 annually or less than $15,000 for multi-year service 

, no competitive bids are required. A written contract is required for services above $1,000. Refer to 
services contract section below for additional requirements. 

2. GOODS -Goods costing less than $5,000 may be obtained by informal telephone bids/quotes or price 
comparisons. The following guidelines shall apply: 
a. Bids from three sources are to be obtained for all items in aggregate at time of order placement. 
b. Informal bids shall be documented in writing. If informal bids are obtained via telephone, notes 
taken by the ILA associate during the telephone call qualify as appropriate documentation. Internet 
screen shots, faxes and e-mail bids or quotes also qualify as responses. All documentation shall be 
attached to the purchase file. 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.102 3 ofl5 April25, 2014 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

c. If the ILA has a list of vendors that provide the service, all applicable vendors on the list shall be 
contacted or provided an invitation-to-bid 
d. If there is no vendor list for the goods, but the ILA associate requesting the informal bids knows of 
three or more vendors who provide the goods, at least three informal bids shall be obtained. If the ILA 
associate does not know of at least three vendors who provide the goods, then as many bids as 
possible should be obtained and the ILA associate should document in writing why fewer than three 
bids were taken. 
e. P-card may be used for purchases if direct billing is not feasible or for internet purchases, otherwise 
a purchase order should be issued. Purchases made via P-card should document price paid using a 
screen shot or e-mail receipt for the purchase file. Approval must be obtained prior to order placement 
for all purchases above $1,000. 

$1-$1,000-
1. Up to $1,000- Informal quotes/bids are not required for single item purchases only, not aggregate 

purchases. If goods purchased are greater than $1,000 in aggregate see above requirements. Any 
documentation regarding purchase to be attached to purchase file or P-card file. 

2. P-card may be used for purchases if direct billing is not feasible or for internet purchases, otherwise a 
purchase order should be issued. Purchases made via P-card should document price paid using a 
screen shot or e-mail receipt for the purchase file. 

3. Goods AND Services- Less than $1,000, no written contract or PCQ is required. 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS: 

Legal Review- All written contracts shall be submitted to the Vice President of General Counsel for review 
prior to contract execution. 

Sole Source -The CEO or Executive Vice-President must approve the use of all sole-source purchases by 
approving the sole-source document before any contract is awarded. If a written justification from 
requesting department is provided it should be attached to the sole-source document. The sole-source 
document and justification must be submitted to the CEO or EVP; once approved, the request must be 
posted on the State of Iowa bid opportunities website for five (5) calendar days before an agreement or 
contract for the goods or services is granted. If no vendor responds to the sole-source posting, purchase 
may proceed with all documentation to be placed with the purchase or contract file. Exception to the 
website posting shall be for a sole source that is restricted by licensing or trademark agreements and no 
other source could respond to the posting. 

Emergency Purchases- The ILA associate shall attempt to acquire goods and services of general use with as 
much competition as practicable under the circumstances and should try to obtain the best value for the 
funds spent under the circumstances. Justification for the emergency purchase shall be documented on 
the sole source/emergency documentation form and submitted to the CEO or EVP for approval. 

Purchase Order Approval Levels (not required over $5,000) 
1. All non-sole source purchases 

a. Purchasing Agent- up to $1,000 
b. Vice President of Security- up to $5,000 
c. Executive Vice President- up to $5,000 
d. CEO- up to $5,000 

2. Ticket Dispenser related items covered by contract 
a. Purchasing Agent - up to $2,500 
b. Vice President of Security- up to $5,000 
c. Executive Vice President- up to $5,000 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.102 4 ofl5 April 25,2014 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

d. CEO- up to $5,000 
3. Approval exceptions 

Vice President of Finance shall be the authorized backup during absences by the Executive Vice 
President and Vice President of Security for purchase order approvals. A Vice President should 
not approve purchase orders that provide goods or services to their own department, unless 
circumstances require an immediate signature. 

Contract Approval Levels 
1. All non-sole source contracts 

a. Vice President of Security- up to $10,000 
b. Executive Vice President- up to $20,000 
c. CEO- up to $25,000 for services; no limit on goods 
d. Board approval- over $25,000 (for services only) 

2. All sole source purchase approvals 
a. Executive Vice President or 
b. CEO 

3. Approval exceptions 
Vice President of Finance shall be the authorized backup during absences by the Executive Vice 
President and Vice President of Security for contract approvals. A Vice President should not 
approve contracts that provide goods or services to their own department, unless circumstances 
require an immediate signature. 

Receipt of Goods 
ILA associates must inspect and/or determine the goods received meet the specifications of the order 
placed and that the appropriate quantities have been received. Packing slips or receipts describing the 
item received shall be attached to the purchase order before payment is made. In the absence of a 
packing slip or receipt, an e-mail from the receiving location shall be an acceptable form. 

Advertising Media Placement 
1. All advertising media placements require a purchase order or written contract. For placements 

exceeding, or expected to exceed, $5,000 in aggregate per fiscal year, a written contract is required 
prior to the placement of the advertising. 

2. For advertising media placement of $5,000 or less in aggregate per fiscal year may be placed on a pre
approved Lottery template. If the pre-approved Lottery template is used for the agreement, no legal 
review is required prior to approval and signature. Any advertising media placement agreements 
written on any other form require Lottery legal department review before signing. 

3. Approval levels for advertising media placement agreements are: 
a. $1 to $1,000 in aggregate for fiscal year may be approved by the Advertising 

Manager/Promotions Manager. 
b. $1,001 to $5,000 in aggregate for the fiscal year may be approved by the Vice President of 

Marketing. 
c. $5,000 and above in aggregate for the fiscal year must be approved by the EVP or other 

authorized signature. 
4. Sole Source 

Placement of media advertising is inherently a sole source item. No other identical venue exists for 
any particular media advertising placement. Therefore, this policy will serve to justify all advertising as 
sole source. 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit I 240.102 I 5 of15 April 25, 2014 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

Services Contracting 

1. Defined. 
Services contracts are contracts entered into by ILA to aid in carrying out its programs and to provide 
specialized services through an independent contractor qualified by education, experience and/or technical 
ability. Services contracts may be with individuals, partnerships, firms, corporations or other business entities. 

"Service or services" means work performed for the ILA by a service provider and includes, but is not limited to: 
• Professional or technical expertise provided by a consultant, advisor or other technical or service 

provider to accomplish a specific study, review, project, task, or other work as described in the 
scope of work. By way of example and not by limitation, these services may include the following: 
accounting services; aerial surveys; aerial mapping and seeding; appraisal services; land surveying 
services; construction manager services; analysis and assessment of processes, programs, fiscal 
impact, compliance, systems and the like, auditing services, communications services; services of 
peer reviewers, attorneys, financial advisors, and expert witnesses for litigation, architectural 
services, information technology consulting services; services of investment advisors and 
managers; marketing services; policy development and recommendations; program development; 
public involvement services and strategies; research services; scientific and related technical 
services; software development and system design; and services of underwriters, physicians, 
pharmacists, engineers, and architects; or 

• Services provided by a vendor to accomplish routine functions. These services contribute to the 
day-to-day operations of the I LA. By way of example and not by limitation, these services may 
include the following: ambulance service; charter service; boiler testing; bookkeeping service; 
building alarm systems service and repair; commercial laundry service; communications systems 
installations servicing and repair; court reporting and transcription services; engraving service; 
equipment or machine installation; preventive maintenance, inspection, calibration and repair; 
heating ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) system maintenance service; janitorial service; 
painting inside and outside; pest weed control service; grounds maintenance, mowing, parking lot 
sweeping and snow removal service; towing service; translation services; and travel service. 

• "Service contract" means a contract for a service or services where the predominant factor and 
purpose of the contract as reasonably stated is for the provision or rendering of services. When 
there is a mixed contract for both goods and services and the predominant factor and purpose of 
the contract as reasonably stated is for the provision or rendering of services with goods 
incidentally involved, a service contract exists and these rules apply. 

2. Policy Statement and Purpose. 
a. It is the policy of the ILA that the expenditure of lottery funds for service contractors shall, insofar as 

practicable, be done through an open, competitive process. 
b. This policy is to be used when determining the Employer/Employee Relationships, and working with the 

PCQ, SS-8 and payment processes. 
c. Contracts with state agencies, political subdivisions of the state of Iowa, federal government agencies, 

another state government or a political subdivision thereof are exempt from the competitive selection 
process (see 11 lAC 118.4(8A). 

d. Contracts under $1,000.00 (plus allowable expenses) are exempt from the PCQ process. 
e. Contracts with a Corporation, with a signed W9 attached to the claim, are exempt from the PCQ 

process. 

3. Determination of Employer/Employee Relationship, PCQ, SS-8 

a. Prior to signing a contract, DAS-SAE-Daily Processing personnel must make a determination as to 
whether or not the contractor has an employer/employee relationship with the ILA. Contracts that create an 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
I 

Procedure No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.102 6 of IS APiil25, 2014 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

employer/employee relationship are not allowed. See section 3(g), if an employer/employee relationship 
exists. 

Prior to signing a contract, the !LA must review the VCUST (Vendor Customer Table) that is a part of the 
Iowa statewide accounting system (1/3). When DAS-SAE has reviewed and determined that no 
employer/employee relationship with the state exists, SAE will enter the SAE CONTROL# in the SAE 
Control #field on the VCUST table. 

If an individual (using a social security number or a tax identification number) or a company has the SAE 
Control# field populated, enter the SAE Control# on the Pre-Contract Questionnaire and complete other 
department actions on the contract. 

b. If the individual or company does not have anSAE Control#, then PRIOR to signing the contract the 
!LA MUST prepare and submit the original Pre- Contract Questionnaire (see attached sample form), the 
completed Internal Revenue Service (IRS) form SS-8, if not contracting with a corporation (see sample 
form), and the proposed, unsigned contract to DAS-SAE-Daily Processing. 

c. When contracting with a corporation, !LA may send to DAS-SAE the PCQ to obtain the SAE Control#, 
OR, in place of the PCQ attach an original signed W9 to the claim and send the document to DAS-SAE, 
attention PCQ coordinator, to add the SAE Control# to the VCUST table and write the SAE Control# on 
the payment claim, OR, to save time, attach the original signed W9 to the claim, and send a photocopy of 
the claim and W9 to DAS-SAE-attention PCQ coordinator to add the SAE Control# to the VCUST table. 
For future payments to this vendor, !LA will need to look at the VCUST table to get the SAE Control# to 
write on future claims for payment. 

d. If contracting with a group of individuals who will perform essentially the same function for the State and 
who will have essentially the same working relationship with the State, only one form SS-8 need be 
prepared. In preparing a "generic" SS-8, a statement must be attached outlining the estimated number of 
individuals per contract period. If the generic SS-8 must be later modified, then a new generic SS-8 must 
be processed through DAS-SAE-Daily Processing for approval. 

e. If the contract is between the !LA and an individual, and the service is to be performed in three (3) days 
or less and sufficient evidence can be presented as part of the Pre-Contract Questionnaire or attachments 
so that DAS-SAE-Daily Processing can ascertain that no employer/employee relationship exists, no SS-8 
need be completed. 

f. In addition to the SS-8, a recap of the Twenty Common Law Factors used by the IRS to determine the 
presence of an employer/employee relationship is attached for guidance below. 

g. If the !LA has not pre-determined the existence of an employer/employee relationship and the contractor 
does not have the SAE Control#, then the completed SS-8 if not contracting with a corporation, along with 
the proposed, unsigned contract, must be attached to the Pre-Contract Questionnaire when it is submitted 
to DAS-SAE-Daily Processing. In certain instances, the contractor may be required to complete IRS form 
W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number Certification. 

DAS-SAE-Daily Processing will review the proposed, unsigned contract to determine if an 
employee/employer relationship will exist. If, after review of the Pre-Contract Questionnaire and supporting 
documents, DAS-SAE-Daily Processing concludes that an employer/employee relationship will exist, the 
!LA must either select another contractor that will meet the independent contractor test or use the State's 
third party contract with Tern porary Staffing Services to pay the contractor. 

h. After DAS-SAE review, the Pre-Contract Questionnaire and supporting materials will be returned. 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedm·e No. Page No. Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.102 7 of15 April25, 2014 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

I. Contracted services are not to be performed until all signatures are obtained and distribution of contract 
copies is made to the parties. 

j. The contract should specify a starting and ending date. ILA should not enter into a service contract for a 
period of longer than six years (including extensions) unless ILA gets a waiver of the duration limitation 
from the Executive Vice President or Lottery CEO. 

k. Contracts should include a termination clause including a non-appropriation clause. Service contracts 
may cross biennial and fiscal year lines, and, when they do the contract should specifically include a non
appropriation provision. 

I. Create a sufficient number of copies of the contract so that the ILA maintains a copy for its file, a copy 
can be sent to the DAS-SAE-Daily Processing when the first invoice is remitted for payment, and a copy for 
the contractor. 

m. Procedures noted in Item #3 shall be followed as deadlines allow. Any exceptions to the procedure 
timelines shall be noted and documented in the purchase file. 

4. Contract Payments: 

a. The payment voucher (GAX or PRC) or the first payment in a series requires: 
• a copy of the original contract signed by both parties 
• a copy of the completed signed Pre-Contract Questionnaire (PCQ) with the SAE 

Control#. 
• a copy of the Report of Sole Source Procurement if applicable (DAS-GSE form) 
• a copy of the Report of Emergency Procurement if applicable (DAS-GSE form) 
• the original invoice or original claimant signature. 

b. Subsequent payments shall include the following information on the voucher: 
• The document number and date the initial claim of this contract series was processed through 1/3. 

(The initial claim of the series will have the contract attached.) 
• Original invoice or claimant signature. 

c. Amended contract payment vouchers: 
• Attach a copy of the signed amendment. 
• Amended PCQ, only if the Employer/Employee relationship changed. 
• Make a reference to the document number and paid date of the first payment 

voucher. 
• On any subsequent payments reference the document number and paid date where the 

amendments are attached. 

5. Object Codes: 
Proper object codes shall be used. When paying attorneys use: 2462 Legal Fees, 2553 Adult Contract Legal 
Fees, 2554 Juvenile Contract Legal Fees. For other contractual services use the proper object code found on 
1/3 on the OBJ table. 

6. Expense Reimbursements: 
When part of the contract includes specifically reimbursing individuals for expenses, the reimbursement shall 
not exceed the limits established for board members (see ILA Procedures #21 0.245 (3) and 21 0.305). It is the 
ILA's responsibility to ensure the appropriate rates are written into the contracts. 

7. Payment vouchers for contracts with individuals must contain the Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN). 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. 
I 

Page No. 
I 

Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.102 8 ofl5 April 25, 2014 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

8. When payment is made on a PRC where a DAS-GSE contract is referenced, the ILA is responsible for the 
PCQ and the. ILA should attach the Pre-Contract Questionnaire referencing the SAE Control#. 

9. Contracts in which the dollar amount is unknown, such as when payment is based on a percent of 
recoveries, certain generic contracts, etc., MUST have the Pre-Contract Questionnaire and the contract signed 
by the ILA CEO, or designee. 

10. Advance Payments: 
See ILA procedure 230.550 #2.g. (1) 

11. Twenty Common Law Factors 
A. Indicators of control by employer 

1. Set hours of work 
2. Full-time work requirement 
3. Set order or sequence of work 
4. Oral or written reports required 

B Other indicators of employer/employee relationship 
5. Personal service required 
6. Hiring, supervising, and paying helpers 
7. Payment of business or travel expense 
8. Work performed on employer's premises 
9. Furnishing of tools and materials 

C. Indicators common to independent contractors 
10. Significant investment 
11. Realization of profit or risk of loss 
12. Work performed for more than one firm 
13. Services made available to the public 

D. Strong indicator of employer/employee relationship 
14. Continuing work relationship 
15. Paid by hour, week, month, or piece-work 
16. Right to discharge 
17. Right to terminate 

E. Indicators of control by employer 
18. Training provided 
19. Instructions given 
20. Integration 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. 
I 

Page No. 
I 

Effective Date 
Pre-Audit 240.102 9 of15 Apri125, 2014 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

SERVICES PRE-CONTRACT QUESTIONNAIRE 
Prepare and submit this form prior to entering into a Services Contract. If the Contractor is listed on the VCUST with the 
SAE Control Number under Organization, enter the SAE Control Number from VCUST in the space below and submit this 
form with the first invoice for payment. 

1. Department 

Contact _____________ Phone _________ Fax _________ ___ 

2. Contractor 

Federal Tax ID or Social Security Number----------------------------

Address 

3. Contracted Service/Product --------------------------------

4. Contract Period From---------------
To ________________ _ 

5. Contract Cost: $ ___________ _ 

Source of Funds: State_% Fed_% Other_% Explanation----------------

Account Codes: Fund Dept_ Unit Sub-Unit Object __ 

6. 0 New Contract 0 Amended Contract 0 Previous Contract Date ------------------

For Department Use 

(Attach form SS-8 if not contracting with a corporation) 

Sole Source? 0 Yes 0 No 

Employer/Employee Relationship? 0 Yes 0 No 

If Yes, attach PCQ and signed contract, & forward to DAS-SAE 

Signature of Department Director or Designee 

Typed Name 

Title 

Date 

Generic Contract Number-------------

SAE Control Number---------------

For Department of Administrative Services Use 

Employer/Employee Relationship? DYes D No 

DAS-SAE Signature 

Date 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit 

Subject 
I 

Procedure No. 
240.102 I 

Page No. 
10 ofl5 l 

Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

ram SS-8 CI..'B.N:t.. l~~ 

Determination of Worker ~tatus for Purposes F« IRS U.o OnJ(' 
~¥.A.gniN11) of Federal Employment Taxes and C..... IIWni>Gr' 

~rirl•r....-.ry Income Tax Withholding e.rlkGI Roc:<lpl Dolo, 

"==inwltt---~. 

10~ d r.~m p fl-27) b .. ~un tt. .:AM fM'::m..-1 ~a. W:ftw'• nwnt 

n..,•, .....&.j ..u-.~n.-od'-, OfL",.;, ,.,.,.,.,, -·· .... lPe>loj 1\'M-'o oaln)oU.. J-nno """d *-'f'o" ailom , <~f• ,. .. ., ord TP.-.cloj 

Tt.J.,.,.,. F.zm' • .rM•*l•a IV <A• '• d.of'.,.WtJiuo••"""' Wet\ • '• .,._. aJ:hu 

F.rn'• lu~t- r3m·. ~:a. W:ft•'• danu:!eWIJlcr.•r:UTib.r \'hD-'•h•rrJnt:.. 

F:rno' .. ~n:;mlvp:L-J...,.toi.J i f"-.m' • ~.D(«id-rt~unb. w:a ..... aa...J.«:ufol'uri:Mw I"I,W'·onFfw·-..,.-~,r-(1 

-Nolo. II Ill> 1\"'t"' ISf>S<I l>f I".MOS<nio:GS"fO t tm01",Qf lll>n tho C<» ~ <n lhb fcrm,c.Hor lhOn:>TQ, odd<"'•· OT1So:r.plaf"' lll<i nrlooten 

. 

ru~dU»paJ~- ~ --------------------------------------------------------------------------

Disclos .. e of lnfonnllion 

lho hfof!l\U>n p-aMod on Fonn SS-8 mot bo dU.kl:it:l I a thollm, " """"· « P"l" rumo>1 .00.11 to «.:tSitho IRS In lho -."!on f'OC<6S. 
fer <X>II'pl>, ''f'OJ.,. • WO<t«, "" ""'' dbd!M tho lfl'<ma!Ln )OU F"'""'• C<1 fCiml ss~ Ia ,..,llTn [ f p:l)'«....,.., a bola. ft.<l k/ll<IT'olf.on atn 
W f 1>1 - 110 ami 1l'lh l"o c!ol rmlrul!:in f<a:G:.. ~you pm.1:» fnrorrpl>lo 1:/orrr..-tk>n, wo =f l.<ll I» •blo ~> pro<= )1>1Jf roq'J"'I. 5-oo 
mnqA£1ri>:l l'o/»r•uAIW.<H:VJ/~ ,_,Ito «1 po;o 0 !<< r.ll<O fnkrrrull:a. H you 6>nol .-.ntlf"" WCifD'ol/JOncloci!Mod to abt f>"'ks. 6> 
noi i i;J ronn 55-a. 

P•rb 1-V. N l lkn ol Focm SS-8 mu5l comj1o!o <il q J<lrtl:.rui n Poll!li-N. P:rl V "'""' bo OO<Tplo!Od N tho -b;r ponU... o S<~Vto r!irdiJ IO 
CU'ltcm;n orb ;J 5<1~-p:;"~ kjl ~OJ C~nat nn!1m' :t q-~~:1!'"\ Q">__!,.:.f "\JnJ..rMr.11~ « •Qx.ts nali Wf: I )1XI n.;ad m:(.,) ~ tlf' r:t f:lOfGU"J1• ~.Xh 
;:t~d:or sl»<rt -.r.; I'-~ poll or>:! ~n n.rrol>or c!Alrl)' ld«"Jl!od. Wt~o yo .. flr.l'• ,.,.,. (ot V.:<ll:r>' """"! :r.d ""'11"1" ' ld<£U!c.>ll<n r~ fCt 
oo:l>l «-.:vty r.lllllb:r) <11 V.<~ l ap « ~»<h O<ldti<l:ool ,..._ .Sbchoj ~ IIIlo lam. 

lil:iJI Gcneral lnfonnatlon 

lhb !<on Is !><jr>J C<l'rf OOb><l !:If 0 fml 0 1\'0<!<<r, lc.< wvl:<ls po<:cm-o :l ----.===:r--Ia ----===:r--
~rnJda~JII fl"inJCGil 

£>pbh)""' r={•l r,. UnJ L'l! IIJ'mrar ,,,.,...f~. l""' '"'"YI><I o llll ~<m tn> lll3, )'<'Jb<IIW\'> l"" <nMOOO"YrlX><I•od• rum rcmu 
fcnn W-2, l"" 111~ lr.llbl> to gal wtrl»(s .,._.,.~ """'"-"· << yo_J "'"• ~lltod ex.,. t>Wg :ulllo:l ty ttoiRSJ . ------------

Iotti n~nt<> al ll'«'"""' -.m f<>lloml'<f a< oro f<71<rm'ng !l'o """« slnlllt «••11:"': ::-:-=:::---=-:::::-
4 HoWdiJIM '...:ntlC«.ll:>IO.)<tfl 0 ~o1'lon 0 B<l 0 £rrq:l'f1)TrV1hJ>r>:y 0 oth;r (•podl)1 

M l<ll <"If., cr llll•ufPCC1119 docum~JUI!<<> (lo< o....p., roorncs, hrolc<~.-. r ctll'6 W-2.,. r«mt l«»-11~ IS<~Jod"c:-:,:-:,.:-:c:-:d::-,ld=,ms=
cll<lf>1...,......f" « IRS nlhgl~ ln<ldll1ll\ ~~ hb:n lllcl irf c.-.nut rr fWIICijllb:lcc....,...,;rg IN w:t\'.i7'S >u.t..all no l"<«r"RfW.IIJ 1::<0!1 

~ct:>I!Ol-I.'.SC«W-lJ....,tJ11l.'«<D!ho ._ti'!I,T, cr.tl b>~'!UI'Iol tc.n><.:m>jjx~<IY""00 " ta» ' ---------------

~both f01m W-2 :r<l Form 100> Mi£C -•lzuod an>:~~. ~lf(<fn 'ldiJ. ------------------------------------

6 D<>;at:o til.> llm'o tu<l'=. ----------------------------------------------------------

C.d..t;a.. \&1o&t 

Effective Date 
Ap_ril25, 2014 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit I 

Procedure No. 
240.102 I 

Page No. 
11 of 15 I 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

2 

mJI ~rallnformaUon (ContJnued) 

r lila ,.~,.,.."'""""'~ rrom rmr•tNn cr.<~ <nl~/ ba:..,..., ot on.,...,, S\Ktl"' tho> Sll\1, ""'9"· orqm!5on, « 11><rglll1l.llkn cllh> Inn ror 
wtan Ito ""1cos ;ro f<>~Orm;O, pr!Mjo lila tcloW'hg: f>ollm>ol ll:• rmts FCV>1a.'!: CMn<r. - = - - -;:;;------;:;-,---
fl<tfazscr"""·sb.>J")wlli<I7Uf0nnnt<r. ~;rungo....,o: O S>Jo 0 Morgor 0 Ao~asr.oo O nwrg>rll.ltDI. 

0 ~~~~~ ·::-----------------------------------------------------------0110<7):ll<nCJiatm .. <t~: _ _____________________ ______ _ 

&ptln•lly)W t>;~wo L>ll ·..:6ul"l:: on ompqw or on tmoprr®rrt corl7actoc. --------------------------

10 ru 1!".<1 ....,...., p<lk<m "'"'c""' roc tho nnn 1n onyto~p<>:!l)' l><l<<• pro•1dng 11:o ""1:.-.. tM .,. !:'-" rut(oct otllf• C:.l«rr!rull<n roqu;<;t7 
0 v .. 0 llo 0 II/A 

~ 'Yz,' ~l10r<'.>lho dot .. or L'":<l fl(« 50M<•7 _ __ --:---:-- --:-- -----------------
W 'Yz.' '"'P'il"nt'.•dllonct"Cm, ~ ony, b¢.,.;Gnltocurror• ollldpcb< """'<». ----- ----- --------

It 'rr lho "M::r.< t~ _, ll'd" • w.'Jll;n "!J<O<m<t" t t<>llo""' lh> nm ollld lho 10llli:or, otllKh • COV/ ¥wr>tty o\jnal l:<f b3h p.vtlaj. D:wb> lllo 
t~~~ca~~~soi~~-~~~L __________________________ __ 

mJII ~haY1oral Control (Pr<>VlOe names iWl<l t itles oc specllle lrdV1<1ui!ls. If appllCa.bCe.) 

Vt-_ol ~ltclri!ring ollld'o r t\>11\.<11<<1 1:; 'fo•.vaJ.org\..., tJflh> 1m11 _________________ __ _ 

Yb l IJpGSDI C'f'Gltslll•~Jr.>1 ~«n lh>>I<:<'<V1All¥tlcr<oll'fl"'·---------------------

Dzat.ot t»wtu'f-.cl"Sd\l"tfr04F.nor:u:.h¥ h.l: ct t.usd".JldllatthCM.Fs... --------- ----------

AI'Nrulloc:l'lo'\'>) <!<X4 tho W<rll>r pc.rkrm >WCY'c<6 ~"' cr<r.po. rtm'S f<.:<T>t>o>, o11n >hop oc omco. t>o<r», nntcmor'> bGllla:l? lhdl:~., 

!f"Q "!'t""prl:t•l><"'orto>qOOI ll'nllh>ll'>rl.« "!"<>:Is t1 CD<tl IX3".Dn, ll CI:<Oi hon 0::0-----------------
a ll<r.abo onyrr.c<:ll'.QS lho,..:t!IUJsroq~rod I!JOI:wn.l or.l >l1f Jl«13llo< !«not :t~hg~r ge~!Tflo, .-rr~•. maltJJ """'hgs, 

10 
II 

12 
I) 

·•~meo~~.g~==========~----------------....,=:-:--;:;-::-:-!!:lt-'1\lltliW r.>~<~o:IIDprt'iOOIIIO"'N'I:"'f"">"'<l1J7 • . • 0 Yoo 0 No 

V sub>~llr."' a ~d'f<>CSa·•-. v.!lotJr.., lllOm7 ....,...-,......,.,..----------------.,,..-,::--,--:-:-
~ lila "'""'" h~rD eo"' sut>:llU'"" or h<il"''"·'' •J>I>"'Y'1 roqlfro:SI 0 Yos 0 No 

' YZ.'I1f Wh«n7 _ __ .,--- --------------------- --------
W'.OPJf' l~o<>.OOitu1"' a~"'~'<'"'-----------------------=-.,----=-
!!:tro\\Q1<orrO'rrtJ.r.:o3~'to-ilir J>Jplho!l.=rut"'«tli'JlGrs? . •••.. . .. . . .. .. 0 Yos 0 No 
[J •ya; • t.r wocm? 

Effective Date 
A_Qri125, 2014 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit I 

Procedure No. 
240.102 I 

Page No. 
12 of 15 I 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

3 

li:iJill Rnanclal contrOl (Pr0Vklena11esen!l iitJE<s or speer~ lll11Mooal3.11 aw!IC<Ibla.) 

1~1~: ------------------------------------------------------------------------1howcrur.. ______________________________________________________________________ __ 

~~~~~------------------------------------------------------~~--~~-OCCIS ih>-.olt<II>3>GGqii~<IVIll,<·f'OCO,C<~ I<J:fly7 • ......... • ......... 0 Yoo 0 No 

~ "Ya;," W\JI :>"~ 1~.0 IOlTM Dl IJ» l.>zo? ¥•H ><h O<Cflf a "'i'":r:.11ory s'.U..rn;nl ) -----------------------------

W"..ll r.xp<ll!:"' ll'O incunodtlflll> "MIItui\!Mf'Orl!>r"""l<»DI <<«•:c>SI1ll'lll> fmfl _____________________________ _ 

• Sp;c!y W'.J:h,ll :ry, O<f4""" >tO r;imb, ,.,<-1 by. 

1~1~: ~--------------------------------------------------------------------
~·~~-~~----~----~~--------~~--~~------~~~~~-------.~~~~---1)?>D I ~ltGW<m.<roro'\""- 0 Slll1)' 0 Cmrnlnoo 0 lb.d1)'1\'>g> 0 P~;o>Wak 

0 Lump&~ 0 ~~~~~? -------------------------~------------------
l l)?l of r<rf II COII"ms::fon, o.n1 '""" trm port= • rnl"llrum ""''""' r:t f"'''· <podf)' .....,urA. 
IIIJ'.o •Mfl<a :fl:\1~ ~ dm,tng >«our~ rt.:n <l>'ncca·7 • . . . . . • • . . . . . . • • . . 0 YH 0 No 
1 'Yczs: t.cwon;n? _ _____________________________________________________________ _ 
Sp;c!y ~( r~l~ .. _ _____________________________________________________________ _ 

. 0 nrm 
0 llo n<tlo,"Q!Un. 

0 Y/rrtll.r 

3 ll<xDlll> lhiiGlll'f ...-l.«s'c~ntn:~.oonL'.Q'M>1Ur7 ... . .... . . 0 YM 0 No 
\'~1 <>:<""-':10 taos or r.rond~ rl:t. IIJtrf. c., lllo wtOOll l'la.r r:..,,no Ill> norrmt ., <A s:toy (Ia <M"pl>, loa! or <S:nog> o l f>l.!pm;nl, 
"al~~7 ______________________________________________________________________ __ 

10 00... lll>""!I;Q <z;!iltfhh"".G !w<l ol p.:)'i"<rllorll>o ......-.: .. p-aMxl O<r" .. pr;>!I!>,IH<i d 7 . . . . • . . • 0 YM 0 No 

~ ·n>: .. no~ -------------------------------------------------------------------

~ RelallonUIIp 01 11\e W011<er an!l Ftrm 

F»:= cMdcll»lx.I:Ginil\-I.Olho ""'<'""" t:J P~Y¥otl<r-' 

[] Pu=ldo)" D """~"' 
IJ l'l:td h :..b".-j" 

Oll<r-"""' 
D <Y.h<l (<F«"t1 -:::--c:-:==-:::-:::---,..,.-::-...,.,.-;-:--:-:---.--.-=-----=-:::---------------:=;-::---;"'"'"'::-
con!i'ar<J ..-...,rr;l1p bot•rm~ ll)' d11Kirf"''ywll>o.11o:u'l1"gt.=ty orpa.~J7 .• •. .. 0 YH 0 No 

rt .,~,,· "-'JlUh)~W ::1-...!:11(,!. -----------------------------------------------------------

J lliH"o""""'"' p<I100'n s.!mlll s.:N.e«: fer olh<r.l d""'!J !to llnof"'bd ort..nx~ '11 P:l'l l, lno 11 . • . • . • . D YH D No 
w·vz: tsU>o .. .,.,..., ,"l'l'"'!Og;! OW <71:JIIrom!tolmn? . ...... .. .... . . . . . D Yao D No 

4 ll<ul"llo >1l'f ~l> fll'!1Uhg<Ofll>'l!ltn !><tv.""' ll>o " <W\<<1 on1 &'"~ l rm •lflo l h<IW!lfl<<lls pc<l<rnfnJ """\::"' CA<t.~DJ OIIJI:t.U 

p;<b:l. ~h :WJ """otlo «-cu-..ort.lll<n 

llli'Ovo:<lll7 > m<r.OO!o!olr.i:ln7 • • • •• , . • • , • . . .. • ••. 0 YM 0 No 
Y/'alljpool o<li\TI!Ohg,~ :If(, dO<tJ"o"orbtdo~CliOU!Tflo,ol>~ lstrg n•dJD<Illryut~~C;rnl!j7 Fr"'U. oop<tS, ~ 

~~~-------------~--~~-~------------
~tho Yl<>r1<" .. ~.or proc~ • prod~! I o1 tcmo, •ha f<l1M\ZIIl> rNt.;rn;s "'d l'..,.u:tu..o or poHO'trl - --------------

3 Y/'ol .,.. 11'..:1- d> "'lh !l".<> l nt>'.od p-od,.;l ~ ~fl•, ~<~urn tlo 11>o !I'm, f-ro\'ldo H to iliXI'.h<l f>YI(, or sdl ll)7 ·--------

·HG-wdou: lt..4 r.rm ' 'P'(.t;Ullthg \\tx;-..;r lo l5 ~.:mgs (be 'xmtp~. ctrpb,lKI. f<1Mtt. l 'fl'WUJ"..la!llJo, C!l ox.ttr~ an.1 unjw{ V\OOSG 

tr,,.,., ramodo<G !t-" ..,..w p<r'«rn 111<eo o;<Vl::<el ------------------------------------------

10 U 111<1 \\911:<1 no~ f"'ltJ:rm """~Gslor II» !I'm, haN d<!lh> rwbl>'".llsl!p or>~ ~or Oll.l7pi>, 'IWIMr q!lt « •-.slroc! ,jcl><orrfl•l~ 
cori't;,:t rr<!od, n~ u '/IOOuir"""'l o .t cl lll.!:r.o><)7 __________________________________________ _ 

Effective Date 
April25, 2014 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit 

Subject 
I 

Procedure No. 
240.102 I 

Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

Page No. 
13 of 15 I 

fano~o (Roo. &<2011) Pozo4 

m:t:J For Servfce Prcwldera or sale~JX'r&Om. Complete this part II the v.ocrker prOVkled a !iEfVkle <Jtectly to 
cuotomm or Is a saJE:speruln. 

2 Y/"o~,..ll""'kln"'t/1~ IOft<>Op<£IIIO CUSio~7 --------------------
012:at;G my ropa1r~ r<>~.lrarom~ po<W:Ir>J to lholood> . 

.f ~..>l lwm: >n<1 " '"' n= <.t Ql>. w "'~· aro r,;qu~ ITf tho nrm1 --------------,.,:-:-- ;=;--:-:-
Atoc<d>rs~.~ ~o"'d <ub)iK;I»•wa•llfll)' lllG!l'm1 . . . . . . . . 0 Yoo 0 No 

Effective Date 
April25, 2014 

Y/"odil,;<ml'><» lllG I\Q!I<U'!I~Ioty? _ ____________________ -=---;:;- -
ll!H'~""""•' ~I«I/'up1\~ool"'"lfll<lli iGrNrSon II>Orouloc<hlhol•u~ol)'l 0 Yos 0 NO 

a•vm;w.-am.,d lto> v.w"'PJ(I-------------------~------
u ·v ... ; t.<>w m.ch d d 11>0110rt.« p:rf7 . . . . . . . . . . 

I y.,-,.,. <»os lllG" Q!I<" sdl lho fl«lllct~O< "'-~ .. h o t <m>, rolJO "'tsl1l>tmml)1 ______________ _ 

10 
11 

12 

11 

U•tlto> fl"WciOr>l 'of "'"""'"' d~ll<J1<>j 111 !10<1 ..,.~;o, (O<o.x>mp\:1, ~. \"']V~. rrul!, bollirf f100ucl5, boo'l>r..g;<:, c< bunly a d)' 
ci=II>J ...V<>:4 II rm<otrnn "'" ~/PO or produ:t :r£.\:1 wvt:ol• dls-.Ud. Sp<£ty e-.., JYhdp<i on>.---------

Ooas ti>OF.Ilt<i ,.,.lb ~Ar.liKlO M tim>? . . • . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
0oas lh>'M>l'W oot 11'1'.<1 l)p:>O c1 ruurn>:ol<< ll'<l {rm? • • • • • • • • . • • . • • . 

if •vm, • ""'"' ~o J>"CCTJ.lgG or tN v.,;xtat~ ~.011 w:fU"g l)TQ ~~ h saTng c:h:OI ~at lnsur.rco . 
lit lhQ \\'Cf1(CI' ~aden t om 'AOO~t.~ r-1~. ca-~toa:~ or opwr3cx.s cr ~ .• ta51~11'!5. a obor HrRu 
C6t.lbW\JI>:nls, Ct"W it.oporo;nll>JO <llllil.....:art's ll'T~'!>""lhlhO!»~ • • . . . • 

lo Ito m>!U""''" pm:~ t<J ltlo ""~ t<>t r.:r..ll> ot""' In l"ot I>U<ln= cp;.r;ti:m•? . • 
D<urbott»m;n:h:!n<ll»:r.d !t.llll ·ll'~lll«n ~c.qllr:;m<t1t l"c..J <>j«~ ll»o&.<rnl<>'l'formo.. 

0 Yos 
0 YH 

ONO 
0No 

_ ___ 91. 

Trl• • ------------------------- ~ .. ----------



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section Procedure No. Page No. 
Pre-Audit 240.102 14 of15 

Subject 
Purchasing Policies and Se1vices Contracting 

Qenerollnstructions 

PurpoS& 
rnn~ lll'ld WQdo:.ers Re F-o!TTI SS-fllo r~..t ~ 6:-lermTolfi«~ cf 
the ~~~5c.f a wc-rM:f forpur~offederolll ~kyn-.ert ~C'l 
;vyJ inc'!lme ~ withho/dr.g. 

r6AJ!i~~~~=~~~~~~~~~ror~~~to 
)'NI fc.- whY.h tl'ie IIL:Il.U'Ie d [rritatiM-o:~ en the l..u: retu"n ~ 
e~~. >1 detM!liT"olfotlletler v.ill r.:~l be~. The ~utc of 
~mit~ e.1.pi"~ 3 ysrs from the due tNie ~the l..u: rt!um or 
the cb\e 100:1, 'lfhicheo.u i~ r"'ter. 

The InS dec-;, Mlt-~we.:. deteffr.iniliion letter flll"f'ro~ 
~liQn::; or on h'J'PC'IhC'(l("olll!i!~JiCM. Vie m~. ha.w~. 
MJII qn infot'!To:~lioo-ktler ..W.en it i11 con~"kf~ "-F'Pfqllia!e. 

Dofinilion 
Hrm. Fc.r ~ IRIJPC!:~ of thR form, the term "f<~Tn" lf'IM'\5 ~ 
iMMd.l&l, brJ!ir.M!I tflletpoi~. or~itMion, Gialc, oro~ 
~ity for whid! a WC/1o;.K Ms P«ic-fmoe..-:1 ~c:~. Tha frm m3)' 
or may not N-ve P-'id the w.m.er dirC'<:"tly fa 111~-~J ~ice. 

m IJ!hefirmw:JSnat~oble /01~ fc.t 
~~.bellt.n:foet~fNiheNme,~S..Md 
etrp.'<YJff i&!o.mifY.::oJMn run~ oft~ p3ftf on the 
lrr.t~olrormSS·B.~t~~lyhJ 

inkvrn.lt~ fN ~~ fml/UYi 1M I''Oli:cv. 

lho Form SS-9 Dotormlnation Process 
T~ IllS wil adrwt.i:dge the re<:¢"pl d yoJr Form SS-9". 
lb:o)'J~ there ore ~lytvxJ (or~) p:a1~ ....00 cWd be 
.lffe«ed b'J 11 detMnha!ioo of emplo)men.l..t.ml!i,lh:! IRS 
.:rttlffl.pf" I"O get hfc-fTI'Iaticn from at: parth:r. invc~w:d by ~rdr.g 
lhoGc ~ IJ>lfk r~ ss-a for oomP'o:tion. S'!:rr.e or 1Jl cl 
the infOITflm:ioo ~o·tkled on tli!i f:onn SS-Q m"Y be ~ilft.'d wilh 
the: oth« p;u"ties I'B!ed on p.19e 1. lhe c.:os.e v.il k azisr.ed to.,. 
technicM v.f» w'JI te'kN the kcb, owlY t~.e raw, lil'\d l'tfld« .:11 

doc bien. Thet~nkian m;:zy a!'h. for~ inforrr.rion fmn 
the req~for, hem c&.et im•offed ~.or ftom thhf p.:utrM 
th.lt co!lid hclp d;uify the work rebfun~ip bclc-re rendering o1. 
d«:t-.Joo. TheUiSwfl gfl"'!tlliV i~OJf«m~ de(('frriN:ti«l to 
the firm ljf p.l'f« ~ tho:~t i5a dif('f«1 «ltity), ll!'.::l W:JI !H.d 11 
OOP'JIO the v.Met. Adetetmin;,ticn let!N ~~~oW( lo 11 
v.l.:irhf (.-x ada~~ of wcrl<.en) req!JMihg it, ¥Xi tm &.::i!iQll is 
tmdir.a U\ rho IRS.In ceruh c.HM, tl f.3rmal det«Tt'jnlrlion -,.il 
mt be t'i!iued ln!Oie.ld, oY~ i-lfc-tmollion ~Cf mily bo ~ed 
Mhough .ll'1 inkm.a!icn lette~ i511d,i~ on'tf ar.d is no! bhf"ng 
on the ms, ilway be uY.Jd to ~~~.i!>1 tho wctkff to Nltll his a h~ 
~tu:®'igat.iQre.. 

U~ tho fC\"m SS·S- detl!fmi-lll'ticnprooeM ror tffll't'f~W 
of r:.NJ r«<)l'd5 in COfii'JeCtOO wth ttl!!- detennin.:~ticn com:tit~ 
""ey.ynhlllil:11 (il'Jdit) d ;yryfed«t~l tou return. II tM p«"iods 
~r~der c<Y"Gider$kn h.¥.~ preoklu~be«~ eJ.llmin«-1, the- form 
SS·Sdetetmin111icn PfOCe~ wil not oor&i't>.Jie i1 teeX¥nil!lllicn 
U'ldei' IRS r~fng PfOCed.!-es. Be-c.ru!:e tl-i~ is oot :~n 
e)'.Yni'I.Mi.'n ol11ny~ t;u rclum, the~ r"gl-it!:llVll~e 
in C(lrl~cti-o.-1 v.ith ~ enrr.inaticn do Mla.ppf)tto 11 fcfT!l SS-B 
deteftrirn~tiCf\.ll<r"l:"lt'f, if V0'-1 d~l~ v.;th .:a dete-rrr,in:~tion or 
y¢'J hllo.'!IIIMtlonlll irJorm~lic.n coo can"~ tM w«k 
~k>nllhip thai ycu befe~e """'' r.ct pn~'>IIX6tv ~nsidered, ycu 
trlllY reqJe!l11hlt tf-..:~ d-etenr.hdng office re«~"JW-r the 
detffmirullim.. 

• 
Comploting Form SS-tl 
l'r.rf:.W« an quetk-c-a .u c~lf'I.Ny .u ~~ihle-Atta<:h 
ad~k>noll d-l~l!i if \'OU roe-e-.:1 mQI'e !-pa«'. Provide infom-,.,_6:;, 
fot 61 y~ the wof'..:et prt?tided !:.eric~ f01 the fum. 
~emin.W~M :are b;::,S«:: en the ff'ltft! r~.mOfY.J·ip betA.~ !he 
firm a rod the wM<tf'. /IJs.o i'd"lal1e if th~ wtte c.fT'J ~grifica/'11: 
~in the WOO.. rth!m~ip <r•'ef th-e ~icet«m. 

lldditiGN.I cope-s of If-~ form m:ay be ol:.bined 01'1 tnS.g.:~v or 
tlfcollr~ 1-ilOO-JfiJI..roru.t (I·BOO-B:29·:R:irfl!. 

Foo 
lt-.e.>e i~ M fee lor ~~~tr.:~a FamS-S-9 delefmi~tfcn ~ft". 

Signoturo 
rorm SS·9 rmr.ot be~ i1t'ld d.lted boJ tho ta.:tpll)'C'I. A 
Slarrped s/gN.ture'Aif !Y.It be IY-Cq:teod. 

11-H! p!'l""~n....no sigM for tl ca'p;l-liS1k>n mu-.1 belll'IC!ftcecof 
!he corpcrll'lioo wt.o lw. pe~:Kif'lo2!: 1.-.no.Jedge of the f<tct~. If~ 
ccfpor;!:lion is a m:n1b« r::.fl!ll'lllffirated g-oop fifng a 
c-c;l'!sdid.J.!ed rehxn, it rTY~t 1:-a sigr.ed bY IU'Ioff!Cer of the 
c.:Jmmoo p.u~t ol the groo..p. 

lhe p!'l""..«'' ~igning fOf II tnr.t. parlr.ef!J--ip, Of [rrited lilbrrty 
ccmpltr.y TTJJ~1 be, r~pecli'l~, .1tru:;t~. goer~! parlr.er, c-r 
rn-ember·mM~ ¥r-hci h15 pecs~lu·q~~ofedge ~the f~. 

Whoro To Fllo 
Sefld tl-ie ccmplet~ 11nd ~r..:-d FCfm 5S-9to the lld:ti!"A 

Mo-N for the linn'' [OQ100 F.ued, photoccp~. or d~~ 
Vl!f5bM r::.l fcnn SS·fiD.te I'> Ill: .:.~h fe~lheinili~ teq.m-1 
fCJ the Form SS·a de'!Cfmrmi:!n.llcwc...-er, orly fof <:~ 
rwo}.-ing ~~~~~ ~CflC~ 5-er.d r Cfm ss-a lo !he ~lttn:»l 
nc-m"~uoe Sem.:e, Alin: CC:COHfl:J :C, lloen F~n St;Won, 
P.O. Oo)l TtOt, Wa-.hi-,.glon, 00 200·U. Da not whiM F'orm 
SS·S with rovrtu ~111m u tMt wil deC., pra-oetsing lime-• 

Finn's lOcabon: send to:; 
A1~ AriJot'l.ll, Mu~u. 
C.:Jifc-rni:l, Co!Qr.ldo,lfll'fli. 
ld.lo~.llinci!i,lcwa, I<MM5, 
M"me""Ma, '-{"~• MMt.ln;~. 
Uebn5ka, f<h,~&. fle-w 
fk.IXo, flcrth ~Ill. 
a...fr:.hcn>.a. Or-egcro, Sor.rth 
~Aitolll, J U.l!l, U!.olll, 
wa~hh;!on, w-.~o."'~·n. 
\'-,)Xtrning, Americ,l/'1 Slltm-.1, 
GJllm, ~o Rko, U.S. Vrg"n 
l!l'r:.n:ls 

lntffMIIle\'tr!IHI S~ce 
fe~mS-S-0 Delf-OTINlioM 
P.O.Uox~ 
&c.pl)j1 
Holtll'ale, m 11141·0COO 

ln!Cf~ r\e~,'ttlUI! SM-ice 
Fe~m SS·B Dei.Cflll~ions 
40 L.o1kCfOOI'I!ilMd 
Uewpor1. VT O::.G~t!o!>:. 

Effective Date 
Aptil25,2014 



Iowa Lottery Authority-Financial Management 

Section 
Pre-Audit 

Subject 
I 

Procedure No. 
240.102 I 

Page No. 
15 of 15 I 

Purchasing Policies and Services Contracting 

Instructions tor Work9rs 
H ~'00 1:11e r~t-!i!V!g a. de!ermrutk.o for mt.re th.ll\ cr~e finn, 
oorr·f"'~e ll :;oep.lr.:rle formS&B SorNd! fm1-

m f"01mSS·8 isn:tro~~cbm fw relt,dcl !:-!leW$«~ 
llf!d 1.~.1"1! 1.11~ or~ fr:.c.ome- t.u 
KifHxl/dng. 

1r the~ ms detemine-s that you~ lllletnJ:.~~~. yr;u nfl:l 

~~~!;"J!~:A~i~~~~:7:,.:~~ 
~~~r-e ~ FIOI ne.::e-A41'fy re-ducoer!JI"lj cunc:ril cr pt~r t.u 
/iabifty. rcrmore-WcrmiltiQn, Colli t·BOO·It"9-tCHO. 
Tmc rot filing a claim for refund. Gtf'lffilfy, ycu mu~ fl~ )'QUI 

d:tim for il cred1: or ref\Tid w:thi-1 3 year.; frcm the !;bte yw 
origin:d ~m Yr01:5 filed or wiliWI2 y~r.~o &llm the d:de 1M lax 
.,.,'il"l ~ij, Yoticheo"« hi.JI«. 
riling Form ss.a dOC'J not ~nt the e11~ of lho limo 
in wflicJ1 II dlim (or II tc-furid mJs\ b-e file3. If ~Will' c.' 

e¢1Ketr.«< ~~~lllrelo.n:I.W IN: ~atute tfli"mt.111i-oMfort:lhg 
i1 ®rn for refl.llld !or 11-.:! )'Nil'(~) Dl i?.ue hu 11~ )'rl er.pired, 
~J !fu.old frJe J:'"onn 1tHOX, 1\rri.ef-.dM U.S. lndiv~:iu~ nee~ 
Tax lletum,to pt'~ectyour :.~o11u1e cffirr.iUt.:OOs. ne 11~e 
tcnn 10l0XforMdl )'!'>¥. 

On thelfo!TI110liJXywUe,dt~-r.c4 tomfletef.-;e:sl thn::ug, 
71 on the form. Wri'l~ •ProtectMl- Oilim~ ~IN: tc:p of ~he f01m, 
~ m &lo il.ln .»>tion, MIH the fofo'Airrg !lb!emeot i'1 
Put Ill; ~n~ fCft'Tl SS·8w"th tho!! ln!.eorrul rb'el'l\JI! ~...e 
Offcoe in ~b~~llo:!, NY: tie-Aport, VI: Cf \Yl!Yir.g!O!'I, OC; M 
~c¢atet By rtTng tli5 prt(e...."1ire daim,l re-~~ IN: right IP 
fla II d;ah, lex U1f mund tlW m~ ba due af1ef ~ determi1101ti0fl 
<lf rtl'j CffoJikyrr.<Mt lou ~bt\.1~ h:.s been com!=f«C'd.~ 
Fili11g form SS.II doH not Dltet' the requin!ml!'nt lo timely Re 
~n income lu ~tum. Oo no! dd'ay li[M )'Q\Jf lou re-turn in 
Ntkipiltiend IUIIIMWeftoycU"form&S·IJr~. ~ 
.»d"iJcn, if olpp'i<:.:.blto, ~ oot delay n R"!lpondnglo ~ r~..t 
k.r porymert y,tiJIIJt!l~~ fcx o ~ermi'u!OO ol )'QIS' ~JLo«!= 
~Ull. 

lnstrucHons tor Firms 
H 11 wo.rb-r hll!l r~Ue!ile-.::1 Dl det6'r.ir.M»n of hi5 ex l".ef ~lli!us 
~JLof'ile ~r1Q119 for VC'J, )'='II wn rc-cffle 11 reque51 frrn~the tns to 
OOrt·fl«o 11 T«m SS-9. fn Colo~ ollhi~ type. the IRS ~.illt 
gf~ nch p;uty MJ opp:i"'u-jty to pre-.a'lt .. !:ital.emtrrt olthe 
btt!l ~....: rJn( dtct~cn v.il iliect the M':f"O)mMit U_K 
~us d th~ Ti!i~J~ to ~-nd lo th1s req.~est wJI n~ 

rn~=~IY.=s:~i~i~a~~:~ti=l~t&:!:l:''he 
mil)' N!lil hi-s or ht("fe-1ef.:.! t.u Clt6:JilliPm-. HIJ'Ije\l:f", !h::l 
irlcn-~Ution thlll. yc.o ptolide is e.dr=-,dy v;iwobl2 in 
delenr..inhg lfle s!a~ of the .... ~er. 

If you Me rtoqUo:t~"ting.:. dtteminotlior~ for 11 F'IV1icl.ll.lr cl11ss of 
~JLo-orJ.er, !:o[)fl;fl<:'.elhe "brm fcx !loe indi-Jldw.f YLOho i~ 
~e--...:."Jt:r.tNr olthed:.s~ <lf wcrl<.«-5 -r.fl.:lu sblu1 is h 
q11<:':11i0fl. H \'011 ~"llll v.tit!c--n do:iermhatiOl"' fOJ mete th~ ooo 
d=s ofworler.~, CQmplt'leols-e-pllll!e rctmSS-" fcxo:-.o 
.,.,'Of!,;H from e-ach cl~ w.W...e ~~~~ h t)'pY..:a! olth.l.l tW~ A 
.,.,-,;-tt~ dttermhalitn for D.r'f ......oo;er v.if llpllty tooth« .,.,'OI'kef!li 
of 1M ~e cb~ if the fads llle r.c-t maiMJ/ty d~t for 
thc:-!oe worl<.er:;. ~ prtMde 11 fBt d M"'le:5 and a.dd!e-...-,.e, ol 
l:il workers p«~tidy i)fte-.'1C'd by l~i:; dttetmin.WOI'l. 

References 

'• . 
K X::,~ll...-e 11 r~~nable b.Ws k-r 1\C-1 tr~V!g a we del 11!1 M'l 

~~ .... ,;-tt,)~YLO~{.,~~=~m~~~~ fa1eRf.-e7..::'"11 

Act. llow!!~'ei',ltlh reft:l f'IO't.\~krl ~oot be ton!lidefc-d il 
c~V~n with a Tam SS·Bdeterminalion becii.IU the 
d-el.ermrufun IbM nc.t oon!llih.tean ellllmiNt'.on cf ~tax 
rffinn._ rex moR" infOI"rrot~ r~ard"l"lo:J ~n WOof the t~rtr 
flt'JMue /lrl Mid lo de!ermh!! if )'00 Q'..mfy fcx relief U"ldef this 
~ \;~·tiRS.goY. 

Priva~ A~t And PAperwork Reduction Act Notk-eo. Vie Mk fot 
tm ir00rma1k-n on form SS·S to c.my oot the !nterMl P..-{:'1"ffi'~ 
b-A'5 olthe Uniled Stllt~ Th"5 r.f«miili«J•,iJI bl! ~to 
~l!iTI"Ibe the emp~Mt !<iatus c.f 1M w.Mel"{s) do-~rbed «1 
the fcm~. SIJbtiiJ, C, l:rtipklfmctlt laKe-J, of tho lnt«nal Reo.'¢ill.l!t 
Code ilr~es ~~~tv~ on ~es, i'ldud"n_a ~ 
t,u wUJ'.o:'dh;. ~ 31111~. 3XIti{aJ, And 3401(e) ~(a) 
and 1M reb\ed re-gu'tltions del!® emplo)~ ¥1d ern~-yet ~~ 
p-..rpY.-= of e~t t;ues impoihi un~ Sttbti!kt C. 
Seitkn IJ)\}1 11.ulhcirizM the RS ta-mq~ irlo~»n r.e-eded 
lo de-torrrir.e if 11 w.wl\ef{s) « r"""' &_ ~biect to th~'"..e lii:U-5. 
Sectkn etOO wq_UrM-you to prctoide)'OI' ~ff 
~er.t'fi<:."lti.orl n11rt.b«. Nel!i'oM" wod<en. nc;r fnr.!: BH~ rtqJt-00 to 
r~e::t i1 ~~~~~ do:-letm'm1ion, t-.Jt ifyru ch:xlr..e 1~:~ do~. )'OU 
ml.d provHe lhe irlorm<Jii«l n:q.Jo:"".ted oo thi!. f«m. F~llfa ID 
pro·~ the ~ue-:t1ed ir;k>rmlli!k-n m:ry pre'lmt us from miJl·ng 
11 !llol!>J~ dete.-minlltorl.lf 11ny wolfl.ef-Cf the Frm h.ls reque--.-1.~ 11 
:;I~ de\etrr.inatim ~d yc-u Me ~·ng i~;~~ to ~vide 
~fctrrulfi.on fer IIllO h tNt detornirotioo, yoo 111e net r~uYed to 
~the~~.w.o1ed1nformatic:n.l~~.f.:ll!6eloew-.i!k 
such informa-!ion W:Jl ff"<:'o"«ll.lho IRS from c0Mid6'hg i! in 
m.-JJng the !lW\11 det~JnatiOI'\. Pro-."idng b'se 01" ffoud\/tr~l 
i-lform>ilion maysutject yw to pen;Uiies. Cknor-W.t.u fclo~rr~ 
and r«vm ir/0111"\llicn 111e t«lids"lli~l. as reqcired by~ 
61W.Ikr-t.-eoler,'5':'..-funtHOO llf~ Cf req-Ji-M theiRS to 
tf·sdo---..eClf gi-rvthe i-lfwn.ttioo mv.n Pll 'Pol t.u rctwn to 
otherll ~ !k-..o::rmed in the Code.lk-.rtine ueM cllhn 
Flfmr.~ h:fude ~Ming it lo the ~men! of Mtica lex 
w..e n ci-.-i111nd crinn~ tilig11tlon,to theSoO.U Sei:\lfitJ 
Adrriris!rillk-n for the ad-T!nistr.ltic-n of wcial ~ity 
prog-"llrm, imd t'l dtm. ~e:s. the ll!l!rkt ol Cdt~mbi:l, 11nd 
U.S.. comtTY.Inw~I!M ll1ld po--.?..ezitt.s fo.r the .:.!kn''*-tratic-n ot 
their tu laws. We :J® rmlf cfu.clc-"..e tli!:i inform.:::tioo to o1~ 
~:OI.Il'l!rf~ ufflw 111u lrNty,to lede-lal ¥Jd !:il.lle a~ lo 
enforc-e fed« :!I r.ont;u cri-nrullaw-s., or to fed«,)! law 
enforc~t 11M htd£~ ageo:ie-:; to~ lenori-.m. Vie 
m;:q pO">ide tim. irlorrmilin to the ~r:de-:1 worW(!i), the f.rm, 
c-r Jl'l'i« ;:a~ p!ll1 c.f the st.W.Js deterrdn.llion pi"IX~!l. 

Yo-J 11re mt rr:q.ired to pt"O'ikte the h!"~rma!i«-1 reqr~ted NO 
11 form that i~S !liUt{c<t to the P11perwcw:k lk-d!Jction /lit I.JI"Ile-~ 
thef0011 d~J'5 a \lt"ldOMil c.<:-r-Lrtl1"4Jmkf.l!oo!..'5rl 
rocords rdating ta- a form or~ in~tr1.Jcti!lru rru-.:1 be reu.'ntd as 
long Mtheir tCII'IIefl~ may bec-ome rral.6'ial in the 
adffih':!!!r.itic-n of =t lrterrol lle'ienue l11w. 

lhe li~ni!ededtocomp'tte Dnd fle tt-i!l F-ctm SS-9"Ail VM'f 
~.:fr..J on in.:f~:tl cVcUTis!anc~. fhoec----:tfrroled~."tfllge 
troe 15: Re-ccxd~. i"J m .. c.t> mn.; le.un'"9 ilbaut the law 
cr 11-.efam, 1 hi'~ .tQ m~.; Prep~~ring the fam, 5 hr.;..,(l:l min; 
1111d Sending the form to th~ IllS, 49 m·n. H \'=>~~~-a~~ CO-'"TUrJ«".t~ 
c~ing the accuacy of these tFne e-slimare:s or s~1i-..ns 
lex rll.lking thisfc-rm ~er • .,.,-e .,.,Wd be~ to he;ufrom 
ycu YO<.J c.c~nwritc-to the Internal ne\-erues~. Tax 
Products CPOI'd"llil~·ng Ctmrnitteoe, SEYI;CNUIP: T :M:S, 
till C«Y..ttuticnA'Ie. rm.111 (;~2(1. W.W~ngl«\- OC:IW".L-t. 
Do!"!CI ~the tlii form loth's ad:freo-A.l'l'l'll~. see 1\'mrr:o To 
u~onp¥r.. 

Effective Date 
April25, 2014 

Guidelines for purchasing procedures are located in the 99G(21) and 531 Iowa Administrative Code, Chapter 2 
Purchasing. 

This policy supersedes all other policies previously issued regarding purchasing. 



PROPOSED RULE CHANGE: 

531-12.12(99G,252J) Suspension or revocation of a license. 
12.12(1) TI1e lottery may suspend or revoke any license issued pursuant to these rules for one or more of 

the following reasons: 
a. Failing to meet or maintain the eligibility criteria for license application and issuance established by 

Iowa Code Supplement chapter 990 or these rules. 
b. Violating any of the provisions of Iowa Code Supplement chapter 990, these rules, or the license 

terms and conditions. 
c. Failing to file any return or report or to keep records required by the lottery; failing to maintain an 

acceptable level of financial responsibility as evidenced by the financial condition of the business, incidents of 
failure to pay taxes or other debts, or by the giving of financial instruments that are dishonored or electronic 
funds transfers that are not paid; fraud, deceit, misrepresentation, or other conduct prejudicial to the public 
confidence in the lottery. 

d. If public convenience is adequately served by other licensees. 
e. Failing to sell a minimum number of tickets as established by the lottery. 
f A history of thefts or other f01ms of losses of tickets or revenue from the business. 
g. Violating federal, state, or local law or allowing the violation of any of these laws on premises 

occupied by or controlled by any person over whom the retailer has substantial control. 
h. Obtaining a license by fraud, misrepresentation, concealment or through inadvetience or mistake. 
i. Making a misrepresentation of fact to the board or lottery on any report, record, application form, or 

questionnaire required to be submitted to the board or lottery. 
j . Denying the lottery or its authorized representative, including authorized local law enforcement 

agencies, access to any place where a licensed activity is conducted. 
k. Failing to promptly produce for inspection or audit any book, record, document, or other item required 

to be produced by law, these rules, or the terms of the license. 
I. Systematically pursuing economic gain in an occupational manner or context which is in violation of 

the criminal or civil public policy of this state if such pursuit creates cause to believe that the participation of 
such person in these activities is inimical to the proper operation of an authorized lottery. 

m. Failing to follow the instructions of the lottery for the conduct of any patticular game or special event. 
n. Failing to follow security procedures of the lottery for the management of personnel, handling of 

tickets, or for the conduct of any patticular game or special event. 
o. Making a misrepresentation of fact to a purchaser, or prospective purchaser, of a ticket, or to the 

general public with respect to the conduct of a particular game or special event. 
p. For a licensee who is an individual, when the lottery receives a certificate of noncompliance from the 

child support recovery unit in regard to the licensee, unless the unit furnishes the department with a withdrawal 
of the certificate of noncompliance. 

q. Allowing activities on the licensed premises that could compromise the dignity of the state. 
r . Failing to accurately or timely account or pay for lottery products, lottery games, revenues, or prizes as 

required by the lottery. 
s. Filing for or being placed in bankruptcy or receivership. 
t. Engaging in any conduct likely to result in injmy to the property, revenue, or reputation of the lottery. 
11. Making any material change, as determined in the sole discretion of the lottery, in any matter 

considered by the lottery in executing the contract with the retailer. 
12.12(2) The effective date of revocation or suspension of a license, or denial of the issuance or renewal of 

a license, as specified in the notice required by Iowa Code section 252J.8, shall be 60 days following service of 
the notice upon the licensee. All other notices of revocation or suspension shall be 20 days following service 
upon a licensee. 

12.12(3) If a retailer's license is suspended for more than 180 days from the effective date of the 



suspension, the lottety will revoke the retailer's license upon 15 days' notice served in confom1ance with 
531- 12.13(99G,252J). 

12.12(4) Upon suspicion that a retailer has sold a ticket to an underage player, the lottery will investigate 
and provide a written warning to the retailer describing the report of the event and of the potential violation of 
Iowa Code Supplement section 99G.30(3). In the event a retailer sells a ticket to an underage player and the 
lottery can substantiate the claim, the lottery slt&U-may suspend the retailer's license for 7 days. When a retailer 
sells a ticket to an underage player and the lottery can substantiate the claim a second time in a period of one 
year fi·om the date of the first event, the lottery slt&U-may suspend the retailer's license for a period of 30 days. 
When a retailer sells a ticket to an underage player and the lottery can substantiate the claim a third time in a 
period of one year from the date of the first event as described in this rule, the retailer's license shftll.-may be 
suspended for one year. 

12.12(5) Upon revocation or suspension of a retailer's license of 30 days or longer, the retailer shall 
surrender to the lottery, by a date designated by the lottery, the license, lottery identification card, and all other 
lottery property. The lottery will settle the retailer's account as if the retailer had terminated its relationship 
with the lottery voluntarily. 

This rule is intended to implement Iowa Code section 252J.8 and Iowa Code Supplement sections 
99G.9(3), 99G.21(2), 99G.24, 99G.27, 99G.30(3), and 99G.35. 



Key Points of the MONOPOLY Millionaires' Club 

SUMMARY 
• Completely addresses the Industry's desire for a National, premium priced unique game with local components 

and digital interaction for players supported by a TV game show. 

• Fully developed turn-key package, tied to the most successful brand in gaming, MONOPOLY that includes a 
patented draw game, brand license, TV game show prizing and production, television distribution, interactive 
components and fulfillment. 

• Differentiated game offering for the draw portfolio potentially featuring hundreds of guaranteed $1,000,000 
cash prizes that will create more millionaires in a single draw than any game in history 

• A one hour national prime time game show distributed multiple times per week on broadcast, cable television 
and streamed 

• In one season a $1 million prize will likely be given away more times than in any season in the history of 
broadcast television 

• Every participating lottery will have a winner from their state appear in the version of the show broadcast in 
their state 

• Robust digital offering including a mobile app, play at home games, integrated social marketing and game play 
designed and supported by social and digital media specialists 

• Strategically partnered with an expert and well respected team of entertainment industry executives and 
producers 

• There are no other costs. SG commits all capital and human resources and assumes all add itional risk 

MONOPOLY-THE BRAND 

• MONOPOLY is one of the best known brands in the world 

• Virtually 100% recall 

• Extends to all demographic groups 

• It is the No. 1 brand in gaming 

• By far the number one licensed brand in the lottery industry 

• The No. 1 brand in Sweepstakes with the annual McDonalds promotion 

• Extensive digital presence 

• 75% of adults aware of Monopoly digital platforms 

• Top 25 most downloaded app of all time 

• Over 11 million monthly Facebook users and growing 

• MONOPOLY brand extension in 2012, MONOPOLY Millionaire-the most successfully MONOPOLY brand 

extension ever 

o In 2013 over $850 million of MONOPOLY Millionaire scratch tickets printed 

o One of the three top licensed games of the year as distinct from MONOPOLY 

• Key finding in 2013 brand research study-"Launch Any MONOPOLY Game" 

THE GAME SHOW 

• One hour prime time game show- MONOPOLY Millionaires' Club 

MDI Entertainment January 18, 2014 Page 1 of 3 



• Produced by Hasbro Studios taped in Las Vegas 

• 6-7 mini-games with $100,000 top prize 

• Bonus Round with $1,000,000 top prize. Should be won about 7 times a year. More $1 million prizes won a TV 

show in a season than any show in the history of television 

• Local ization - One of the mini-games will be customized for each participating lottery with one of their players 

and distributed to stations in that state. This will assure that each lottery will have one of their players in each 

and every broadcast 

THE AUDIENCE 

• Audience will be selected thru second chance drawings on a state by state basis; each lottery gets a minimum of 

three winners in every audience. 250 winners plus guest in each audience 

• 13 separate production days and audiences a season 

• Remainder of audience will be distributed proportionately by sales 

• Players create an account at the lottery website and enter ticket code 

• That code recognizes the MONOPOLY property that ticket was assigned 

• When a player creates a MONOPOLY they receive second chance entries based on the value of the MONOPOLY 

• Trips are for Four days/three nights for two includ ing all amenities and spending money 

• Audience will be divided into as many sections as there are mini-games; one section will be selected for each 

mini-game and one contestant from that section will play 

DISTRIBTUION 

• One hour prime time show Saturday or Sunday night on three screens (broadcast, cable, on demand) 

• Syndicated network for over-the-air broadcast distribution 

o Tribune Broadcasting has signed LOI for their stations to be the anchor of syndicated network. 40 stations 

in 311ottery markets including the top 5 and 14 oftop 20. Covers 44% of US TV Households 

• National Cable Network 

o Game Show Network (GSN) has signed LOI to cablecast. Monday or Tuesday prime time cablecast. Will 

cablecast multiple times in a week 

• Video Streaming on demand 

o Discussions with Hulu, Amazon Prime and Netflix 

THE TEAM 

• The companies and executives assembled to deliver this product are best of class and include 

• Scientific Games and MDI Entertainment 

o Worldwide leader in lottery game creation 

• Hasbro Studios-Leading producer of non-scripted programming and theatrical releases as well as joint venture 

cable network 

o Kevin Belinkoff---Vice President Game Show & Reality Show Production and Development-Hasbro 

Studios. Former VP of Programming at Game Show Network and producer of Match Game, Family Feud 

and Card Sharks 

MDI Entertainment January 18, 2014 Page 2 of 3 



• Scott St John-Executive Producer/Show Runner. Dozens of executive producer credits including Deal or No 

Deal, America's Got Talent and 1 v. 100. 

• Barry Wallach-Consultant in charge of Distribution. Formerly President of NBC/Universal Domestic Television 

Distribution 

• Todd Leavitt-Entertainment attorney. Formerly Executive Vice President of NBC Productions and President and 

Chief Operating Officer of the Television Academy of Arts and Sciences 

DIGITAL MARKETING 

• National Website 

• State Micro-Sites 

• Player registration, second chance entry account details 

• Social media integration including Facebook and Twitter 

• Minimum of 3 Play At Home interactive concepts available on desktop, tc;~blet and mobile 

• Mobile App and push to retail 

MDI Entertainment January 18, 2014 Page 3 of 3 



Iowa Lottery 
Fiscal Year 2015 

Vision 

The Iowa Lottery continually strives to deliver value to the State of Iowa by providing 
entertainment to the public while maintaining the highest standards of integrity, security, and 
accountability. 

Mission 

The Iowa Lottery is a nonprofit authority that operates the state's lottery in an entrepreneurial 
and business-like manner, accountable to a public Board of Directors, the Governor, the 
General Assembly, and the People of the State while providing entertainment to the public and 
maximizing revenues for the state. 

Goals & Objectives 

Maintain The Highest Level of Lottery Integrity 
• Continue compliance checks of retailers and staff 
• Maintain public and retailer education about Lottery products and policies 
• Continue to communicate the help available through 1-800-BETSOFF, the state's 

problem gambling hotline 

Exceed /LOT's Base Proceeds Goal of $68 Million 
• Execute diversification of the lottery retail base (bars, big box stores, electronic play) 
• Add national lotto games for sales growth 
• Execute transition of the pull-tab category 
• Expand upon successf.ul sales and merchandising by lottery field staff 

Best-in-Class Lottery Opera,tions 
• Increase support for employee professional growth to utilize new technology 
• Meet and exceed player expectations for value, entertainment and game security 
• Continue focus on a positive, respectful work environment for employees 
• Research and execute innovation in lottery offerings for our players' enjoyment 
• Continuous improvement of performance in all areas of the lottery's business 

Contribute to Iowa's Economy 
• Collaborate strategically with other state organizations to promote Iowa causes 
• Evaluate, test and communicate new lottery programs that could translate into 

efficiencies in other areas of state government 
• Continue the lottery's strong 29-year history of generating proceeds for vital state causes 

while supporting Iowa businesses 



INVESTIGATIONS 
Cases: 7 
Cases open: 4 
Cases closed: 3 

EVENTS 

SECURITY REPORT 
MARCH 2014 

TYPES 
Theft: 1 
Employee Theft: 4 
Fraud: 2 

Supervise and monitor Powerball, Mega Millions and Hot Lotto games, validates All or 
Nothing game. Assisted with promotional drawing Veterans Victory Motorcycle 
promotion. One unattended ticket print. 

MISCELLANEOUS 
Validations Assist: 22 
Law Enforcement contacts: 1 0 
ABO Notifications: 7 
ABO file only: 15 

--------Recor sofconac :42~----------------------------------------------------~ 

Arrest: 3 
Compliance checks: 21 
Customer assists: 4 

SECURITY REPORT 
FEBRUARY 2014 

INVESTIGATIONS 
Cases: 8 
Cases open: 7 
Cases: arrest -1 

EVENTS 

TYPES 
Theft:3 
Employee theft: 4 
Missing ticket/s: 1 

Supervise and monitor Powerball, Mega Millions and Hot Lotto games, validates All or 
Nothing game. Assisted with promotional drawing Hall of Fame. 

MISCELLANEOUS 
Assist Validations Department: 24 
Law Enforcement contacts: 11 
ABO notifications: 6 
ABO file only: 3 
Records of contact: 40 
Arrests: 1 
Compliance checks: 23 
Customer assists: 2 



SECURITY REPORT 
JANUARY 2014 

INVESTIGATIONS 
Cases: 7 
Cases open: 5 
Cases: suspended: 1 
Cases: arrest: 1 

EVENTS 

TYPES 
Theft:6 
Employee theft: 1 

Provide Security for the $100,000 Cash Game and all second chance and promotional 
drawings. 27 drawings. Assisted with the Gifts Galore promotional drawing. All or 
Nothing Game started. 

Miscellaneous 
Assist Validations Department: 22 
Law Enforcement contacts: 7 
ABO notifications: 5 
ABO file only: 10 
Records of contact: 30 
Arres s: 1 
Customer assists: 2 


	Board Meeting Packet 4.22.14 Part 1
	Board Meeting Packet 4.22.14 Part 2
	Board Meeting Packet 4.22.14 Part 3

